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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited in thousands, except per share data)

 Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019

Net revenues $ 240,371 $ 258,970 $ 645,434 $ 749,987 
Cost of goods sold 120,114 130,920 329,403 379,031 
Gross profit 120,257 128,050 316,031 370,956 
Operating expenses:     
Research and development 7,501 7,000 22,014 21,909 
Selling, general and administrative 73,446 78,267 214,680 229,189 
Impairment of assets — 1,876 1,028 50,597 
Gains on divestitures and sale of assets (1,115) — (32,613) (8,083)
Total operating expenses 79,832 87,143 205,109 293,612 
Operating income 40,425 40,907 110,922 77,344 
Interest and other expense, net (3,051) (3,078) (10,612) (12,152)
Income before provision for income taxes 37,374 37,829 100,310 65,192 
Provision for income taxes 5,492 7,934 9,800 6,290 
Net income $ 31,882 $ 29,895 $ 90,510 $ 58,902 

Net income per share - basic $ 0.63 $ 0.59 $ 1.79 $ 1.16 
Net income per share - diluted $ 0.62 $ 0.58 $ 1.77 $ 1.13 

Weighted average shares outstanding     
Basic 50,789 50,630 50,634 50,810 
Diluted 51,363 51,638 51,234 51,995 

Comprehensive income $ 40,496 $ 32,296 $ 105,787 $ 55,577 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited in thousands, except share data)

December 26,
2020

March 28,
2020

ASSETS   
Current assets:   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 189,002 $ 137,311 
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $2,525 at December 26, 2020 and $3,824 at March 28, 2020 146,939 165,207 
Inventories, net 299,710 270,276 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 32,697 30,845 

Total current assets 668,348 603,639 
Property, plant and equipment, net 240,009 253,399 
Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of $309,951 at December 26, 2020 and $296,942 at March 28, 2020 119,716 133,106 
Goodwill 215,508 210,652 
Deferred tax asset 4,558 3,930 
Other long-term assets 69,929 62,384 

Total assets $ 1,318,068 $ 1,267,110 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   
Current liabilities:   

Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt $ 17,055 $ 76,980 
Accounts payable 42,979 50,730 
Accrued payroll and related costs 35,127 49,471 
Other liabilities 99,223 97,641 

Total current liabilities 194,384 274,822 
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 292,721 305,513 
Deferred tax liability 9,803 10,562 
Other long-term liabilities 102,008 89,104 

Total stockholders’ equity   
Common stock, $0.01 par value; Authorized — 150,000,000 shares; Issued and outstanding — 50,817,222 shares at
December 26, 2020 and 50,322,930 shares at March 28, 2020 508 503 
Additional paid-in capital 579,480 553,229 
Retained earnings 169,022 78,512 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (29,858) (45,135)
Total stockholders’ equity 719,152 587,109 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,318,068 $ 1,267,110 

    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Unaudited in thousands)

 Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Capital Retained Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive Loss
Total

Stockholders’ Equity Shares Par Value

Balance, March 28, 2020 50,323 $ 503 $ 553,229 $ 78,512 $ (45,135) $ 587,109 

Employee stock purchase plan 22 — 2,144 — — 2,144 
Exercise of stock options 28 1 1,192 — — 1,193 
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 298 3 (3) — — — 
Share-based compensation expense — — 6,167 — — 6,167 
Net income — — — 10,527 — 10,527 
Other comprehensive income — — — — 1,429 1,429 

Balance, June 27, 2020 50,671 $ 507 $ 562,729 $ 89,039 $ (43,706) $ 608,569 
Exercise of stock options 2 — 67 — — 67 
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 30 — — — — — 
Share-based compensation expense — — 5,952 — — 5,952 
Net income — — — 48,101 — 48,101 
Other comprehensive income — — — — 5,234 5,234 

Balance, September 26, 2020 50,703 $ 507 $ 568,748 $ 137,140 $ (38,472) $ 667,923 

Employee stock purchase plan 22 — 1,868 — — 1,868 
Exercise of stock options 50 — 2,578 — — 2,578 
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 42 1 (1) — — — 
Share-based compensation expense — — 6,287 — — 6,287 
Net income — — — 31,882 — 31,882 
Other comprehensive income — — — — 8,614 8,614 

Balance, December 26, 2020 50,817 $ 508 $ 579,480 $ 169,022 $ (29,858) $ 719,152 
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HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Unaudited in thousands)

 Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Capital Retained Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive Loss
Total

Stockholders’ Equity Shares Par Value

Balance, March 30, 2019 51,020 $ 510 $ 536,320 $ 161,418 $ (30,380) $ 667,868 

Employee stock purchase plan 25 — 1,830 — — 1,830 
Exercise of stock options 85 1 3,634 — — 3,635 
Shares repurchased (616) (6) (21,473) (53,521) — (75,000)
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 257 3 (3) — — — 
Share-based compensation expense — — 4,730 — — 4,730 
Net loss — — — (8,479) — (8,479)
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (3,618) (3,618)

Balance, June 29, 2019 50,771 $ 508 $ 525,038 $ 99,418 $ (33,998) $ 590,966 
Exercise of stock options 64 1 2,409 — — 2,410 
Shares repurchased (360) (4) 1,274 (51,270) — (50,000)
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 133 1 (1) — — — 
Share-based compensation expense — — 5,000 — — 5,000 
Net income — — — 37,486 — 37,486 
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (2,108) (2,108)

Balance, September 28, 2019 50,608 $ 506 $ 533,720 $ 85,634 $ (36,106) $ 583,754 

Employee stock purchase plan 20 1 1,537 — — 1,538 
Exercise of stock options 60 — 1,667 — — 1,667 
Shares repurchased (411) (4) (4,335) (45,661) — (50,000)
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 114 1 (1) — — — 
Share-based compensation expense — — 5,325 — — 5,325 
Net income — — — 29,895 — 29,895 
Other comprehensive income — — — — 2,401 2,401 

Balance, December 28, 2019 50,391 $ 504 $ 537,913 $ 69,868 $ (33,705) $ 574,580 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited in thousands)

 Nine Months Ended
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:   

Net income $ 90,510 $ 58,902 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:   
Non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortization 62,377 81,524 
Impairment of assets 1,028 50,597 
Share-based compensation expense 18,406 15,055 
Deferred tax benefit (3,953) (4,747)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable and inventory 2,942 (2,246)
Gains on divestitures and sale of assets (32,613) (8,083)
Other non-cash operating activities 1,351 1,945 

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Change in accounts receivable 18,588 13,807 
Change in inventories (33,728) (68,251)
Change in prepaid income taxes 1,181 (273)
Change in other assets and other liabilities 2,687 (8,829)
Change in accounts payable and accrued expenses (21,518) (17,590)

Net cash provided by operating activities 107,258 111,811 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:  

Capital expenditures (25,408) (38,112)
Acquisition (16,606) — 
Proceeds from divestitures 44,587 9,808 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,085 16,263 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 3,658 (12,041)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:   

Net (decrease) increase in short-term loans (60,000) 30,000 
Repayment of term loan borrowings (13,125) (8,750)
Share repurchases — (175,000)
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 4,012 3,368 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 3,838 7,712 
Other (32) 90 

Net cash used in financing activities (65,307) (142,580)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 6,082 (124)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 51,691 (42,934)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 137,311 169,351 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 189,002 $ 126,417 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:   
Interest paid $ 6,070 $ 10,739 
Income taxes paid $ 5,612 $ 9,888 

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Transfers from inventory to fixed assets for placement of Haemonetics equipment $ 5,878 $ 10,705 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Haemonetics Corporation (“Haemonetics” or the “Company”) presented
herein have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim
financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and
footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of the Company's management, all adjustments (consisting of normal
recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated. Operating
results for the nine months ended December 26, 2020 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full fiscal year ending
April 3, 2021 or any other interim period. The Company has assessed its ability to continue as a going concern. As of December 26, 2020, the Company
has concluded that substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern does not exist. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in the annual report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended March 28, 2020.

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements to provide
additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require additional disclosure. Refer to Note 4, Acquisitions for information
pertaining to acquisitions that were signed or closed subsequent to December 26, 2020. There were no other material recognized or unrecognized
subsequent events as of or for the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020.

2. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Standards Implemented

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Update No. 2016-13, Financial
Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326). ASC Update No. 2016-13 is intended to replace the current incurred loss impairment methodology for financial
assets measured at amortized cost with a methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and
supportable information, including forecasted information, to develop credit loss estimates. The Company adopted ASC Update No. 2016-13 during the
first quarter of fiscal 2021. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2018-15, Intangibles, Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40). The new
guidance aligns the accounting implementation costs incurred in a cloud computing arrangement that is a service contract with the accounting for internal-
use software licenses. The Company adopted ASC Update No. 2018-15 during the first quarter of fiscal 2021. The adoption did not have a material impact
on the Company's unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

3. RESTRUCTURING

On an ongoing basis, the Company reviews the global economy, the healthcare industry, and the markets in which it competes to identify opportunities for
efficiencies, enhance commercial capabilities, align its resources and offer its customers better solutions. In order to realize these opportunities, the
Company undertakes restructuring-type activities to transform its business.
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In July 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a new Operational Excellence Program (the “2020 Program”) and delegated authority to the
Company's management to determine the detail of the initiatives that will comprise the program. The 2020 Program is designed to improve operational
performance and reduce cost principally in our manufacturing and supply chain operations. The Company estimates that it will incur aggregate charges
between $60 million and $70 million in connection with the 2020 Program. These charges, the majority of which will result in cash outlays, including
severance and other employee costs, will be incurred as the specific actions required to execute these initiatives are identified and approved and are
expected to be substantially completed by the end of fiscal 2023. During the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, the Company incurred $3.1
million and $11.1 million, respectively, of restructuring and turnaround costs under this program. During the three and nine months ended December 28,
2019, the Company incurred $3.9 million and $6.8 million, respectively, of restructuring and turnaround costs under this program. Total cumulative charges
under this program are $22.9 million.

During fiscal 2018, the Company launched a Complexity Reduction Initiative (the “2018 Program”), a company-wide restructuring program designed to
improve operational performance and reduce cost, freeing up resources to invest in accelerated growth. During the three months ended December 26, 2020,
the Company incurred minimal charges of restructuring and turnaround costs under this program. During the nine months ended December 26, 2020, the
Company incurred $0.5 million of restructuring and turnaround costs under this program. During the three and nine months ended December 28, 2019, the
Company incurred $3.9 million and $6.8 million, respectively, of restructuring and turnaround costs under this program. Total cumulative charges under
this program are $58.7 million. The 2018 Program is substantially complete.

The following table summarizes the activity for restructuring reserves related to the 2020 Program and the 2018 Program and prior programs for the nine
months ended December 26, 2020, substantially all of which relates to employee severance and other employee costs:

(In thousands) 2020 Program
2018 Program and

Prior Programs Total

Balance at March 28, 2020 $ 1,136 $ 1,512 $ 2,648 
Costs incurred, net of reversals 1,005 (105) 900 
Payments (1,546) (887) (2,433)
Balance at December 26, 2020 $ 595 $ 520 $ 1,115 

The following presents the restructuring costs by line item within our accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income:

 Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019

Cost of goods sold $ (49) $ 2 $ 218 $ 444 
Research and development (2) 139 108 708 
Selling, general and administrative expenses (41) 476 574 1,777 

$ (92) $ 617 $ 900 $ 2,929 

As of December 26, 2020, the Company had a restructuring liability of $1.1 million, of which $0.7 million is payable within the next twelve months.

In addition to the restructuring costs included in the table above, the Company also incurred costs that do not constitute restructuring under ASC 420, Exit
and Disposal Cost Obligations, and which the Company instead refers to as turnaround costs. These costs consist primarily of expenditures directly related
to the restructuring actions and include program management costs associated with the 2020 Program and operational performance improvement initiatives.
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The tables below present restructuring and turnaround costs by reportable segment:

Restructuring costs Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
(In thousands) December 26, 2020 December 28, 2019 December 26, 2020 December 28, 2019

Plasma $ (27) $ 4 $ 454 $ 552 
Blood Center 66 18 240 154 
Hospital — 58 (18) 295 
Corporate (131) 537 224 1,928 
Total $ (92) $ 617 $ 900 $ 2,929 

Turnaround costs Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
(In thousands) December 26, 2020 December 28, 2019 December 26, 2020 December 28, 2019

Plasma $ 431 $ 108 $ 1,235 $ 187 
Blood Center 518 293 1,024 293 
Hospital 4 — 14 — 
Corporate 2,282 6,780 8,410 10,173 
Total $ 3,235 $ 7,181 $ 10,683 $ 10,653 

Total restructuring and turnaround costs $ 3,143 $ 7,798 $ 11,583 $ 13,582 

4. ACQUISITIONS

Cardiva Medical, Inc.

On January 17, 2021, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with Cardiva Medical, Inc., (“Cardiva”), an industry-leading
manufacturer of vascular closure systems based in Santa Clara, California. In connection with this acquisition, the Company will pay upfront consideration
of $475.0 million in cash, subject to customary working capital and certain other adjustments as of the closing of the transaction, as well as up to
$35.0 million in additional contingent consideration payable over the next two years based on sales growth. The transaction is not subject to a financing
contingency, and the Company expects to finance the transaction through a combination of its cash on hand, revolving credit facility and an additional
$150.0 million term loan anticipated to be borrowed under its existing credit facility. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2021.

Cardiva’s portfolio includes two catheter-based vascular access site closure devices. The VASCADE  vascular closure system is designed for “small-bore”
femoral arterial and venous closure, generally used in interventional cardiology and peripheral vascular procedures. The VASCADE MVP  vascular
closure system is designed for “mid-bore” multi-access femoral venous closure, generally used in electrophysiology procedures, and is the only U.S. Food
and Drug Administration (“FDA”) approved closure device for use following cardiac ablation procedures requiring two or more access sites within the
same vessel. The addition of the VASCADE portfolio to the Hospital business unit includes products with demonstrated benefits and enhances penetration
into the large and growing interventional cardiology and electrophysiology markets.

HAS Intellectual Property

In January 2021, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire certain intellectual property owned by HemoAssay Science and Technology (Suzhou)
Co. Ltd., a China-incorporated company, and its affiliates (collectively, “HemoAssay”) underlying their HAS viscoelastic diagnostic devices, related assays
and disposables. The Company previously entered into exclusive manufacturing and distribution agreements with HemoAssay pursuant to which it has
exclusive rights to commercialize HemoAssay’s HAS devices in China. In connection with the transaction, the Company has agreed to pay up to
$15.0 million to HemoAssay in contingent consideration based on certain developmental and manufacturing based milestones. These products augment the
Company's portfolio of hemostasis analyzers within the Hospital business unit.

®

®

10



enicor GmbH

On April 1, 2020, the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity of enicor GmbH (“enicor”), the manufacturer of ClotPro , a new generation whole
blood coagulation testing system that is currently available in select European and Asia Pacific markets, for total consideration of $20.5 million, which
consisted of upfront payments of $16.6 million and the fair value of contingent consideration of $3.9 million. The contingent consideration, which could
total a maximum of $4.5 million, consists of payments related to the achievement of certain revenue and regulatory milestones. The acquisition of this
viscoelastic diagnostic device augments the Company's portfolio of hemostasis analyzers within the Hospital business unit.

Purchase Price Allocation

The Company accounted for the acquisition of enicor as a business combination, and in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations
(Topic 805), recorded the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their respective fair values as of the acquisition date. The final determination of the fair
value of certain assets and liabilities will be completed within the measurement period as required by Topic 805. As of December 26, 2020, the valuation
studies necessary to determine the fair market value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are preliminary, including the projection of the
underlying cash flows used to determine the fair value of the identified tangible, intangible and financial assets and liabilities.

The following amounts represent the preliminary determination of the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed for enicor
completed during the first nine months of fiscal 2021:

(In thousands) December 26, 2020

Inventory $ 634 
Other current assets 685 
Property, plant and equipment 289 
Intangible assets 14,090 
Goodwill 8,153 

Total assets acquired $ 23,851 
Other current liabilities 289 
Contingent consideration (current) 504 
Contingent consideration (non-current) 3,416 
Deferred tax liability 3,036 

Total liabilities assumed $ 7,245 
Net assets acquired $ 16,606 

The Company determined the identifiable intangible assets were completed technology, customer relationships and a trademark. The fair value of the
intangible assets was estimated using the income approach, and the cash flow projections were discounted using a rate of 20%. The cash flows were based
on estimates used to price the transaction, and the discount rates applied were benchmarked with reference to the implied rate of return from the transaction
model and the weighted average cost of capital. The benefits of adding a viscoelastic diagnostic device to the Company’s portfolio of hemostasis analyzers
within the Hospital business unit contributed to an acquisition price in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired for enicor, which resulted in the
establishment of goodwill. In addition, the benefits of lower cost manufacturing and complementary sales channels also contributed to the establishment of
goodwill for this acquisition. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

®
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Intangible assets acquired consist of the following:

(In thousands) Amount
Weighted-Average

Amortization Period
Completed technology $ 13,441 10
Customer relationships 347 10
Trademark 302 10
Total $ 14,090 10

Acquisition-Related Costs

The amount of acquisition-related costs incurred associated with the acquisition was $0.2 million for the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020.

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

Enicor had an immaterial impact to the Company's net revenues and net income for the period post acquisition through December 26, 2020. The unaudited
estimated pro forma impact of the results of the acquisition of enicor as if it was consummated on March 29, 2020 are immaterial.

5. DIVESTITURES

Fajardo, Puerto Rico Manufacturing Operations

On June 29, 2020, the Company sold its Fajardo, Puerto Rico, manufacturing operations to GVS, S.p.A (“GVS”), a leading provider of advanced filtration
solutions for critical applications for $15.1 million ($7.8 million, net of cash transferred). Under the terms of the agreement, Haemonetics retained all
intellectual property rights to its proprietary blood filters currently manufactured at its Fajardo facility and GVS acquired certain assets consisting primarily
of property, plant and equipment, inventory and cash and has assumed certain related liabilities. In connection with this transaction, the Company and GVS
also entered into a long-term supply and development agreement that, among other things, grants GVS exclusive rights to manufacture and supply the
blood filters currently produced at the Fajardo facility for Haemonetics. The Company also agreed to provide certain transition services to GVS, generally
for a period of up to three months depending on the nature of the service.

As a result of this transaction, Haemonetics recognized a pre-tax impairment charge in its Blood Center business unit of $1.0 million in the first quarter of
fiscal 2021 and an incremental loss of $0.4 million based on closing adjustments during the third quarter of fiscal 2021, as the carrying value of the assets
and liabilities in the asset transfer exceeded the net of the $15.1 million of cash proceeds and an additional contingent liability of $1.5 million. The disposal
group consisted of $3.3 million of inventory, $7.2 million of fixed assets, $3.2 million of other liabilities, and $0.4 million of goodwill allocated based on
fair value to the business.

U.S. Blood Donor Management Software

On July 1, 2020, the Company sold certain U.S. blood donor management software solution assets within its Blood Center business unit to the GPI Group
(“GPI”) for an upfront cash payment of $14.0 million ($13.6 million, net of working capital adjustments) and up to $14.0 million in additional
consideration contingent on the achievement of commercial milestones over the twelve month period immediately following the closing of the transaction.
The disposal group consisted of $1.4 million of accounts receivable, $0.9 million of intangible assets, other liabilities of $1.8 million and $1.4 million of
goodwill allocated based on fair value to the business. The Company recognized an $11.7 million gain upon closing of the transaction in the second quarter
of fiscal 2021 and an additional $1.5 million gain in the third quarter of fiscal 2021. To the extent the additional contingent consideration is earned and
realized in a future period then such amounts will be recorded as additional gains in such future period. The Company also agreed to provide certain
transition services to GPI, generally for a period of one to nine months depending on the nature of the service.

Inlog Holdings France

On September 18, 2020, the Company sold its wholly-owned subsidiary Inlog Holdings France SAS to Abénex Capital (“Abénex”), a private equity firm
based in France for $30.5 million ($24.5 million, net of cash transferred), of which
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$29.2 million was received at closing and $1.3 million will be received one-year from the closing date. Inlog Holdings France SAS, through its subsidiary
In Log SAS, develops and sells blood bank and hospital software solutions used predominantly in France and in several other countries outside of the U.S.
The disposal group included $2.2 million of intangible assets, $2.2 million accounts receivable, $0.3 million other assets, $3.3 million of liabilities and
$3.3 million of goodwill allocated based on the fair value of the business which impacted both the Blood Center and Hospital business units. The Company
recognized a gain of $19.8 million upon closing of the transaction in the second quarter of fiscal 2021.

6. INCOME TAXES

The Company conducts business globally and reports its results of operations in a number of foreign jurisdictions in addition to the United States. The
Company's reported tax rate is impacted by the jurisdictional mix of earnings in any given period as the foreign jurisdictions in which it operates have tax
rates that differ from the U.S. statutory tax rate.  

For the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, the Company reported income tax expense of $5.5 million and $9.8 million, respectively,
representing effective tax rates of 14.7% and 9.8%, respectively. The effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020 includes
discrete tax benefits recognized from excess stock compensation deductions of $1.0 million and $5.1 million, respectively. The effective tax rates were also
impacted by the jurisdictional mix of earnings including divestiture transactions. During the nine months ended December 26, 2020, the Company sold its
Fajardo, Puerto Rico manufacturing operations, certain U.S. blood donor management software solution assets, and its wholly-owned subsidiary Inlog
Holdings France SAS. The tax expense on divestitures, including the associated valuation allowance impacts, were included in the computation of the
annual effective tax rate. Refer to Note 5, Divestitures, for information pertaining to these divestitures.

For the three and nine months ended December 28, 2019, the Company reported an income tax provision of $7.9 million and $6.3 million, respectively,
representing effective tax rates of 21.0% and 9.6%, respectively. The effective tax rate for the nine months ended December 28, 2019 was lower than the
U.S. statutory tax rate primarily due to a discrete tax benefit recognized from excess stock compensation deductions of $3.1 million and $12.4 million,
respectively. The effective tax rates were also impacted by the jurisdictional mix of earnings and the impact of the divestiture of the Union, South Carolina
facility.

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table provides a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share computations.

 Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

 (In thousands, except per share amounts)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019

Basic EPS   
Net income $ 31,882 $ 29,895 $ 90,510 $ 58,902 
Weighted average shares 50,789 50,630 50,634 50,810 
Basic income per share $ 0.63 $ 0.59 $ 1.79 $ 1.16 
Diluted EPS     
Net income $ 31,882 $ 29,895 $ 90,510 $ 58,902 
Basic weighted average shares 50,789 50,630 50,634 50,810 
Net effect of common stock equivalents 574 1,008 600 1,185 
Diluted weighted average shares 51,363 51,638 51,234 51,995 
Diluted income per share $ 0.62 $ 0.58 $ 1.77 $ 1.13 

Basic earnings per share is calculated using the Company's weighted-average outstanding common stock. Diluted earnings per share is calculated using its
weighted-average outstanding common stock including the dilutive effect of stock awards as determined under the treasury stock method. For the three and
nine months ended December 26, 2020, weighted average shares outstanding, assuming dilution, excludes the impact of 0.4 million and 0.6 million anti-
dilutive shares, respectively. For both the three and nine months ended December 28, 2019, weighted average shares outstanding, assuming dilution,
excludes the impact of 0.2 million anti-dilutive shares.
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8. REVENUE

The Company's revenue recognition policy is to recognize revenues from product sales, software and services in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. Revenue is recognized when obligations under the terms of a contract with a customer are satisfied; this occurs with the
transfer of control of the Company’s goods or services. The Company considers revenue to be earned when all of the following criteria are met: it has a
contract with a customer that creates enforceable rights and obligations; promised products or services are identified; the transaction price, or the
consideration it expects to receive for transferring goods or providing services, is determinable and it has transferred control of the promised items to the
customer. A promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer is identified as a performance obligation. A contract’s transaction
price is allocated to each performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. Some of the Company’s
contracts have multiple performance obligations. For contracts with multiple performance obligations, the Company allocates the contract’s transaction
price to each performance obligation based on the estimated standalone selling prices of the good or service in the contract. For goods or services for which
observable standalone selling prices are not available, the Company uses an expected cost plus a margin approach to estimate the standalone selling price of
each performance obligation.

As of December 26, 2020, the Company had $17.9 million of its transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations related to executed
contracts with an original duration of one year or more. The Company expects to recognize approximately 59% of this amount as revenue within the next
twelve months and the remaining balance thereafter.

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections results in billed accounts receivable, unbilled receivables (contract assets), and customer
advances and deposits (contract liabilities) on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. The difference in timing between billing and revenue recognition
primarily occurs in software licensing arrangements, resulting in contract assets and contract liabilities.

As of December 26, 2020 and March 28, 2020, the Company had contract assets of $5.4 million and $5.0 million, respectively. The change is primarily due
to the delay in billings compared to the revenue recognized. Contract assets are classified as other current assets and other long-term assets on the
condensed consolidated balance sheets.

As of December 26, 2020 and March 28, 2020, the Company had contract liabilities of $16.7 million and $20.8 million, respectively. During the three and
nine months ended December 26, 2020, the Company recognized $2.5 million and $16.3 million, respectively, of revenue that was included in the above
March 28, 2020 contract liability balance. Contract liabilities decreased by an additional $2.5 million during the three and nine months ended December 26,
2020 as a result of the sale of certain U.S. blood donor management software solution assets and the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary Inlog Holdings
France SAS. Refer to Note 5, Divestitures for additional detail. Contract liabilities are classified as other liabilities and other long-term liabilities on the
condensed consolidated balance sheets.

9. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and include the cost of material, labor and manufacturing overhead. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method.

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
March 28, 

2020

Raw materials $ 74,437 $ 76,867 
Work-in-process 22,030 11,021 
Finished goods 203,243 182,388 
Total inventories $ 299,710 $ 270,276 

10. LEASES

Lessee Activity

During the first quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company entered into a lease for manufacturing space in Clinton, PA. The Company's current manufacturing
operations in Leetsdale, PA will be relocated. The lease term associated with the new manufacturing facility is 15 years and 7 months and includes two five
year renewal options followed by one four year renewal option. During the first quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company recorded a right-of-use asset of $11.3
million and corresponding liabilities of $15.4 million upon commencement of the lease term in May 2020. In addition, the Company recorded a $4.1
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million lease incentive receivable associated with this lease agreement which was received during the third quarter of fiscal 2021.

Lessor Activity

Assets on the Company's balance sheet classified as Haemonetics equipment primarily consists of medical devices installed at customer sites but owned by
Haemonetics. These devices are leased to customers under contractual arrangements that typically include an operating or sales-type lease as well as the
purchase and consumption of a certain level of disposable products. Sales-type leases are not significant. Contract terms vary by customer and may include
options to terminate the contract or options to extend the contract. Where devices are provided under operating lease arrangements, a substantial majority of
the entire lease revenue is variable and subject to subsequent non-lease component (disposable products) sales. The allocation of revenue between the lease
and non-lease components is based on stand-alone selling prices. Operating lease revenue represents less than 3 percent of the Company's total net sales.

11. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

On June 15, 2018, the Company entered into a credit agreement with certain lenders which provided for a $350.0 million term loan (the “Term Loan”) and
a $350.0 million revolving loan (the “Revolving Credit Facility” and together with the Term Loan, the “Credit Facilities”). The Credit Facilities expire on
June 15, 2023. Interest on the Credit Facilities is established using LIBOR plus 1.13% - 1.75%, depending on the Company's leverage ratio. Under the
Credit Facilities, the Company is required to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios specified in the credit agreement as well as other
customary non-financial affirmative and negative covenants. At December 26, 2020, $310.6 million was outstanding under the Term Loan with an effective
interest rate of 1.4%. There were no borrowings outstanding on the Revolving Credit Facility. The Company also has $26.2 million of uncommitted
operating lines of credit to fund its global operations under which there were no outstanding borrowings as of December 26, 2020.

The Company has required scheduled principal payments of $8.7 million during the remainder of fiscal 2021, $17.5 million during fiscal 2022, $214.4
million during fiscal 2023 and $70.0 million during fiscal 2024.

The Company was in compliance with the leverage and interest coverage ratios specified in the Credit Facilities as well as all other bank covenants as of
December 26, 2020.

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company manufactures, markets and sells its products globally. During the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, 38.6% and 40.7%,
respectively, of the Company's sales were generated outside the U.S., generally in foreign currencies. The Company also incurs certain manufacturing,
marketing and selling costs in international markets in local currency.

Accordingly, earnings and cash flows are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates relative to the U.S. Dollar, the
Company's reporting currency. The Company has a program in place that is designed to mitigate the exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. That program includes the use of derivative financial instruments to minimize, for a period of time, the impact on its financial results from changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company utilizes foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the anticipated cash flows from transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, primarily the Japanese Yen and the Euro, and to a lesser extent the Swiss Franc, Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar and the Mexican
Peso. This does not eliminate the impact of the volatility of foreign exchange rates. However, because the Company generally enters into forward contracts
one year out, rates are fixed for a one-year period, thereby facilitating financial planning and resource allocation.
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Designated Foreign Currency Hedge Contracts

All of the Company's designated foreign currency hedge contracts as of December 26, 2020 and March 28, 2020 were cash flow hedges under ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”). The Company records the effective portion of any change in the fair value of designated foreign currency hedge
contracts in other comprehensive income until the related third-party transaction occurs. Once the related third-party transaction occurs, the Company
reclassifies the effective portion of any related gain or loss on the designated foreign currency hedge contracts to earnings. In the event the hedged
forecasted transaction does not occur, or it becomes probable that it will not occur, the Company would reclassify the amount of any gain or loss on the
related cash flow hedge to earnings at that time. The Company had designated foreign currency hedge contracts outstanding in the contract amount of $78.8
million as of December 26, 2020 and $93.8 million as of March 28, 2020. At December 26, 2020, a loss of $1.4 million, net of tax, will be reclassified to
earnings within the next twelve months. Substantially all currency cash flow hedges outstanding as of December 26, 2020 mature within twelve months.

Non-Designated Foreign Currency Contracts

The Company manages its exposure to changes in foreign currency on a consolidated basis to take advantage of offsetting transactions and balances. It uses
foreign currency forward contracts as a part of its strategy to manage exposure related to foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities.
These foreign currency forward contracts are entered into for periods consistent with currency transaction exposures, generally one month. They are not
designated as cash flow or fair value hedges under ASC 815. These forward contracts are marked-to-market with changes in fair value recorded to
earnings. The Company had non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts under ASC 815 outstanding in the contract amount of $90.5 million as of
December 26, 2020 and $98.0 million as of March 28, 2020.

Interest Rate Swaps

On June 15, 2018, the Company entered into Credit Facilities which provided for a $350.0 million Term Loan and a $350.0 million Revolving Credit
Facility. Under the terms of the Credit Facilities, interest is established using LIBOR plus 1.13% - 1.75%. As a result, the Company's earnings and cash
flows are exposed to interest rate risk from changes to LIBOR. Part of the Company's interest rate risk management strategy includes the use of interest rate
swaps to mitigate its exposure to changes in variable interest rates. The Company's objective in using interest rate swaps is to add stability to interest
expense and to manage and reduce the risk inherent in interest rate fluctuations.

In August 2018, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements (the “Swaps”) to pay an average fixed rate of 2.80% on a total notional value
of $241.9 million of debt. As a result of the Swaps, 70% of the Term Loan previously exposed to interest rate risk from changes in LIBOR is now fixed at a
rate of 4.05%. The Swaps mature on June 15, 2023. The Company designated the Swaps as cash flow hedges of variable interest rate risk associated with
$345.6 million of indebtedness. For the nine months ended December 26, 2020, a gain of $0.3 million, net of tax, was recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss to recognize the effective portion of the fair value of the Swaps that qualify as cash flow hedges.
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Trade Receivables

In the ordinary course of business, the Company grants trade credit to its customers on normal credit terms. In an effort to reduce its credit risk, the
Company (i) establishes credit limits for all customers, (ii) performs ongoing credit evaluations of customers’ financial condition, (iii) monitors the
payment history and aging of customers’ receivables, and (iv) monitors open orders against an individual customer’s outstanding receivable balance.

The Company's allowance for credit losses is maintained for trade accounts receivable based on the expected collectability, the historical collection
experience, the length of time an account is outstanding, the financial position of the customer and information provided by credit rating services. Effective
March 29, 2020, the Company adopted Update No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326) which requires consideration of events or
circumstances indicating historic collection rates may not be indicative of future collectability. For example, potential adverse changes to customer liquidity
from new macroeconomic events such as the COVID-19 pandemic must be taken into consideration. To date, the Company has not experienced significant
customer payment defaults, or identified other significant collectability concerns as a result of the pandemic.

The following is a rollforward of the allowance for credit losses:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
(In thousands) December 26, 2020 December 28, 2019 December 26, 2020 December 28, 2019

Beginning balance $ 2,699 $ 4,108 $ 3,824 $ 3,937 
    Credit (gain) loss (95) 229 (838) 515 
    Write-offs (79) (240) (461) (355)
Ending balance $ 2,525 $ 4,097 $ 2,525 $ 4,097 

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

The following table presents the effect of the Company's derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges and those not designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815 in its condensed consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income for the nine months ended December 26, 2020:

(In thousands)

Amount of Gain
(Loss) Recognized

in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Reclassified

from Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss into

Earnings

Location in
Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income

Amount of Gain
(Loss) Excluded

from
Effectiveness

Testing

Location in
Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income

Designated foreign currency hedge
contracts, net of tax $ 1,378 $ (1,538)

Net revenues, COGS
and SG&A $ (671)

Interest and other
expense, net

Non-designated foreign currency
hedge contracts $ — $ — 

 
$ (5,218)

Interest and other
expense, net

Designated interest rate swaps, net
of tax $ (2,996) $ (3,326)

Interest and other
expense, net $ — 

The Company did not have fair value hedges or net investment hedges outstanding as of December 26, 2020 or March 28, 2020. As of December 26, 2020,
no material deferred tax assets were recognized for designated foreign currency hedges.

ASC 815 requires all derivative instruments to be recognized at their fair values as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. The Company determines
the fair value of its derivative instruments using the framework prescribed by ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, by considering the
estimated amount it would receive or pay to sell or transfer these instruments at the reporting date and by taking into account current interest rates, currency
exchange rates, current interest rate curves, interest rate volatilities, the creditworthiness of the counterparty for assets, and its creditworthiness for
liabilities. In certain instances, the Company may utilize financial models to measure fair value. Generally, it uses inputs that include quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; other observable inputs
for the asset or liability; and inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means. As of December 26,
2020, the Company has classified its derivative
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assets and liabilities within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy prescribed by ASC 815, as discussed below, because these observable inputs are available for
substantially the full term of its derivative instruments.

The following tables present the fair value of the Company's derivative instruments as they appear in its condensed consolidated balance sheets as of
December 26, 2020 and March 28, 2020:

(In thousands)
Location in Condensed Consolidated

Balance Sheets
As of As of

December 26, 2020 March 28, 2020

Derivative Assets:    
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts Other current assets $ 191 $ 839 
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts Other current assets 69 377 
  $ 260 $ 1,216 
Derivative Liabilities:    
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts Other current liabilities $ 919 $ 1,854 
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts Other current liabilities 206 1,435 
Designated interest rate swaps Other current liabilities 5,697 5,581 
Designated interest rate swaps Other long-term liabilities 6,323 9,475 
  $ 13,145 $ 18,345 

Other Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the exit price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability, using assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. The fair value guidance establishes the following three-level hierarchy used for measuring fair value:

• Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities.
• Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are other observable inputs, including quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities and

market-corroborated inputs.
• Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs based on management’s best estimate of inputs market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, including assumptions about risk.

The Company's money market funds carried at fair value are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy because they are valued using quoted
market prices.
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Fair Value Measured on a Recurring Basis

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following as of December 26, 2020 and March 28, 2020.

As of December 26, 2020
(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets    
Money market funds $ 79,773 $ — $ — $ 79,773 
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 191 — 191 
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 69 — 69 
 $ 79,773 $ 260 $ — $ 80,033 
Liabilities    
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts $ — $ 919 $ — $ 919 
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 206 — 206 
Designated interest rate swaps — 12,020 — 12,020 
Contingent consideration — — 3,920 3,920 
 $ — $ 13,145 $ 3,920 $ 17,065 

As of March 28, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Money market funds $ 44,564 $ — $ — $ 44,564 
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 839 — 839 
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 377 — 377 
 $ 44,564 $ 1,216 $ — $ 45,780 
Liabilities    
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts $ — $ 1,854 $ — $ 1,854 
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 1,435 — 1,435 
Designated interest rate swaps — 15,056 — 15,056 

$ — $ 18,345 $ — $ 18,345 

Foreign currency hedge contracts - The fair value of foreign currency hedge contracts was measured using significant other observable inputs and valued
by reference to over-the-counter quoted market prices for similar instruments. The Company does not believe that the fair value of these derivative
instruments differs significantly from the amount that could be realized upon settlement or maturity, or that the changes in fair value will have a significant
effect on its results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Interest rate swaps - The fair values of interest rate swaps are measured using the present value of expected future cash flows using market-based
observable inputs, including credit risk and interest rate yield curves. The Company does not believe that the fair values of these derivative instruments
differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon settlement or maturity, or that the changes in fair value will have a significant effect on its
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Contingent consideration - The fair value of contingent consideration liabilities is based on significant unobservable inputs, including management
estimates and assumptions, and is measured based on the probability-weighted present value of the payments expected to be made. Accordingly, the fair
value of contingent consideration has been classified as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. The recurring level 3 fair value measurements of contingent
consideration liabilities include the following significant unobservable inputs:
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Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable
(In thousands) December 26, 2020 Technique Input Range

Revenue-based payments $ 1,920 Discounted cash flow
Discount rate 8.5%

Projected year of payment 2021 - 2023

Regulatory-based payment $ 2,000 Discounted cash flow
Discount rate 4.9%

Probability of payment 0% - 100%
Projected year of payment 2021 - 2023

As of December 26, 2020, the maximum potential contingent consideration that the Company could be required to pay is $4.5 million. The fair value of
contingent consideration associated with acquisitions was $3.9 million at December 26, 2020. As of December 26, 2020, $0.5 million was included in other
liabilities and $3.4 million was included in other long-term liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet.

A reconciliation of the change in the fair value of contingent consideration is included in the following table:

(In thousands)
Balance at March 28, 2020 $ — 
Acquisition date fair value of contingent consideration 3,920 
Change in fair value — 
Balance at December 26, 2020 $ 3,920 

Other Fair Value Disclosures

The Term Loan, which is carried at amortized cost, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to various legal proceedings and claims arising out of the ordinary course of its business. The Company believes there are no
proceedings or claims pending against it the ultimate resolution of which could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of
operations. At each reporting period, the Company evaluates whether or not a potential loss amount or a potential range of loss is probable and reasonably
estimable under ASC 450, Contingencies, for all matters. Legal costs are expensed as incurred.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the District of Massachusetts. The subpoena
requests certain documents regarding the Company’s apheresis and autotransfusion devices and disposables, including documents relating to product
complaints and adverse event reporting, regulatory clearances and product design changes, among other matters. The Company is fully cooperating with
this inquiry.

14. SEGMENT AND ENTERPRISE-WIDE INFORMATION

The Company determines its reportable segments by first identifying its operating segments, and then by assessing whether any components of these
segments constitute a business for which discrete financial information is available and where segment management regularly reviews the operating results
of that component. Historically, the Company's operating segments were based primarily on geography. Effective as of March 31, 2019, the Company
completed the transition of its operating structure to three global business units and accordingly, reorganized its reporting structure to align with its three
global business units and the information that will be regularly reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker.

Following the reorganization, the Company's reportable segments are as follows:

• Plasma
• Blood Center
• Hospital

Management measures and evaluates the operating segments based on operating income. Management excludes certain corporate expenses from segment
operating income. In addition, certain amounts that management considers to be non-
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recurring or non-operational are excluded from segment operating income because management evaluates the operating results of the segments excluding
such items. These items include restructuring and turnaround costs, deal amortization, gains on divestitures and sale of assets, asset impairments and other
related charges, accelerated depreciation and related costs, costs related to compliance with the European Union Medical Device Regulation, transaction
costs and certain legal charges. Although these amounts are excluded from segment operating income, as applicable, they are included in the reconciliations
that follow. Management measures and evaluates the Company's net revenues and operating income using internally derived standard currency exchange
rates that remain constant from year to year; therefore, segment information is presented on this basis.

Selected information by reportable segment is presented below:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
Net revenues

Plasma $ 102,154 $ 120,997 $ 249,587 $ 348,141 
Blood Center 80,417 85,314 234,446 246,977 
Hospital 52,334 50,753 148,927 147,602 

Net revenues by business unit 234,905 257,064 632,960 742,720 
Service 4,972 5,197 15,396 15,339 

Effect of exchange rates 494 (3,291) (2,922) (8,072)
Net revenues $ 240,371 $ 258,970 $ 645,434 $ 749,987 

 Reflects revenue for service, maintenance and parts

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
Segment operating income

Plasma $ 52,673 $ 59,343 $ 129,846 $ 169,844 
Blood Center 36,424 42,197 108,926 121,124 
Hospital 22,430 20,593 61,672 60,360 

Segment operating income 111,527 122,133 300,444 351,328 
  Corporate expenses (63,202) (63,080) (185,005) (188,363)
  Effect of exchange rates 4,286 2,521 8,644 7,791 
  Deal amortization (7,805) (5,772) (24,204) (17,681)
  Restructuring and turnaround costs (3,143) (7,798) (11,583) (13,582)
  Transaction costs — — (3,063) — 
  PCS2 accelerated depreciation and related costs (1,146) (6,649) (3,332) (18,708)
  European Medical Device Regulation costs and other (1,207) (448) (2,696) (304)
  Impairment of assets and other related charges — — (896) (51,220)
  Gains on divestitures and sale of assets 1,115 — 32,613 8,083 
Operating income $ 40,425 $ 40,907 $ 110,922 $ 77,344 

 Reflects shared service expenses including quality and regulatory, customer and field service, research and development, manufacturing and supply chain, as well as
other corporate support functions.

Management reviews revenue based on the reportable segments noted above. Although these reportable segments are primarily product-based, they differ
from the Company’s product line revenues for Plasma products and services and Blood Center products and services. Specifically, the Blood Center
reportable segment includes plasma products utilized for collection in blood centers primarily for transfusion purposes. Additionally, product line revenues
also include service revenues which are excluded from the reportable segments.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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Net revenues by product line are as follows:

 Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019

Plasma products and services $ 123,510 $ 141,231 $ 309,933 $ 406,825 
Blood Center products and services 62,787 66,126 182,687 191,648 
Hospital products and services 54,074 51,613 152,814 151,514 
Net revenues $ 240,371 $ 258,970 $ 645,434 $ 749,987 

Net revenues generated in the Company's principle operating regions on a reported basis are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019

United States $ 147,607 $ 167,238 $ 382,600 $ 485,493 
Japan 20,854 19,268 57,330 55,111 
Europe 41,874 40,984 123,541 115,811 
Asia 29,050 29,436 77,602 88,269 
Other 986 2,044 4,361 5,303 
Net revenues $ 240,371 $ 258,970 $ 645,434 $ 749,987 

15. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss are as follows:

(In thousands) Foreign Currency Defined Benefit Plans
Net Unrealized

Gain/Loss on Derivatives Total

Balance as of March 28, 2020 $ (31,100) $ (209) $ (13,826) $ (45,135)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 12,031 — (1,618) 10,413 
Amounts reclassified from Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss — — 4,864 4,864 
Net current period other comprehensive income 12,031 — 3,246 15,277 
Balance as of December 26, 2020 $ (19,069) $ (209) $ (10,580) $ (29,858)

 Presented net of income taxes, the amounts of which are insignificant.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with both our
interim condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto which appear elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our annual
consolidated financial statements, notes thereto and the MD&A contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 28, 2020.
The following discussion may contain forward-looking statements and should be read in conjunction with the “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-
Looking Information” in this discussion.

Introduction

Haemonetics is a global healthcare company dedicated to providing a suite of innovative hematology products and solutions to customers to help improve
patient care and reduce the cost of healthcare. Our technology addresses important medical markets including blood and plasma component collection, the
surgical suite, and hospital transfusion services. When used in this report, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and “the Company” mean Haemonetics.

(1)

(1)

(1)
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We view our operations and manage our business in three principal reporting segments: Plasma, Blood Center and Hospital. For that purpose, “Plasma”
includes plasma collection devices and disposables, plasma donor management software, and anticoagulant and saline sold to plasma customers. “Blood
Center” includes blood collection and processing devices and disposables for red cells, platelets and whole blood. “Hospital”, which is comprised of
Hemostasis Management, Cell Salvage and Transfusion Management products, includes devices and methodologies for measuring coagulation
characteristics of blood, surgical blood salvage systems, specialized blood cell processing systems and disposables and blood transfusion management
software.

We believe that Plasma and Hospital have growth potential, while Blood Center competes in challenging markets which require us to manage the business
differently, including reducing costs, shrinking the scope of the current product line, and evaluating opportunities to exit unfavorable customer contracts.

Recent Developments

Acquisitions

Cardiva Medical, Inc.

On January 17, 2021, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Cardiva Medical, Inc., (“Cardiva”), an industry-
leading manufacturer of vascular closure systems based in Santa Clara, California. In connection with this acquisition, we will pay upfront consideration of
$475.0 million in cash, subject to customary working capital and certain other adjustments as of the closing of the transaction, as well as up to $35.0
million in additional contingent consideration payable over the next two years based on sales growth. The transaction is not subject to a financing
contingency, and we expect to finance the transaction through a combination of our cash on hand, revolving credit facility and an additional $150.0 million
term loan anticipated to be borrowed under our existing credit facility. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2021.

Cardiva’s portfolio includes two catheter-based vascular access site closure devices. The VASCADE  vascular closure system is designed for “small-bore”
femoral arterial and venous closure, generally used in interventional cardiology and peripheral vascular procedures. The VASCADE MVP  vascular
closure system is designed for “mid-bore” multi-access femoral venous closure, generally used in electrophysiology procedures, and is the only U.S. Food
and Drug Administration (“FDA”) approved closure device for use following cardiac ablation procedures requiring two or more access sites within the
same vessel. The addition of the VASCADE portfolio to our Hospital business unit includes products with demonstrated benefits and enhances penetration
into the large and growing interventional cardiology and electrophysiology markets.

HAS Intellectual Property

In January 2021, we entered into an agreement to acquire certain intellectual property owned by HemoAssay Science and Technology (Suzhou) Co. Ltd., a
China-incorporated company, and its affiliates (collectively, “HemoAssay”) underlying their HAS viscoelastic diagnostic devices, related assays and
disposables. We previously entered into exclusive manufacturing and distribution agreements with HemoAssay pursuant to which we have exclusive rights
to commercialize HemoAssay’s HAS devices in China. In connection with the transaction, we have agreed to pay up to $15.0 million to HemoAssay in
contingent consideration based on certain developmental and manufacturing based milestones. These products augment our portfolio of hemostasis
analyzers within the Hospital business unit.

enicor GmbH

On April 1, 2020, we acquired enicor GmbH (“enicor”), the manufacturer of ClotPro , a new generation whole blood coagulation testing system that is
currently available in select European and Asia Pacific markets, for total consideration of $20.5 million, which consisted of upfront payments of $16.6
million and the fair value of contingent consideration of $3.9 million. The contingent consideration, which could total a maximum of $4.5 million, consists
of payments related to the achievement of certain revenue and regulatory milestones. The acquisition of this viscoelastic diagnostic device augments the
Company's portfolio of hemostasis analyzers within the Hospital business unit.

Refer to Note 4, Acquisitions, to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional
information.

®
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Persona

On October 2, 2020, we received FDA 510(k) clearance for our NexSys PCS  with Persona technology. NexSys PCS with Persona technology uses a
percent plasma nomogram that customizes plasma collection based on an individual donor's body composition. The new, proprietary Persona technology
strengthens the NexSys PCS value proposition and reinforces our commitment to supporting the plasma industry.

COVID-19

We continue to closely manage the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business results of operations and financial condition. The progression of
the COVID-19 pandemic during fiscal 2021 significantly impacted our financial results. While the duration and additional implications remain uncertain,
the full extent of the impact will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be accurately predicted, including new information
that may emerge concerning COVID-19, the actions taken to contain it or treat its impact and the economic impact on local, regional, national and
international markets.

Our priorities continue to be the safety of our employees and business continuity while continuing to invest in growth opportunities. Our manufacturing and
supply chain remain operational without significant disruptions and we continue to operate in all of our markets.

Although the pace and timing of the recovery is uncertain, we remain confident in the long term strength of the end markets that we serve across our three
business units. For additional information regarding the expected impacts to our business units and the various risks posed by the COVID-19 pandemic,
refer to Results of Operations within Management's Discussion and Analysis and Risk Factors contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Divestitures

Fajardo, Puerto Rico Manufacturing Operations

On June 29, 2020, we sold our Fajardo, Puerto Rico, manufacturing operations to GVS, S.p.A (“GVS”), a leading provider of advanced filtration solutions
for critical applications for $15.1 million ($7.8 million, net of cash transferred). Under the terms of the agreement, Haemonetics retained all intellectual
property rights to its proprietary blood filters currently manufactured at its Fajardo facility and GVS acquired certain assets consisting primarily of
property, plant and equipment, inventory and cash and has assumed certain related liabilities. In addition, the two parties entered into a long-term supply
and development agreement that, among other things, grants GVS exclusive rights to manufacture and supply the blood filters currently produced at the
Fajardo facility for Haemonetics. This divestiture will allow Haemonetics to utilize GVS' experience and scale in filtration to deliver reliable, cost-efficient
products to its customers.

U.S. Blood Donor Management Software

On July 1, 2020, we sold certain U.S. blood donor management software solution assets within our Blood Center business unit to the GPI Group for an
upfront cash payment of $14.0 million ($13.6 million, net of working capital adjustments) and recognized a $13.2 million gain on the sale. In addition to
the cash received upon closing, we may also receive up to an additional $14.0 million, contingent upon the achievement of certain performance measures.
This divestiture better positions Haemonetics for sustainable growth by enabling the Company to focus on its core capabilities while delivering quality
products and services where it brings distinct value.

Inlog Holdings France

On September 18, 2020, we sold our wholly-owned subsidiary Inlog Holdings France SAS to Abénex Capital (“Abénex”), a private equity firm based in
France for $30.5 million ($24.5 million, net of cash transferred) and recognized a gain of $19.8 million. Inlog Holdings France SAS, through its subsidiary
In Log SAS, develops and sells blood bank and hospital software solutions used predominantly in France and in several other countries outside of the U.S.
This divestiture and the sale of our U.S. blood donor management software better position us to focus on our growth segments.

Refer to Note 5, Divestitures, to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional
information pertaining to these divestitures.
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Restructuring Program

In July 2019, our Board of Directors approved a new Operational Excellence Program (the “2020 Program”) and delegated authority to management to
determine the detail of the initiatives that will comprise the program. The 2020 Program is designed to improve operational performance and reduce cost
principally in our manufacturing and supply chain operations. We estimate that we will incur aggregate charges between $60 million and $70 million in
connection with the 2020 Program. These charges, the majority of which will result in cash outlays, including severance and other employee costs, will be
incurred as the specific actions required to execute these initiatives are identified and approved and are expected to be substantially completed by the end of
fiscal 2023. Savings from the 2020 Program are targeted to reach $80 million to $90 million on an annualized basis once the program is completed. During
the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, we incurred $3.1 million and $11.1 million, respectively, of restructuring and turnaround costs under
this program.

Financial Summary

 Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands, except per share data)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
% Increase/
(Decrease)

December 26,
2020

December 28,
2019

% Increase/
(Decrease)

Net revenues $ 240,371 $ 258,970 (7.2)% $ 645,434 $ 749,987 (13.9)%
Gross profit $ 120,257 $ 128,050 (6.1)% $ 316,031 $ 370,956 (14.8)%

% of net revenues 50.0 % 49.4 % 49.0 % 49.5 %
Operating expenses $ 79,832 $ 87,143 (8.4)% $ 205,109 $ 293,612 (30.1)%
Operating income $ 40,425 $ 40,907 (1.2)% $ 110,922 $ 77,344 43.4 %

% of net revenues 16.8 % 15.8 % 17.2 % 10.3 %
Interest and other expense, net $ (3,051) $ (3,078) (0.9)% $ (10,612) $ (12,152) (12.7)%
Income before provision for income taxes $ 37,374 $ 37,829 (1.2)% $ 100,310 $ 65,192 53.9 %
Provision for income taxes $ 5,492 $ 7,934 (30.8)% $ 9,800 $ 6,290 55.8 %

% of pre-tax income 14.7 % 21.0 % 9.8 % 9.6 %
Net income $ 31,882 $ 29,895 6.6 % $ 90,510 $ 58,902 53.7 %

% of net revenues 13.3 % 11.5 % 14.0 % 7.9 %
Net income per share - basic $ 0.63 $ 0.59 6.8 % $ 1.79 $ 1.16 54.3 %
Net income per share - diluted $ 0.62 $ 0.58 6.9 % $ 1.77 $ 1.13 56.6 %

Net revenues decreased 7.2% and 13.9% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods of
fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, net revenues decreased 8.5% and 14.5% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020,
respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2020. Revenue decreases in Plasma due to the COVID-19 pandemic primarily drove the overall
decrease in revenue during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020.

Operating income decreased during the three months ended December 26, 2020, as compared with the same period of fiscal 2020, due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on revenue and gross margin, net of savings in operating expenses from cost containment actions taken to offset these negative
effects. Operating income increased during the nine months ended December 26, 2020, as compared with the same period of fiscal 2020, due to the gains
on divestitures, incremental savings from the 2020 Program and the absence of impairment charges associated with the divestiture of our plasma liquid
solutions operations in the prior year.

Management's Use of Non-GAAP Measures

Management uses non-GAAP financial measures, in addition to financial measures in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), to monitor the financial performance of the business, make informed business decisions, establish budgets and
forecast future results. These non-GAAP financial measures should be considered supplemental to, and not a substitute for, our reported financial results
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current
and prior year periods using a constant currency conversion rate. We have provided this non-GAAP financial measure because we believe it provides
meaningful information regarding our results on a consistent and comparable basis for the periods presented.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Revenues by Geography

 Three Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019 Reported growth Currency impact
Constant currency

growth

United States $ 147,608 $ 167,238 (11.7)% — % (11.7)%
International 92,763 91,732 1.1 % 4.0 % (2.9)%
Net revenues $ 240,371 $ 258,970 (7.2)% 1.3 % (8.5)%

Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year periods using a constant currency. See “Management's Use of
Non-GAAP Measures.”

 Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019 Reported growth Currency impact
Constant currency

growth

United States $ 382,601 $ 485,493 (21.2)% — % (21.2)%
International 262,833 264,494 (0.6)% 2.6 % (3.2)%
Net revenues $ 645,434 $ 749,987 (13.9)% 0.6 % (14.5)%

Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year periods using a constant currency. See “Management's Use of
Non-GAAP Measures.”

Our principal operations are in the U.S, Europe, Japan and other parts of Asia. Our products are marketed in approximately 85 countries around the world
through a combination of our direct sales force, independent distributors and agents. Our revenue generated outside the U.S. was 38.6% and 40.7%,
respectively, of total net revenues during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, as compared with 35.4% and 35.3%, respectively, during the
three and nine months ended December 28, 2019. International sales are generally conducted in local currencies, primarily Japanese Yen, Euro, Chinese
Yuan and Australian Dollars. Our results of operations are impacted by changes in foreign exchange rates, particularly in the value of the Yen, Euro and
Australian Dollar relative to the U.S. Dollar. We have placed foreign currency hedges to mitigate our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations.

Please see the section entitled “Foreign Exchange” in this discussion for a more complete explanation of how foreign currency affects our business and our
strategy for managing this exposure.

 (1)

(1) 

 (1)

(1) 
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Net Revenues by Business Unit

 Three Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019 Reported growth Currency impact
Constant currency

growth 

Plasma $ 101,934 $ 120,420 (15.4)% 0.2 % (15.6)%
Blood Center 80,920 83,411 (3.0)% 2.7 % (5.7)%
Hospital 52,651 50,266 4.7 % 1.6 % 3.1 %
Service 4,866 4,873 (0.1)% 4.2 % (4.3)%
Net revenues $ 240,371 $ 258,970 (7.2)% 1.3 % (8.5)%

Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year periods using a constant currency. See “Management's Use of
Non-GAAP Measures.”

 Hospital revenue includes Hemostasis Management revenue of $28.5 million and $24.7 million during the three months ended December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019, respectively.
Hemostasis Management revenue increased 15.2% in the third quarter of fiscal 2021, as compared with the same period of fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, Hemostasis
Management revenue increased 14.2% in the third quarter of fiscal 2021, as compared with the same period of fiscal 2020.

 Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019 Reported growth Currency impact
Constant currency

growth 

Plasma $ 248,553 $ 346,767 (28.3)% — % (28.3)%
Blood Center 233,622 241,196 (3.1)% 2.0 % (5.1)%
Hospital 148,468 147,665 0.5 % (0.4)% 0.9 %
Service 14,791 14,359 3.0 % 2.6 % 0.4 %
Net revenues $ 645,434 $ 749,987 (13.9)% 0.6 % (14.5)%

Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year periods using a constant currency. See “Management's Use of
Non-GAAP Measures.”

 Hospital revenue includes Hemostasis Management revenue of $78.5 million and $73.9 million during the nine months ended December 26, 2020 and December 28, 2019, respectively.
Hemostasis Management revenue increased 6.2% in the first nine months of fiscal 2021, as compared with the same period of fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, Hemostasis
Management revenue increased 7.7% in the first nine months of fiscal 2021, as compared with the same period of fiscal 2020.

Plasma

Plasma revenue decreased 15.4% and 28.3% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods
of fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, Plasma revenue decreased 15.6% and 28.3% during the three and nine months ended December 26,
2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2020. This revenue decrease during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020
was driven by a decline in the volume of plasma disposables, primarily in the U.S., due to the COVID-19 pandemic and declines in plasma liquid solutions
as a result of certain strategic exits within our liquid solutions business. Additionally, declines in software revenue due to a one time favorable impact in the
prior year period also contributed to the decrease during the nine months ended December 26, 2020.

While we experienced growth rate improvements during the three months ended December 26, 2020 compared with the second quarter of fiscal 2021, the
timing of plasma collection recovery remains uncertain and we anticipate a continued negative impact from COVID-19 on our fiscal 2021 Plasma results.
We continue to view the impacts of the pandemic on plasma collection as temporary and remain confident in the strength of the plasma end market growth
as the long-term global demand for plasma-derived pharmaceuticals is expected to continue.

(1)

(2)

(1) 

(2)

(1)

(2)

(1) 

(2)
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Blood Center

Blood Center revenue decreased 3.0% and 3.1% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with the same
periods of fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, Blood Center revenue decreased 5.7% and 5.1% during the three and nine months ended
December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2020. These decreases were primarily driven by continued declines in whole
blood disposables and the divestiture of certain blood donor management software solution assets, partially offset by increases in apheresis revenue,
including distributor stocking orders in the first quarter of fiscal 2021, despite certain customers conversions to alternative sources of supply. The expected
impact of the loss of this apheresis business is an incremental revenue decline of approximately $17.0 million in fiscal 2021 as compared with fiscal 2020.

While we have not yet experienced the reversal of the large stocking orders made by distributors and blood collectors during the first quarter of fiscal 2021
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we may experience a partial reversal in future periods.

Hospital

Hospital revenue increased 4.7% and 0.5% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods of
fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, Hospital revenue increased 3.1% and 0.9% during the three and nine months ended December 26,
2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2020. The increase during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020 was
primarily due to an increase in TEG disposables revenue in the U.S. and equipment sales in Europe. These increases were partially offset by declines in
Cell Salvage revenue. The divestiture of certain blood bank and hospital software solution assets also contributed to the decline during the three months
ended December 26, 2020.

During the nine months ended December 26, 2020, revenue in the Hospital business unit was negatively impacted by COVID-19. We experienced these
declines primarily in China and the U.S. However, we had consistent improvement in the second and third quarters of fiscal 2021 in both markets as
restrictions in China eased and hospitals in the U.S. experienced an increase in procedure volume. We believe that the demand for our hospital products is
inherently strong and that procedure volumes will continue to improve with a return to normal levels in future periods.

Gross Profit

 Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
% Increase/
(Decrease)

December 26,
2020

December 28,
2019

% Increase/
(Decrease)

Gross profit $ 120,257 $ 128,050 (6.1)% $ 316,031 $ 370,956 (14.8)%
% of net revenues 50.0 % 49.4 %  49.0 % 49.5 %  

Gross profit decreased 6.1% and 14.8% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods of
fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, gross profit decreased 8.4% and 15.6% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020,
respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2020. The decrease in gross profit margin during the three and nine months ended December 26,
2020 was primarily driven by decreased volumes,
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unfavorable product mix, higher operational costs and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and recent divestitures. The decline was partially offset by
productivity savings from the 2020 Program and lower depreciation expense.

Operating Expenses

 Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
% Increase/
(Decrease)

December 26,
2020

December 28,
2019

% Increase/
(Decrease)

Research and development $ 7,501 $ 7,000 7.2 % $ 22,014 $ 21,909 0.5 %
% of net revenues 3.1 % 2.7 %  3.4 % 2.9 %  

Selling, general and administrative $ 73,446 $ 78,267 (6.2)% $ 214,680 $ 229,189 (6.3)%
% of net revenues 30.6 % 30.2 %  33.3 % 30.6 %  

Impairment of assets $ — $ 1,876 (100.0)% $ 1,028 $ 50,597 (98.0)%
% of net revenues — % 0.7 % 0.2 % 6.7 %

Gains on divestitures and sale of assets $ (1,115) $ — n/m $ (32,613) $ (8,083) n/m
% of net revenues (0.5)% — % (5.1)% (1.1)%

Total operating expenses $ 79,832 $ 87,143 (8.4)% $ 205,109 $ 293,612 (30.1)%
% of net revenues 33.2 % 33.6 %  31.8 % 39.1 %  

Research and Development

Research and development expenses increased 7.2% and 0.5% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with
the same periods of fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, research and development expenses increased 6.9% and 0.6% during the three and
nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2020. The increase during the three and nine months
ended December 26, 2020 was due to continued investments, primarily in our Hospital Business unit as well as increased spend related to a recent
acquisition. The increases were partially offset by cost savings primarily related to the 2020 Program.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 6.2% and 6.3% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as
compared with the same periods of fiscal 2020. Without the effect of foreign exchange, selling, general, and administrative expenses decreased 7.3% and
6.5% during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2020. These decreases were
due to cost containment actions taken to offset the negative effects related to the COVID-19 pandemic, a reduction in variable compensation and
incremental productivity savings from the 2020 Program. These decreases were partially offset by continued investments and higher transaction costs.

Impairment of assets

We recognized impairment charges of $1.0 million during the nine months ended December 26, 2020 in connection with the sale of our Fajardo, Puerto
Rico, manufacturing operations. There were no impairments recognized during the three months ended December 26, 2020. During the nine months ended
December 28, 2019 we recognized $50.6 million of impairment charges primarily in connection with the sale of our Union, South Carolina facility. During
the three months ended December 28, 2019, we recognized an additional $1.9 million of other asset impairments.
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Gains on divestitures

We recognized gains on divestitures of $1.1 million and $32.6 million, respectively, during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020. Refer to
Note 5, Divestitures, to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information
pertaining to these divestitures. We recognized gains on sale of assets of $8.1 million during the nine months ended December 28, 2019 due to the sale of
assets associated with our Braintree corporate headquarters. There were no gains on sale of assets during the three months ended December 28, 2019.

Interest and Other Expense, Net

Interest expense from our $350.0 million term loan and $350.0 million revolving loan constitutes the majority of our interest and other expenses. During
the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, our interest expense associated with this debt declined by $1.6 million and $4.8 million, respectively,
despite higher loan balances in the current year period due to a decrease in the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate on total debt outstanding as
of December 26, 2020 was 1.4%.

Income Taxes

We conduct business globally and report our results of operations in a number of foreign jurisdictions in addition to the United States. Our reported tax rate
is impacted by the jurisdictional mix of earnings in any given period as the foreign jurisdictions in which we operate have tax rates that differ from the U.S.
statutory tax rate.  

For the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, we reported income tax expense of $5.5 million and $9.8 million, respectively, representing
effective tax rates of 14.7% and 9.8%, respectively. The effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020 includes discrete tax
benefits recognized from excess stock compensation deductions of $1.0 million and $5.1 million, respectively. The effective tax rates were also impacted
by the jurisdictional mix of earnings including divestiture transactions. During the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, we sold our Fajardo,
Puerto Rico manufacturing operations, certain U.S. blood donor management software solution assets, and our wholly-owned subsidiary Inlog Holdings
France SAS. The tax expense on divestitures, including the associated valuation allowance impacts, were included in the computation of the annual
effective tax rate. Refer to Note 5, Divestitures, to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
information pertaining to these divestitures.

For the three and nine months ended December 28, 2019, we reported an income tax provision of $7.9 million and $6.3 million, respectively, representing
effective tax rates of 21.0% and 9.6%, respectively. The effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended December 28, 2019 was lower than the U.S.
statutory tax rate primarily due to a discrete tax benefit recognized from excess stock compensation deductions of $3.1 million and $12.4 million,
respectively. The effective tax rates were also impacted by the jurisdictional mix of earnings and the impact of the divestiture of the Union, South Carolina
facility in the first quarter of fiscal 2020.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table contains certain key performance indicators we believe depict our liquidity and cash flow position:

(Dollars in thousands)
December 26,

2020
March 28,

2020

Cash & cash equivalents $ 189,002 $ 137,311 
Working capital $ 473,964 $ 328,817 
Current ratio 3.4 2.2 
Net debt $ (120,774) $ (245,182)
Days sales outstanding (DSO) 55 62 
Inventory turnover 1.3 1.7 

Net debt position is the sum of cash and cash equivalents less total debt.

In July 2019, our Board of Directors approved the 2020 Program. We estimate that we will incur aggregate charges between $60 million and $70 million in
connection with the 2020 Program. These charges, the majority of which will result in cash outlays, including severance and other employee costs, will be
incurred as the specific actions required to execute these initiatives are identified and approved and are expected to be substantially completed by the end of
fiscal 2023. During the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, we incurred $3.1 million and $11.1 million, respectively, of restructuring and
turnaround costs under this program.

(1)

(1)
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Our primary sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, internally generated cash flow from operations, our revolving credit line and proceeds from
employee stock option exercises. We believe these sources are sufficient to fund our cash requirements over at least the next twelve months. Our expected
cash outlays relate primarily to acquisitions, investments, capital expenditures, including production of the NexSys PCS and the build out of our new
manufacturing facility in Clinton, PA, cash payments under the loan agreement and restructuring and turnaround initiatives.

As of December 26, 2020, we had $189.0 million in cash and cash equivalents, the majority of which is held in the U.S. or in countries from which it can
be repatriated to the U.S. On June 15, 2018, we entered into a five-year credit agreement which provided for a $350.0 million term loan and a $350.0
million revolving loan (together with the term loan, the “Credit Facilities”). Interest on the term loan and revolving loan is established using LIBOR plus
1.13% - 1.75%, depending on our leverage ratio. Under the Credit Facilities, we are required to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios
specified in the credit agreement as well as other customary non-financial affirmative and negative covenants. At December 26, 2020, $310.6 million was
outstanding under the term loan with an effective interest rate of 1.4%. There were no borrowings outstanding on the revolving loan. We also had $26.2
million of uncommitted operating lines of credit to fund our global operations under which there were no outstanding borrowings as of December 26, 2020.
We expect to finance the Cardiva acquisition through a combination of cash on hand, revolving credit facility and an additional $150.0 million term loan
under our existing credit facility. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2021.

We have scheduled principal payments of $8.7 million required during the remainder of fiscal 2021. We were in compliance with the leverage and interest
coverage ratios specified in the credit agreement as well as all other bank covenants as of December 26, 2020.

We continue to manage the ongoing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. While the duration and impacts of the pandemic remain uncertain, we have been
successful in preserving cash by implementing a number of actions including restricting travel, reducing certain compensation-related items and non-
essential spending and delaying hiring. Our capital allocation strategy continues to prioritize organic investments followed by inorganic opportunities and
share repurchases. Our commitment to our shareholders will continue to be an important element of our capital allocation strategy, however, our priority
will be focused on providing the appropriate levels of funding across our organization and ensuring that we are well positioned to address any challenges
that may arise over the course of the pandemic.

In May 2019, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500.0 million of Haemonetics common shares over the next two years. As of
December 26, 2020, the total remaining authorization for repurchases of the Company's common stock under the share repurchase program was $325.0
million. We do not expect to make additional share repurchases prior to the expiration of the share repurchase program in May 2021.

Cash Flows

 Nine Months Ended

(In thousands)
December 26,

2020
December 28,

2019
Increase/

(Decrease)

Net cash provided by (used in):    
Operating activities $ 107,258 $ 111,811 $ (4,553)
Investing activities 3,658 (12,041) 15,699 
Financing activities (65,307) (142,580) 77,273 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 6,082 (124) 6,206 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ 51,691 $ (42,934)

The balance sheet is affected by spot exchange rates used to translate local currency amounts into U.S. Dollars. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, we have removed the effect of foreign currency
throughout our cash flow statement, except for its effect on our cash and cash equivalents.

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $4.6 million during the nine months ended December 26, 2020, as compared with the nine months
ended December 28, 2019. The decrease in cash provided by operating activities was primarily the result of a reduction in net income, as adjusted for
depreciation, amortization and other non-cash charges compared with the prior year period. A decrease in working capital as compared with the prior year
period due to lower inventory growth, primarily related to NexSys PCS devices, a decline in the build of accounts receivable due to lower sales and
improved collection timing, and a large payment to a key service provider in the prior year period, partially offset this decrease.

(1)

(1)
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Net cash provided by investing activities increased by $15.7 million during the nine months ended December 26, 2020, as compared with the nine months
ended December 28, 2019. The increase in cash provided by investing activities was primarily the result of cash received from divestitures. This was
partially offset by the cash paid for an acquisition during fiscal 2021 and proceeds received related to the divestiture of our plasma liquid solutions
operations and Braintree headquarter facility in the prior year period, as well as a reduction in capital expenditures.

Net cash used in financing activities decreased by $77.3 million during the nine months ended December 26, 2020, as compared with the nine months
ended December 28, 2019, primarily due to a decrease in share repurchases compared with the prior year period, partially offset by a reduction in
borrowings on our revolving credit facility, net of payments, during fiscal 2021.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable are generally limited due to our large number of customers and their diversity across
many geographic areas. Certain markets and industries, however, can expose us to concentrations of credit risk. For example, in the Plasma business unit,
sales are concentrated with several large customers. As a result, accounts receivable extended to any one of these biopharmaceutical customers can be
significant at any point in time. In addition, a portion of our trade accounts receivable outside the U.S. include sales to government-owned or supported
healthcare systems in several countries, which are subject to payment delays and local economic conditions. Payment is dependent upon the financial
stability and creditworthiness of those countries' national economies.

We have not incurred significant losses on receivables. We continually evaluate all receivables for potential collection risks associated with the availability
of government funding and reimbursement practices. If the financial condition of customers or the countries' healthcare systems deteriorate such that their
ability to make payments is uncertain, allowances may be required in future periods.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation had a significant impact on our results of operations for the periods presented. Historically, we believe we have been able to
mitigate the effects of inflation by improving our manufacturing and purchasing efficiencies, by increasing employee productivity and by adjusting the
selling prices of products. We continue to monitor inflation pressures generally and raw materials indices that may affect our procurement and production
costs. Increases in the price of petroleum derivatives could result in corresponding increases in our costs to procure plastic raw materials.

Foreign Exchange

During the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020, 38.6% and 40.7%, respectively, of our sales were generated outside the U.S., generally in
foreign currencies, yet our reporting currency is the U.S. Dollar. We also incur certain manufacturing, marketing and selling costs in international markets
in local currency. Our primary foreign currency exposures relate to sales denominated in Euro, Japanese Yen, Chinese Yuan and Australian Dollars. We
also have foreign currency exposure related to manufacturing and other operational costs denominated in Swiss Francs, Canadian Dollars, Mexican Pesos
and Malaysian Ringgit. The Yen, Euro, Yuan and Australian Dollar sales exposure is partially mitigated by costs and expenses for foreign operations and
sourcing products denominated in foreign currencies.

Since our foreign currency denominated Yen, Euro, Yuan and Australian Dollar sales exceed the foreign currency denominated costs, whenever the U.S.
Dollar strengthens relative to the Yen, Euro, Yuan or Australian Dollar, there is an adverse effect on our results of operations and, conversely, whenever the
U.S. Dollar weakens relative to the Yen, Euro, Yuan or Australian Dollar, there is a positive effect on our results of operations. For Swiss Francs, Canadian
Dollars Mexican Pesos and Malaysian Ringgit our primary cash flows relate to product costs or costs and expenses of local operations. Whenever the U.S.
Dollar strengthens relative to these foreign currencies, there is a positive effect on our results of operations. Conversely, whenever the U.S. Dollar weakens
relative to these currencies, there is an adverse effect on our results of operations.

We have a program in place that is designed to mitigate our exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. That program includes the use of
derivative financial instruments to minimize, for a period of time, the unforeseen impact on our financial results from changes in foreign exchange rates.
We utilize forward foreign currency contracts to hedge the anticipated cash flows from transactions denominated in foreign currencies, primarily Japanese
Yen and Euro, and to a lesser extent Swiss Francs, Australian Dollars, Canadian Dollars and Mexican Pesos. This does not eliminate the volatility of
foreign exchange rates, but because we generally enter into forward contracts one year out, rates are fixed for a one-year period, thereby facilitating
financial planning and resource allocation. These contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. The final impact of
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currency fluctuations on the results of operations is dependent on the local currency amounts hedged and the actual local currency results.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Standards to be Implemented

In May 2020,the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued a final rule that amends the financial statement requirements for acquisitions and
dispositions of businesses. The amendments primarily relate to disclosures required by Rule 3-05 and Article 11 of Regulation S-X and modifies the tests
provided in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X used to determine whether a subsidiary or an acquired or disposed business is significant and modifies the
number of years of audited financial statements required for acquisitions with significance levels greater than specified percentages. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2021 but early adoption is permitted. We plan to early adopt the amendments during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2021.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740). The new guidance will improve consistent application of and
simplify the accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions to the general principals in Topic 740. ASC Update No. 2019-12 is effective for
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2020, and is applicable to us in fiscal 2022. We are in the process of determining the effect that the adoption
will have on our financial position and results of operations.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements that we make from time to time, including statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and incorporated by reference
into this report, constitute “forward looking-statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements do not relate strictly to historical or current facts and reflect management’s assumptions, views, plans,
objectives and projections about the future. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,”
“would,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “projects,” “predicts,” “potential” and other words of similar meaning in conjunction
with, among other things: discussions of future operations; expected operating results and financial performance; impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic; the
Company’s strategy for growth; product development, commercialization and anticipated performance and benefits; regulatory approvals; impact of
planned acquisitions or dispositions, including the Company's pending acquisition of Cardiva; market position and expenditures.

Because forward-looking statements are based on current beliefs, expectations and assumptions regarding future events, they are subject to uncertainties,
risks and changes that are difficult to predict and many of which are outside of the Company's control. Investors should realize that if underlying
assumptions prove inaccurate, or known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, the Company’s actual results and financial condition could vary
materially from expectations and projections expressed or implied in its forward-looking statements. Investors are therefore cautioned not to rely on these
forward-looking statements.

The following are some important factors that could cause our actual results to differ from our expectations in any forward-looking statements. For further
discussion of these and other factors, see Item 1A. Risk Factors in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K.

• The effect of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, or outbreaks of communicable diseases, on our business, financial conditions and results of
operations, which may be heightened if the pandemic and various government responses to it continue for an extended period of time;

• Failure to achieve our long-term strategic and financial-improvement goals;

• Demand for and market acceptance risks for new and existing products, including material reductions in purchasing from or loss of a significant
customer;

• Product quality or safety concerns, leading to product recalls, withdrawals, regulatory action by the FDA (or similar non-U.S. regulatory
agencies), reputational damage, declining sales or litigation;

• Security breaches of our information technology systems or our products, which could impair our ability to conduct business or compromise
sensitive information of the Company or its customers, suppliers and other business partners, or of customers' patients;
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• Pricing pressures resulting from trends toward health care cost containment, including the continued consolidation among health care providers
and other market participants;

• The continuity, availability and pricing of plastic and other raw materials, finished goods and components used in the manufacturing of our
products (including those purchased from sole-source suppliers) and the related continuity of our manufacturing and distribution;

• Our ability to develop new products or enhancements on commercially acceptable terms or at all;

• Our ability to obtain the anticipated benefits of restructuring programs that we have or may undertake, including the Operational Excellence
Program;

• The potential that the expected strategic benefits and opportunities from the Company's pending acquisition of Cardiva and any other planned or
completed acquisition or divestiture by the Company may not be realized or may take longer to realize than expected;

• The impact of enhanced requirements to obtain regulatory approval in the U.S. and around the world, including the EU MDR and the associated
timing and cost of product approval, and

• Our ability to comply with established and developing U.S. and foreign legal and regulatory requirements, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, or FCPA, and similar laws in other jurisdictions, as well as U.S. and foreign export and import restrictions and tariffs;

• Our ability to execute and realize anticipated benefits from our investments in emerging economies;

• Our ability to retain and attract key personnel;

• Costs and risks associated with product liability and other litigation claims;

• Our ability to meet our debt obligations, including from the increased amount of debt we anticipate incurring to fund our pending acquisition of
Cardiva, and raise additional capital when desired on terms reasonably acceptable to us;

• The potential effect of foreign currency fluctuations and interest rate fluctuations on our net sales, expenses, and resulting margins;

• The impact of changes in U.S. and international tax laws;

• Market conditions impacting our stock price and/or share repurchase program, and the possibility that our share repurchase program may be
delayed, suspended or discontinued; and

• Our ability to protect intellectual property and the outcome of patent litigation.

Investors should understand that it is not possible to predict or identify all such factors and should not consider the risks described above and in Item 1A.
Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K to be a complete statement of all potential risks and uncertainties. The Company does not undertake to
publicly update any forward-looking statement that may be made from time to time, whether as a result of new information or future events or
developments.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our exposure relative to market risk is due to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk.

Foreign Exchange Risk

See the section above entitled Foreign Exchange for a discussion of how foreign currency affects our business. It is our policy to minimize, for a period of
time, the unforeseen impact on our financial results of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates by using derivative financial instruments known as forward
contracts to hedge anticipated cash flows from forecasted foreign currency denominated sales and costs. We do not use the financial instruments for
speculative or trading activities.

34



We estimate the change in the fair value of all forward contracts assuming both a 10% strengthening and weakening of the U.S. Dollar relative to all other
major currencies. In the event of a 10% strengthening of the U.S. Dollar, the change in fair value of all forward contracts would result in a $12.0 million
increase in the fair value of the forward contracts; whereas a 10% weakening of the U.S. Dollar would result in a $13.7 million decrease of the fair value of
the forward contracts.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to changes in interest rates is associated with borrowings under our Credit Facilities, all of which is variable rate debt. Total outstanding debt
under our Credit Facilities as of December 26, 2020 was $310.6 million with an interest rate of 1.4% based on prevailing LIBOR rates. An increase of 100
basis points in LIBOR rates would result in additional annual interest expense of $0.8 million. On August 21, 2018, we entered into two interest rate swap
agreements to effectively convert $241.9 million of borrowings under our Credit Facilities from a variable rate to a fixed rate. These interest rate swaps are
intended to mitigate the exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and qualify for hedge accounting treatment as cash flow hedges.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation, as of December 26, 2020, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, respectively) regarding the effectiveness of the design
and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of December 26, 2020.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three and nine months ended December 26, 2020 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Information with respect to this Item may be found in Note 13, Commitments and Contingencies to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are no material changes from the Risk Factors previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 28, 2020.

Item 2. Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In May 2019, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500 million of Haemonetics common shares over the next two years. We had no
share repurchases during the nine months ended December 26, 2020. The total remaining authorization for repurchases of our common stock under the
share repurchase program was $325 million as of December 26, 2020. We do not expect to make additional share repurchases prior to the expiration of the
share repurchase program in May 2021.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

Not applicable.
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Item 6. Exhibits

3.1 Restated Articles of Organization of Haemonetics Corporation, reflecting Articles of Amendment dated August 23, 1993, August 21, 2006, July
26, 2018 and July 25, 2019 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated July 29, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference).

3.2 By-Laws of the Company, as amended through June 29, 2020 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated June 30, 2020 and
incorporated herein by reference).

10.1 First Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2020, by and between Clinton Commerce III, LLC and the Company.

10.2 Twelfth Amendment to Agreement of Lease, dated as of May 22, 2020, by and between The Buncher Company and the Company.*

10.3 Thirteenth Amendment to Agreement of Lease, dated as of December 21, 2020, by and between The Buncher Company and the Company.*

10.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 17, 2021, by and among the Company, Concordia Merger Sub, Inc., Cardiva Medical, Inc.
and Fortis Advisors LLC, as the Seller Representative.*

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of Christopher A. Simon, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

  
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley of 2002, of William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of the

Company.
  
32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 United States Code Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of

Christopher A. Simon, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
  
32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 United States Code Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of

William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

101** The following materials from Haemonetics Corporation on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 26, 2020, formatted in inline Extensible
Business Reporting Language (XBRL) includes: (i) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, (ii) Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document and contained in Exhibit 101).

_____________________________

* Certain portions of this exhibit are considered confidential and have been omitted as permitted under SEC rules and regulations.
** In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the XBRL-related information in Exhibit 101 to this Form 10-Q is deemed not filed or part of a

registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act, is deemed not filed for the purposes of section 18 of
the Exchange Act, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

 HAEMONETICS CORPORATION  
February 2, 2021 By:  /s/ Christopher A. Simon   

  
Christopher A. Simon,
President and Chief Executive Officer  

  (Principal Executive Officer)  

February 2, 2021 By:  /s/ William Burke

  
William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Financial Officer) 
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Exhibit 10.1

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is entered into this 1  day of October, 2020,
by and between CLINTON COMMERCE III, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability company ("Landlord"), and
HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts corporation ("Tenant").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into that certain Industrial Lease Agreement dated as of May 22, 2020
(“Lease”) relating to approximately 202,817 rentable square feet in an industrial building commonly known as Building III of
Clinton Commerce Park, with an address of 1300 Clifford Ball Drive, Clinton, PA 15026 (“Building”);

WHEREAS, Landlord has requested and the Tenant has agreed to amend and modify the Lease in conjunction with a
pending sale of the Building and the property on which the Building is located to STAG as set forth herein;

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant hereby agree that this Amendment is contingent upon Landlord closing on the sale of
the Building to STAG (as defined below), or its successors or assigns on or before November 30, 2020. If the sale to STAG does
not occur on or before November 30, 2020, then this First Amendment shall be of no force or effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment to Section 1.01(j). Section 1.01(j) of the Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety.

2. Amendment to Section 2.02(d). Section 2.02(d) of the Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety.

3. Amendment to Section 2.02(c). Each of the first two paragraphs of Section 2.02(c) of the Lease is hereby deleted in its
entirety. The third paragraph of Section 2.02(c) is hereby amended as follows:

“Upon completion of the Tenant Improvements, Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, will provide Landlord and
STAG INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“STAG”), anticipated
successor in interest to Landlord, whose address is    c/o STAG Industrial Management, LLC One Federal Street,
23rd Floor, Boston, Massachusetts, 02110, Attention: Seth A. Malamut, Esq., Associate General Counsel, and
whose email address is smalamut@stagindustrial.com, with (i) a complete list of all subcontractors, vendors
and/or material suppliers contracted for the Tenant Improvements, (ii) final lien waivers from all such
subcontractors, vendors or materials suppliers whose contract amount exceeds $25,000.00 and who has a right to
file a mechanic’s lien against the Premises, (iii) as-built drawings documenting the Tenant Improvements, and (iii)
a copy of the certificate of

st
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occupancy (or other certificates acceptable to STAG evidencing inspection and acceptance of the Tenant
Improvements by appropriate government authorities).”

4.    Amendment to Section 6.02(a). Section 6.02(a) of the Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“If Tenant desires utilities or building services in addition to those identified above, then Landlord shall cooperate with
Tenant’s efforts to obtain such additional utilities or services. In the event Landlord is able to and does furnish such
additional utilities or services the costs thereof (which shall be deemed to mean the cost that Tenant would have incurred
had Tenant contracted directly with the utility company or service provider) shall be borne by Tenant, who shall reimburse
Landlord monthly for the same as Additional Rent. Landlord acknowledges that the Tenant intends to upgrade the electric
capacity to the Premises from 1200 amp service to 3000 amp service, which shall be done at Tenant’s cost.”

5.    Amendment to Section 11.01(c). Section 11.01(c) of the Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

“If Tenant shall make any assignment or sublease, with Landlord's consent, for a rental in excess of the rent payable under
this Lease and any sublease costs incurred by Tenant including tenant improvement allowances and brokerage
commissions , Tenant shall pay to Landlord fifty percent (50%) of any such excess rental upon receipt.”

6.    Amendment to Section 13.02(d). Section 13.02(d) of the Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

“Landlord may terminate this Lease and recover from Tenant the costs set forth in (a) above and an amount equal to (i)
the present value of the excess, if any, discounted at the Prime Rate, of (A) the Minimum Annual Rent, Additional Rent
and all other sums that would have been payable hereunder by Tenant for the Remaining Term, less (B) the aggregate
reasonable rental value of the Premises for the Remaining Term, as determined by two real estate brokers licensed in the
State of Pennsylvania who has at least ten (10) years of experience; one chosen by the Landlord and one chosen by the
Tenant (and a third chosen by the two if the two brokers are unable to reach agreement); and (ii) Landlord’s reasonable
costs to relet the Premises, including but not limited to removal of Tenant Improvements, removal and/or disposal of
Tenant Property, demolition, market rate leasing commissions, and tenant improvements for replacement tenant(s) but
specifically excluding any tenant improvements for a replacement tenant in excess of Eight Dollars ($8.00) per square
foot; and (iii) the unamortized portion of the first Four Million and 00/100 Dollars ($4,000,000.00) of costs associated
with the Tenant Improvements, up to $20 per square foot. The cost of such real estate brokers shall be part of the costs due
from the Tenant. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that the payment of the amount set forth in this clause
above shall not be deemed a penalty, but shall merely constitute payment of liquidated damages, it being understood that
actual damages to Landlord are
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extremely difficult, if not impossible, to ascertain. It is expressly agreed and understood that all of Tenant's liabilities and
obligations set forth in this subsection (d) shall survive termination of this Lease.”

7.    Amendment to Section 13.03. The first paragraph of Section 13.03 of the Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced
with the following:

“Landlord shall be in default if it fails to perform any term, condition, covenant or obligation required under this Lease for
a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof from Tenant to Landlord; provided, however, that if the term,
condition, covenant or obligation to be performed by Landlord is such that it cannot reasonably be performed within thirty
(30) days, Landlord shall not be in default if Landlord commences such performance within said thirty (30) day period
and thereafter diligently undertakes to cure the same. Upon the occurrence of Landlord’s failure to commence and
diligently pursue a cure to Landlord’s default, Tenant may sue for injunctive relief or to recover damages for any loss
directly resulting from such default. The provisions of this Section 13.03 are in addition to the offset rights of Tenant
otherwise set forth in this Lease for the failure of the Landlord with respect to its obligations of Maintenance and Repair
as set forth herein.”

8.    Amendment to Exhibit A-1. The parties hereto agree that Exhibit A-1 (Property Description) is hereby replaced in its entirety
with Exhibit A-1 attached to this Amendment.

9.    Amendments to Exhibit E-1.

a. Section 3(ii) of Exhibit E-1 (Form of Lender SNDA) is hereby amended by deleting the following words
therefrom:

“provided, further, the Lender shall not be subject to any right of offset for funds related to the Tenant Improvement
Allowance that were disbursed to the Lessor prior to the Lender’s receipt of a notice from Tenant of a default by the
Lessor which Tenant is required to deliver to the Lender under Section 10 hereof;”

b. Section 12 of Exhibit E-1 (Form of Lender SNDA) is hereby amended by deleting the following words therefrom:

“(except this shall not limit the Tenant’s right of offset with respect to the Tenant Improvement Allowance)”

10.    Contingency. In the event Landlord does not close on the sale of the Building to STAG, or its successors or assigns on or
before November 30, 2020, this Amendment shall be null and void and of no further force and effect.

11.    Full Force & Effect. Landlord and Tenant represent to each other that as of the date hereof (i) the Lease is in full force and
effect, (ii) there are no existing claims, defenses or offsets

    -3-



which either party has against the other, and (iii) there exist no current or continuing defaults under the Lease by Landlord or
Tenant.

12.    Authority to Execute. Landlord and Tenant each represent and warrant to the other party that the individual executing this
Amendment on its behalf is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute and deliver this Amendment on behalf of such
party. Each party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this Amendment and the performance of
such party’s obligations hereunder have been duly authorized and that this Amendment is a valid and legal agreement binding on
such party and enforceable in accordance with its terms.

13.    Defined Terms. All capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Lease.

14.    Entirety of Agreement. To the extent not previously modified or further modified by this First Amendment to Lease, all
provisions and terms of the Lease shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this First Amendment to Lease as of the day and year first
above written.

LANDLORD:

CLINTON COMMERCE III, LLC

By: Al. Neyer, LLC, its Manager

By: /s/ Stephanie P. Gaither
Printed: Stephanie P. Gaither
Title: Executive Vice President & CFO

This is an acknowledgment certificate; no oath or affirmation was administered to the signer with regard to this notarial act.

STATE OF OHIO        }
                } SS:
COUNTY OF HAMILTON    }

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared Stephanie P. Gaither, by me known and by me
known to be the Executive Vice President & CFO of Al. Neyer, LLC, the Manager of Clinton Commerce III, LLC, who
acknowledged the execution of the foregoing First Amendment to Lease on behalf of said limited liability companies.

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal this 29th day of September, 2020.

/s/ Anne E. Pielage
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:    6-15-2025

My County of Residence:    Hamilton

(SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE)
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TENANT:

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION

By: /s/ William P. Burke
Printed: William P. Burke
Title: CFO

STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS    )
) SS:

COUNTY OF BRISTOL        )

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared William P. Burke, by me known and by
me known to be the CFO of Haemonetics Corporation, who acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Office Lease on behalf
of said corporation.

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal this 1st day of October, 2020.

/s/ Sheryl A. Larkin
Notary Public

My Commission Expires: February 5, 2027

My County of Residence: Bristol

-6-



EXHIBIT A-1

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (corrected)

All that certain lease parcel, situate in Findlay Township, Allegheny County, Pennsylvania, more particularly bound and
described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the cul-de-sac for Clifford Ball Drive, 80.00 feet wide; thence from said point of beginning by a line
through lands now or formerly of The County of Allegheny the following N 53° 05’ 20” W a distance of 699.25 feet to a point on
the easterly right of way line of Camp Meeting Road, 33.00 feet wide; thence by the easterly right of way line of Camp Meeting
Road in a northwesterly direction by a curve bearing to the left having a radius of 324.50 feet through an arc distance of 70.02
feet to a point of tangency; thence continuing by same N 37° 04’ 05” W a distance of 44.50 feet to a point; thence by a line
through lands now or formerly of The County of Allegheny the following six (6) courses and distances:

N 36° 58’ 15” E a distance of 889.20 feet;

S 53° 01’ 45” E a distance of 28.54 feet;

N 36° 58’ 15” E a distance of 108.42 feet;

S 53° 01’ 45” E a distance of 676.00 feet;

S 36° 58’ 15” W a distance of 823.23 feet;

S 06° 44’ 44” E a distance of 177.19 feet to a point on the northeasterly right of way line of said Clifford Ball Drive;

thence in a northwesterly direction by a curve bearing to the left having a radius of 80.00 feet through an arc distance of 91.50
feet, also having a chord bearing of S 50° 29’ 15” W and a chord distance of 86.60 feet, to a point, at the point of beginning.

Containing an area of 740,988 square feet or 17.011 acres.
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CERTAIN INFORMATION HAS BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS DOCUMENT BECAUSE IT IS (I) NOT MATERIAL, AND (II)
WOULD BE COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. OMISSIONS ARE MARKED [***].

Exhibit 10.2

TWELFTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT OF LEASE

DATED THIS 22  DAY OF MAY, 2020

BY AND BETWEEN

    THE BUNCHER COMPANY, as Landlord, a Pennsylvania corporation having its principal office in the City of
Pittsburgh, Allegheny County, Pennsylvania,

AND

    HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, as Tenant, a Massachusetts corporation having its principal place of business in
the City of Boston, Suffolk County, Massachusetts.

    WHEREAS, the parties hereto have entered into that certain Agreement of Lease dated July 17, 1990; as
amended by First Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated April 30, 1991; by Second Amendment to Agreement of
Lease dated October 18, 2000; by Third Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated March 23, 2004; by Fourth
Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated March 12, 2008; by Fifth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated
October 1, 2008; by Sixth Amendment to Agreement of Lease made as of January 8, 2010; by Seventh Amendment
to Agreement of Lease made as of March 31, 2011; by letter agreement dated January 27, 2012; along with the
renewal letter dated June 8, 2010, exercising the renewal option for the Fourth Renewal Term pursuant to paragraph
3 of the Sixth Amendment to Agreement of Lease; by Eighth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated February 26,
2013; by Ninth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated March 12, 2014; by Tenth Amendment to Agreement of
Lease dated as of May 31, 2017; and by Eleventh Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of March 2, 2018
(hereinafter collectively the “Lease”);

    WHEREAS, the “Leased Premises” covered by the Lease is 89,177 agreed-upon rentable square feet of space in
Buncher Commerce Park, Leetsdale Borough, Allegheny County, Pennsylvania, which is allocated as follows: (a)
81,929 agreed-upon rentable square feet of space in Buildings 18 and 18A; (b) 5,672 agreed-upon rentable square
feet of space in the Parking Area; (c) 809 agreed-upon rentable square feet of space in the Building 18 Expansion
Space; and (d) 767 agreed-upon rentable square feet of space in the Building 18 Second Expansion Space;

    WHEREAS, all terms defined in the Lease and used therein shall have the same meaning herein as in the Lease
unless otherwise provided herein; and

    WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend the Lease to (i) extend the term of the Lease for six (6) additional
months (the “Fourth Extended Term”); (ii) restate the monthly rental for the Leased Premises during the Third
Extended Term and to establish the monthly rental during the Fourth Extended Term; and (iii) amend existing Lease
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provisions and to incorporate additional provisions into the Lease to reflect the intentions of the parties.

    NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto
promise, covenant and agree that the Lease be and is hereby amended as follows:

1.    TERM: The Lease and the term thereof are hereby extended for the Fourth Extended Term to commence
immediately following the expiration of the Third Extended Term of the Lease, i.e. July 1, 2021. The expiration date of
the term of the Lease, as extended by the Fourth Extended Term, is hereby changed from June 30, 2021, to
December 31, 2021.

    2.    RENT: Tenant shall pay to Landlord as rental for the Leased Premises the following amounts at the following
times:

A.     Tenant shall continue to pay to Landlord on the first (1 ) day of each calendar month during the balance
of the Third Extended Term of the Lease until and including June 1, 2021, the amount of $[***] as monthly rental for
the Building 18, Building 18A, and the Parking Area portions of the Leased Premises.

B.     Tenant shall continue to pay to Landlord on the first (1 ) day of each calendar month during the balance
of the Third Extended Term of the Lease until and including June 1, 2021 as monthly rental for the Building 18
Expansion Space and the Building 18 Second Expansion Space portions of the Leased Premises the amount of
$[***], and on July 1, 2021 and continuing on the first (1 ) day of each succeeding calendar month during the Fourth
Extended Term of the Lease, Tenant shall pay to Landlord as monthly rental for the Building 18 Expansion Space and
the Building 18 Second Expansion Space portions of the Leased Premises the amount of $[***].

C.    Beginning on July 1, 2021 and continuing on the first (1 ) day of each succeeding calendar month
thereafter during the Fourth Extended Term of the Lease, Tenant shall pay to Landlord as monthly rental for the
Building 18, Building 18A, and the Parking Area portions of the Leased Premises the amount of $[***].

    The monthly rentals as set forth herein shall be payable in advance, without demand, deduction or set off. All
rentals and other amounts payable under the Lease shall be paid to The Buncher Company at P. O. Box 768,
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15230-0768 or at such other place or to such other party as may be designated by Landlord
in writing.

    If any installment of monthly rental or additional rental becomes overdue for a period in excess of ten (10) business
days, Tenant shall pay interest at a monthly rate equal to one percent (1%) accruing from the due date to the date of
payment thereof. Such interest shall constitute additional rental due and payable to Landlord by Tenant. The interest
charge will be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedy Landlord

st

st

st

st

    2



may have under the Lease. If there are accrued and unpaid rental amounts, all payments of monthly rental and
additional rental shall be applied in such order as Landlord shall determine.

    3.    RENEWAL OPTION: Effective on the date hereof, paragraph 4 (Renewal Option) of the Eleventh Amendment
to Agreement of Lease dated as of March 2, 2018 (the “Eleventh Amendment”) is hereby deleted and is of no further
force and effect.

    4.    ADDITIONAL TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE: Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that, as
of the date of this Twelfth Amendment to Agreement of Lease, the remaining balance of the Additional Tenant
Improvement Allowance (as described in paragraph 5 (Tenant Improvement Allowance) of the Eleventh Amendment)
that can be applied to the Additional Tenant’s Work (as defined in the Eleventh Amendment) is $[***].

    The third grammatical sentence of paragraph 5 (Tenant Improvement Allowance) of the Eleventh Amendment is
hereby amended to read as follows:

    “Any unused amount of the Additional Tenant Improvement Allowance shall be credited against rental in reverse
order beginning with the last month of the Fourth Extended Term”.

    Additionally, all language following the third grammatical sentence of said paragraph 5, as amended hereby, is
hereby deleted in its entirety and is of no further force and effect.

    5.    CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT:    Tenant hereby restates and ratifies section 17 (Confession of Judgment) of
the Agreement of Lease dated July 17, 1990:

    THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPHS SET FORTH WARRANTS OR AUTHORITY FOR AN ATTORNEY TO
CONFESS JUDGMENT AGAINST TENANT IN THE EVENT OF A DEFAULT BY TENANT AS DESCRIBED BELOW.
IN GRANTING THESE WARRANTS OF ATTORNEY TO CONFESS JUDGMENT AGAINST TENANT, TENANT
HEREBY KNOWINGLY, INTENTIONALLY, AND VOLUNTARILY AND ON THE ADVICE OF SEPARATE COUNSEL
OF TENANT, UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT THAT TENANT HAS OR MAY HAVE TO PRIOR
NOTICE AND OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING UNDER THE CONSTITUTION AND LAWS OF THE UNITED
STATES AND THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA. USE OF THESE WARRANTS OF ATTORNEY SHALL
NOT EXHAUST THE SAME OR THE POWER TO THEREAFTER CONFESS JUDGMENTS, AS A CONTINUING
REMEDY, TO BE USED AS OFTEN AS IT MAY BE REQUIRED, AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY LAW OR RULE
TO THE CONTRARY, A REPRODUCED COPY OF THIS INSTRUMENT CERTIFIED BY AN ATTORNEY OF ANY
COURT OF RECORD TO BE TRUE AND CORRECT SHALL BE SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE OF THE CONTENTS
HEREOF FOR THE PURPOSES HEREINAFTER SET FORTH.
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FOR VALUE RECEIVED AND FORTHWITH ON EVERY DEFAULT HEREUNDER OR ON ANY AND EVERY
BREACH OF COVENANT HEREIN, TENANT HEREBY EMPOWERS ANY ATTORNEY OF ANY COURT OF
RECORD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR ELSEWHERE TO APPEAR FOR TENANT AND WITH OR WITHOUT
DECLARATION FILED, CONFESS JUDGMENT OR A SERIES OF JUDGMENTS AGAINST TENANT AND IN
FAVOR OF LANDLORD, ITS SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS, AS OF ANY TERM FOR THE FULL SUM DUE BY
REASON OF ANY DEFAULT HEREUNDER, INCLUDING UNPAID RENT FOR THE BALANCE OF THE TERM OF
THE LEASE, TOGETHER WITH COSTS OF SUIT AND REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES. TENANT FURTHER
AUTHORIZES THE ISSUANCE OF WRITS OF EXECUTION AS LANDLORD MAY ELECT UPON ANY SUCH
JUDGMENT OR JUDGMENTS, WITH RELEASE OF ALL ERRORS AND WITHOUT STAY OF EXECUTION AND
INQUISITION, AND EXTENSION UPON ANY LEVY OF REAL ESTATE IS HEREBY WAIVED AND
CONDEMNATION AGREED TO AND THE EXEMPTION OF ANY AND ALL PROPERTY FROM LEVY OR SALE BY
VIRTUE OF ANY LAW NOW IN FORCE OR HEREINAFTER ENACTED IS ALSO EXPRESSLY WAIVED.

FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING POSSESSION OF THE LEASED PREMISES IN THE EVENT OF THE
FAILURE OF TENANT TO VACATE THE LEASED PREMISES ON OR BEFORE THE EXPIRATION OF THE TERM
OF THE LEASE, AS MAY BE EXTENDED, OR PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION OF THE TERM OF THE LEASE IN
THE EVENT OF DEFAULT, TENANT HEREBY AUTHORIZES AND EMPOWERS ANY ATTORNEY OF ANY COURT
OF RECORD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR ELSEWHERE, TO APPEAR FOR TENANT AND ALL PERSONS
CLAIMING UNDER OR THROUGH TENANT, TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT FOR ENTERING IN ANY COMPETENT
COURT AN AMICABLE ACTION IN EJECTMENT FOR POSSESSION OF THE LEASED PREMISES, AND/OR TO
APPEAR FOR AND CONFESS JUDGMENT, OR A SERIES OF JUDGMENTS, AGAINST TENANT, AND AGAINST
ALL PERSONS CLAIMING UNDER OR THROUGH TENANT IN FAVOR OF LANDLORD, FOR RECOVERY BY
LANDLORD OF POSSESSION THEREOF, TOGETHER WITH COSTS OF SUIT AND REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’
FEES, FOR WHICH THE LEASE, OR A COPY THEREOF VERIFIED BY AFFIDAVIT, SHALL BE A SUFFICIENT
WARRANT; AND THEREUPON A WRIT OF POSSESSION MAY IMMEDIATELY ISSUE FOR POSSESSION OF
THE LEASED PREMISES, WITHOUT ANY PRIOR WRIT OR PROCEEDING WHATSOEVER AND WITHOUT ANY
STAY OF EXECUTION.
                    
HAEMONETICS CORPORATION

By: /s/ William P. Burke

Name: William P. Burke

Title: CFO

    4



    6.    NOTICES: Section 20 (Notices) of the Agreement of Lease dated July 17, 1990, is hereby made null and void
and of no further force and effect and paragraph 7 below shall be given full force and effect.

    7.    NOTICES: All notices, demands and requests which may be or are required to be given under the Lease shall
be given in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given as of the date sent (a) if mailed by postage prepaid,
first class, United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or (b) if deposited with receipt with
Federal Express or other nationally recognized overnight courier. All notices, demands, and requests shall be sent to
each of the parties at the following addresses, or to such other addresses as either party hereto may for itself
designate in writing from time to time for the purpose of receiving notices hereunder:

LANDLORD:                TENANT:

The Buncher Company        Haemonetics Corporation
Penn Liberty Plaza I            125 Summer Street
1300 Penn Avenue, Suite 300    Boston, Massachusetts 02110
Pittsburgh, PA 15222-4211    Attention: SVP, Global Business Services
realestategroup@buncher.com
                    
                    With a copy to:

                    Haemonetics Corporation
                    125 Summer Street
                    Boston, Massachusetts 02110
                    Attention:  Executive Vice President and General                          Counsel

    8.    BROKERAGE: Except as provided below, Landlord and Tenant each hereby warrants to the other that no real
estate broker has been involved in this transaction on its behalf and that no finder’s fees or real estate commissions
have been earned by any third party. Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify Landlord and Landlord hereby agrees to
indemnify Tenant for any liability or claims for commissions or fees, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs,
arising from a breach of this warranty by such party. The only real estate broker involved in this transaction is Hannah
Langolz Wilson Ellis, whose commission or fee with respect to this transaction, if any, shall be paid by Tenant.

    9.    TENANT’S ACKNOWLEDGMENT: Tenant hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Twelfth
Amendment to Agreement of Lease, Landlord is not in default
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of any of its obligations under the Lease, and Tenant has no claims, counterclaims, offsets or defenses with respect
to Landlord’s obligations under the Lease.

    10.    AUTHORIZATION: Tenant and Landlord each hereby represent and warrant that it has full authority to enter
into, deliver, and perform its obligations hereunder; that the individual executing this Twelfth Amendment to
Agreement of Lease on behalf of such party has full authority to legally bind such party; that nothing herein conflicts
with either of the party’s governing documents or any of its commitments or obligations; and that no consent or
approval of any third party is required to perform its obligations hereunder.

    11.    NO OTHER MODIFICATIONS: Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Lease shall
remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified by Landlord and Tenant.

[Signature page follows.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto intending to be legally bound have hereunto set their hands and
seals the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: The BUNCHER COMPANY

By: /s/ Joseph M. Jackovic By: /s/ Thomas J. Balestrieri

Joseph M. Jackovic
Executive Vice President
and Secretary    

Thomas J. Balestrieri
President/CEO

(Corporate Seal)            

ATTEST: HAEMONETICS CORPORATION

By: /s/ Thomas Powers By: /s/ William P. Burke

Thomas Powers
Assistant Corporate Secretary

William P. Burke
CFO

(Corporate Seal)

    



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Commonwealth of MA        )
                    )     ss:
County of Bristol            )

    On this 22nd day of May, 2020, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared William P. Burke, who
acknowledged [himself/herself] to be the CFO of HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts corporation,
and that [he/she] as such CFO being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing Twelfth Amendment to Agreement
of Lease, including but not limited to paragraph 5, for the purposes therein contained by signing in the name of the
corporation by [himself/herself] as CFO.

WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year aforesaid.

/s/ Sheryl A. Larkin

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: February 5, 2027



CERTAIN INFORMATION HAS BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS DOCUMENT BECAUSE IT IS (I) NOT MATERIAL, AND (II)
WOULD BE COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. OMISSIONS ARE MARKED [***].

Exhibit 10.3

THIRTEENTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT OF LEASE

DATED THIS 21 DAY OF DECEMBER, 2020

BY AND BETWEEN

    THE BUNCHER COMPANY, as Landlord, a Pennsylvania corporation having its principal office in the City of
Pittsburgh, Allegheny County, Pennsylvania,

AND

    HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, as Tenant, a Massachusetts corporation having its principal place of business in
the City of Boston, Suffolk County, Massachusetts.

    WHEREAS, the parties hereto have entered into that certain Agreement of Lease dated July 17, 1990; as
amended by First Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated April 30, 1991; by Second Amendment to Agreement of
Lease dated October 18, 2000; by Third Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated March 23, 2004; by Fourth
Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated March 12, 2008; by Fifth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated
October 1, 2008; by Sixth Amendment to Agreement of Lease made as of January 8, 2010; by Seventh Amendment
to Agreement of Lease made as of March 31, 2011; by letter agreement dated January 27, 2012; along with the
renewal letter dated June 8, 2010, exercising the renewal option for the Fourth Renewal Term pursuant to paragraph
3 of the Sixth Amendment to Agreement of Lease; by Eighth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated February 26,
2013; by Ninth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated March 12, 2014; by Tenth Amendment to Agreement of
Lease dated as of May 31, 2017; by Eleventh Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of March 2, 2018; and by
Twelfth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated May 22, 2020 (hereinafter collectively the “Lease”);

    WHEREAS, the “Leased Premises” covered by the Lease is 89,177 agreed-upon rentable square feet of space in
Buncher Commerce Park, Leetsdale Borough, Allegheny County, Pennsylvania, which is allocated as follows: (a)
81,929 agreed-upon rentable square feet of space in Buildings 18 and 18A; (b) 5,672 agreed-upon rentable square
feet of space in the Parking Area; (c) 809 agreed-upon rentable square feet of space in the Building 18 Expansion
Space; and (d) 767 agreed-upon rentable square feet of space in the Building 18 Second Expansion Space;

    WHEREAS, all terms defined in the Lease and used therein shall have the same meaning herein as in the Lease
unless otherwise provided herein; and

    WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend the Lease to (i) extend the term of the Lease for three (3) additional
months (the “Fifth Extended Term”); (ii) restate the monthly rental for the Leased Premises during the balance of the
Third Extended Term, restate the monthly rental during the Fourth Extended Term, and to establish the monthly
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rental during the Fifth Extended Term; and (iii) amend existing Lease provisions and to incorporate additional
provisions into the Lease to reflect the intentions of the parties.

    NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto
promise, covenant and agree that the Lease be and is hereby amended as follows:

1.    TERM: The Lease and the term thereof are hereby extended for the Fifth Extended Term to commence
immediately following the expiration of the Fourth Extended Term of the Lease, i.e. January 1, 2022. The expiration
date of the term of the Lease, as extended by the Fifth Extended Term, is hereby changed from December 31, 2021,
to March 31, 2022.

2.     RENT: Effective on the date hereof, paragraph 2 (Rent) of the Twelfth Amendment to Agreement of Lease
dated May 22, 2020, shall be null and void and of no further force and effect and the following shall be substituted
therefor:

    “2.    RENT: Tenant shall pay to Landlord as rental for the Leased Premises the following amounts at the following
times:

A.     Tenant shall continue to pay to Landlord on the first (1 ) day of each calendar month during the balance
of the Third Extended Term of the Lease until and including June 1, 2021, and then continuing on the first (1 ) day of
each succeeding calendar month thereafter during the Fourth Extended Term of the Lease until and including
December 1, 2021, as monthly rental for the Building 18 Expansion Space and the Building 18 Second Expansion
Space portions of the Leased Premises the amount of $[***], and beginning on January 1, 2022 and continuing on
the first (1 ) day of each
succeeding calendar month thereafter during the Fifth Extended Term of the Lease, Tenant shall pay to Landlord as
monthly rental for the Building 18 Expansion Space and the Building 18 Second Expansion Space portions of the
Leased Premises the amount of $[***].

B.     Tenant shall continue to pay to Landlord on the first (1 ) day of each calendar month during the balance
of the Third Extended Term of the Lease until and including June 1, 2021, the amount of $[***] as monthly rental for
the Building 18, Building 18A, and the Parking Area portions of the Leased Premises.

C.    Beginning on July 1, 2021 and continuing on the first (1 ) day of each succeeding calendar month
thereafter during the Fourth Extended Term of the Lease until and including December 1, 2021, Tenant shall pay to
Landlord as monthly rental for the Building 18, Building 18A, and the Parking Area portions of the Leased Premises
the amount of $[***].
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D.    Beginning on January 1, 2022 and continuing on the first (1 ) day of each succeeding calendar month
thereafter during the Fifth Extended Term of the Lease, Tenant shall pay to Landlord as monthly rental for the Building
18, Building 18A, and the Parking Area portions of the Leased Premises the amount of $[***].

    The monthly rentals as set forth herein shall be payable in advance, without demand, deduction or set off. All
rentals and other amounts payable under the Lease shall be paid to The Buncher Company at P. O. Box 768,
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15230-0768 or at such other place or to such other party as may be designated by Landlord
in writing.

    If any installment of monthly rental or additional rental becomes overdue for a period in excess of ten (10) business
days, Tenant shall pay interest at a monthly rate equal to one percent (1%) accruing from the due date to the date of
payment thereof. Such interest shall constitute additional rental due and payable to Landlord by Tenant. The interest
charge will be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedy Landlord may have under the Lease. If there are
accrued and unpaid rental amounts, all payments of monthly rental and additional rental shall be applied in such
order as Landlord shall determine.”

    3.    ADDITIONAL TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE:

    A.    Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that, as of November 18, 2020, the remaining balance of the
Additional Tenant Improvement Allowance (as described in paragraph 5 (Tenant Improvement Allowance) of the
Eleventh Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of March 2, 2018) that is available to be applied to the
Additional Tenant’s Work (as defined in said Eleventh Amendment) is $[***].

    B.    The third (3 ) grammatical paragraph of paragraph 4 (Additional Tenant Improvement Allowance) of the
Twelfth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated May 22, 2020, is hereby amended to read as follows:

    “Any unused amount of the Additional Tenant Improvement Allowance shall be credited against rental in reverse
order beginning with the last month of the Fifth Extended Term”.

    4.    CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT:    Tenant hereby restates, ratifies and confirms paragraph 5 (Confession of
Judgment) of the Twelfth Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated May 22, 2020:

    THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPHS SET FORTH WARRANTS OR AUTHORITY FOR AN ATTORNEY TO
CONFESS JUDGMENT AGAINST TENANT IN THE EVENT OF A DEFAULT BY TENANT AS DESCRIBED BELOW.
IN GRANTING THESE WARRANTS OF ATTORNEY TO CONFESS JUDGMENT AGAINST TENANT, TENANT
HEREBY KNOWINGLY, INTENTIONALLY, AND VOLUNTARILY AND ON THE ADVICE OF SEPARATE COUNSEL
OF TENANT, UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL
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RIGHT THAT TENANT HAS OR MAY HAVE TO PRIOR NOTICE AND OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING UNDER
THE CONSTITUTION AND LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES AND THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA.
USE OF THESE WARRANTS OF ATTORNEY SHALL NOT EXHAUST THE SAME OR THE POWER TO
THEREAFTER CONFESS JUDGMENTS, AS A CONTINUING REMEDY, TO BE USED AS OFTEN AS IT MAY BE
REQUIRED, AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY LAW OR RULE TO THE CONTRARY, A REPRODUCED COPY OF
THIS INSTRUMENT CERTIFIED BY AN ATTORNEY OF ANY COURT OF RECORD TO BE TRUE AND CORRECT
SHALL BE SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE OF THE CONTENTS HEREOF FOR THE PURPOSES HEREINAFTER SET
FORTH.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED AND FORTHWITH ON EVERY DEFAULT HEREUNDER OR ON ANY AND EVERY
BREACH OF COVENANT HEREIN, TENANT HEREBY EMPOWERS ANY ATTORNEY OF ANY COURT OF
RECORD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR ELSEWHERE TO APPEAR FOR TENANT AND WITH OR WITHOUT
DECLARATION FILED, CONFESS JUDGMENT OR A SERIES OF JUDGMENTS AGAINST TENANT AND IN
FAVOR OF LANDLORD, ITS SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS, AS OF ANY TERM FOR THE FULL SUM DUE BY
REASON OF ANY DEFAULT HEREUNDER, INCLUDING UNPAID RENT FOR THE BALANCE OF THE TERM OF
THE LEASE, TOGETHER WITH COSTS OF SUIT AND REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES. TENANT FURTHER
AUTHORIZES THE ISSUANCE OF WRITS OF EXECUTION AS LANDLORD MAY ELECT UPON ANY SUCH
JUDGMENT OR JUDGMENTS, WITH RELEASE OF ALL ERRORS AND WITHOUT STAY OF EXECUTION AND
INQUISITION, AND EXTENSION UPON ANY LEVY OF REAL ESTATE IS HEREBY WAIVED AND
CONDEMNATION AGREED TO AND THE EXEMPTION OF ANY AND ALL PROPERTY FROM LEVY OR SALE BY
VIRTUE OF ANY LAW NOW IN FORCE OR HEREINAFTER ENACTED IS ALSO EXPRESSLY WAIVED.

FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING POSSESSION OF THE LEASED PREMISES IN THE EVENT OF THE
FAILURE OF TENANT TO VACATE THE LEASED PREMISES ON OR BEFORE THE EXPIRATION OF THE TERM
OF THE LEASE, AS MAY BE EXTENDED, OR PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION OF THE TERM OF THE LEASE IN
THE EVENT OF DEFAULT, TENANT HEREBY AUTHORIZES AND EMPOWERS ANY ATTORNEY OF ANY COURT
OF RECORD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR ELSEWHERE, TO APPEAR FOR TENANT AND ALL PERSONS
CLAIMING UNDER OR THROUGH TENANT, TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT FOR ENTERING IN ANY COMPETENT
COURT AN AMICABLE ACTION IN EJECTMENT FOR POSSESSION OF THE LEASED PREMISES, AND/OR TO
APPEAR FOR AND CONFESS JUDGMENT, OR A SERIES OF JUDGMENTS, AGAINST TENANT, AND AGAINST
ALL PERSONS CLAIMING UNDER OR THROUGH TENANT IN FAVOR OF LANDLORD, FOR RECOVERY BY
LANDLORD OF POSSESSION THEREOF, TOGETHER WITH COSTS OF SUIT AND REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’
FEES, FOR WHICH THE LEASE, OR A COPY THEREOF VERIFIED BY AFFIDAVIT, SHALL BE A SUFFICIENT
WARRANT; AND THEREUPON A WRIT OF POSSESSION MAY IMMEDIATELY ISSUE
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FOR POSSESSION OF THE LEASED PREMISES, WITHOUT ANY PRIOR WRIT OR PROCEEDING
WHATSOEVER AND WITHOUT ANY STAY OF EXECUTION.        

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION

By: /s/ William P. Burke

Name: William P. Burke

Title: CFO

5.    INTENTIONALLY DELETED.

    6.    BROKERAGE: Landlord and Tenant each hereby warrants to the other that no real estate broker has been
involved in this transaction on its behalf and that no finder's fees or real estate commissions have been earned by
any third party. If either party breaches the foregoing warranty, the breaching party shall indemnify, defend and hold
harmless the other for any liability or claims for commissions or fees, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs,
arising from a breach of this warranty.

    7.    TENANT’S ACKNOWLEDGMENT: Tenant hereby acknowledges that as of the date of this Thirteenth
Amendment to Agreement of Lease, Landlord is not in default of any of its obligations under the Lease, and Tenant
has no claims, counterclaims, offsets or defenses with respect to Landlord’s obligations under the Lease.

    8.    AUTHORIZATION: Tenant and Landlord each hereby represent and warrant that it has full authority to enter
into, deliver, and perform its obligations hereunder; that the individual executing this Thirteenth Amendment to
Agreement of Lease on behalf of such party has full authority to legally bind such party; that nothing herein conflicts
with either of the party’s governing documents or any of its commitments or obligations; and that no consent or
approval of any third party is required to perform its obligations hereunder.

    9.    NO OTHER MODIFICATIONS: Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain
in full force and effect and are hereby ratified by Landlord and Tenant.

[Signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto intending to be legally bound have hereunto set their hands and
seals the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: The BUNCHER COMPANY

By: /s/ Joseph M. Jackovic By: /s/ David B. Heaton

Joseph M. Jackovic
Executive Vice President
and Secretary    

David B. Heaton
President/CEO

(Corporate Seal)            

ATTEST: HAEMONETICS CORPORATION

By: /s/ Thomas Powers By: /s/ William P. Burke

Thomas Powers
Assistant Corporate Secretary

William P. Burke
CFO

(Corporate Seal)
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Commonwealth of MA        )
                    )     ss:
County of Bristol            )

    On this 21st day of December, 2020, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared William P. Burke, who
acknowledged [himself/herself] to be the CFO of HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts corporation,
and that [he/she] as such CFO being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing Thirteenth Amendment to
Agreement of Lease, including but not limited to paragraph 4, for the purposes therein contained by signing in the
name of the corporation by [himself/herself] as CFO.

WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year aforesaid.

/s/ Sheryl A. Larkin

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: February 5, 2027



CERTAIN INFORMATION HAS BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS DOCUMENT BECAUSE IT IS (I) NOT MATERIAL, AND (II)
WOULD BE COMPETITIVELY HARMFUL IF PUBLICLY DISCLOSED. OMISSIONS ARE MARKED [***].

Exhibit 10.4

EXECUTION VERSION

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

by and among

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION;

CONCORDIA MERGER SUB, INC.;

CARDIVA MEDICAL, INC.;

and

FORTIS ADVISORS LLC, as the Seller Representative

Dated as of January 17, 2021
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

This Agreement and Plan of Merger (as may be amended from time to time, this “Agreement”) is made and entered
into as of January 17, 2021, by and among: Haemonetics Corporation, a Massachusetts corporation (“Parent”); Concordia
Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned Subsidiary of Parent (“Merger Sub”); Cardiva Medical, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”); and Fortis Advisors LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as the Seller
Representative. Certain capitalized terms used in this Agreement are defined in Exhibit A.

RECITALS

A.    Parent, Merger Sub and the Company intend to effect a merger of Merger Sub into the Company (the “Merger”) in
accordance with this Agreement and the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”). Upon consummation
of the Merger, Merger Sub will cease to exist as a separate corporate entity, and the Company will become a wholly owned
Subsidiary of Parent.

B.    The respective boards of directors of Parent, Merger Sub and the Company have approved this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger.

AGREEMENT

The parties to this Agreement, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

Section 1.    DESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTION

1.1    Merger of Merger Sub into the Company. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this
Agreement, at the Effective Time, Merger Sub shall be merged with and into the Company, and the separate existence of Merger
Sub shall cease. The Company will continue as the surviving corporation in the Merger (the “Surviving Corporation”).

1.2    Effect of the Merger. The Merger shall have the effects set forth in this Agreement and in the applicable provisions
of the DGCL and any applicable provisions in the California Code. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, and subject
to the DGCL and this Agreement, at the Effective Time, all of the property, rights, privileges, powers and franchises of the
Company and Merger Sub shall vest in the Surviving Corporation, and all debts, liabilities and duties of the Company and
Merger Sub shall become the debts, liabilities and duties of the Surviving Corporation.

1.3    Closing; Effective Time. The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”)
shall take place remotely via electronic exchange of closing deliveries on a date to be designated by the Company (the “Closing
Date”), which shall be no later than the second Business Day after the satisfaction or waiver of the last to be satisfied or waived
of the conditions set forth in Section 6 and Section 7 (other than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the
Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of such conditions), unless another time or place, or both, are agreed to in
writing by the Company and Parent. Subject
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to the provisions of this Agreement, a certificate of merger satisfying the applicable requirements of the DGCL (the “Certificate
of Merger”) shall be duly executed by the Company and, on the Closing Date, concurrently with or immediately following the
Closing, delivered to and filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in accordance with the DGCL. The Merger
shall become effective upon the date and time of the filing of such Certificate of Merger with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware, or at such later time as may be mutually agreed in writing by the Company and Parent and specified in the Certificate
of Merger (the “Effective Time”).

1.4    Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws; Directors and Officers

(a)    The certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation shall be amended and restated as of the
Effective Time to conform to the certificate of incorporation of Merger Sub as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time,
except that the name of the Surviving Corporation shall be “Cardiva Medical, Inc.”

(b)    The bylaws of the Surviving Corporation shall be amended and restated immediately as of the Effective
Time to conform to the bylaws of Merger Sub as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time.

(c)    The directors and officers of the Surviving Corporation as of the Effective Time shall be the respective
individuals who are directors and officers of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time.

1.5    Conversion of Shares. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any further action on the part of
Parent, Merger Sub, the Company or any stockholder of the Company:

(a)    any shares of Company Capital Stock then held by the Company (or held in the Company’s treasury) shall be
canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and no consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor;

(b)    any shares of Company Capital Stock then held by Parent, Merger Sub or any other Subsidiary of Parent
shall be canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and no consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor;

(c)    except as provided in subsections “1.5(a)” and “1.5(b)” of this Section 1.5 and subject to withholdings and
adjustments as set forth in Section 1.8(b) and Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13 and 1.15:

(i)    each share of Company Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective
Time (except for Dissenting Shares) shall cease to be an existing and issued share of Company Capital Stock, and shall be
converted, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holders thereof, into the right to receive, without
interest, an amount in cash equal to (A) the Per Share Common Closing Consideration, plus (B) the applicable portion of any
Post-Closing Consideration, as and when due;
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(ii)    each share of Series 3 Preferred Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time
(except for Dissenting Shares) shall cease to be an existing and issued share of Company Capital Stock, and shall be converted,
by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holders thereof, into the right to receive, without interest, an
amount in cash equal to (A) the Per Share Series 3 Liquidation Amount plus (B) the Per Share Common Closing Consideration,
plus (C) the applicable portion of any Post-Closing Consideration, as and when due;

(iii)     each share of Series 4 Preferred Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective
Time (except for Dissenting Shares) shall cease to be an existing and issued share of Company Capital Stock, and shall be
converted, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holders thereof, into the right to receive, without
interest, an amount in cash equal to (A) the Per Share Series 4 Liquidation Amount plus (B) the Per Share Common Closing
Consideration, plus (C) the applicable portion of any Post-Closing Consideration, as and when due;

(iv)    each share of Series 5 Preferred Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective
Time (except for Dissenting Shares) shall cease to be an existing and issued share of Company Capital Stock, and shall be
converted, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holders thereof, into the right to receive, without
interest, an amount in cash equal to (A) the Per Share Series 5 Liquidation Amount plus (B) the Per Share Common Closing
Consideration, plus (C) the applicable portion of any Post-Closing Consideration, as and when due;

(v)    each share of Series 6 Preferred Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time
(except for Dissenting Shares) shall cease to be an existing and issued share of Company Capital Stock, and shall be converted,
by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holders thereof, into the right to receive, without interest, an
amount in cash equal to (A) the Per Share Series 6 Liquidation Amount plus (B) the Per Share Common Closing Consideration,
plus (C) the applicable portion of any Post-Closing Consideration, as and when due;

(d)    each share of the common stock, $.0001 par value per share, of Merger Sub issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall cease to be an existing and issued share of Company Capital Stock, and shall be
converted, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of its holder into one share of validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable common stock of the Surviving Corporation, such that immediately following the Effective Time, Parent shall
become the sole and exclusive owner of all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Company as the Surviving
Corporation.

1.6    Treatment of Company Options; Treatment of Company Warrants.

(a)    Each In-the-Money Option that is outstanding and unexercised immediately prior to the Effective Time shall
be canceled at the Effective Time and, in consideration of such cancellation, the holder thereof, subject to withholdings as set
forth in Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13 and 1.15, shall be entitled to receive, without interest, a cash payment for each share subject to
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such In-the-Money Option an amount equal to (i) the Per Share Common Closing Consideration minus (ii) the exercise price per
share of such In-the-Money Option, plus (iii) the applicable portion of any Post-Closing Consideration, as and when due. The
amount of cash each holder of an In-the-Money Option is entitled to receive for all In-the-Money Options held by such holder
shall be rounded down to the nearest cent and computed after aggregating cash amounts for all In-the-Money Options held by
such holder (such holder’s “Closing Options Payout Amount”).

(b)    At the Effective Time, each Company Option that is not an In-the-Money Option which is outstanding and
unexercised immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be canceled at the Effective Time without the payment of cash or
issuance of other consideration in respect thereof.

(c)    The Board of Directors of the Company shall adopt such resolutions or take such other actions prior to the
Effective Time as may be required to effect the transactions described in this Section 1.6. All cash amounts payable in respect of
Employee Options shall be paid pursuant to the Surviving Corporation’s (or, as applicable, any Affiliate thereof or successor
thereto) standard payroll procedures in accordance with Section 1.11(b). Parent shall cause the Payment Agent to pay all cash
amounts payable in respect of Non-Employee Options in accordance with this Section 1.6 and Section 1.11(b).

(d)    As of the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of Parent, Merger Sub
or the holder of any Company Warrant, each Company Warrant shall be canceled and treated as follows:

(i)    Each Company Common Warrant that is outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be
canceled at the Effective Time and, in consideration of such cancelation, the holder thereof, subject to withholdings and
adjustments as set forth in Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13 and 1.15 shall be entitled to receive, without interest, a cash payment equal to
(A) the number of shares of Company Common Stock subject to such Company Common Warrant multiplied by (B) (1) the Per
Share Common Closing Consideration minus (2) the exercise price per share of Company Common Stock subject to such
Company Common Warrant, plus (3) the applicable portion of any Post-Closing Consideration, as and when due. The amount of
cash each holder of a Company Common Warrant is entitled to receive for all Company Common Warrants held by such holder
shall be rounded down to the nearest cent and computed after aggregating cash amounts for all Company Common Warrants held
by such holder;

(ii)    Each Company Series 3 Warrant that is outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be
canceled at the Effective Time and, in consideration of such cancelation, the holder thereof, subject to withholdings and
adjustments as set forth in Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13 and 1.15, shall be entitled to receive, without interest, a cash payment equal
to (A) the number of shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock subject to such Company Series 3 Warrant multiplied by (B) (1) the Per
Share Common Closing Consideration plus (2) the Per Share Preferred Warrant Liquidation Amount, minus (3) the exercise price
per share of Series 3 Preferred Stock subject to such Company Series 3 Warrant, plus (4) the applicable portion of any Post-
Closing Consideration, as and when due. The amount of cash each holder of a Company Series 3 Warrant is entitled to receive for
all Company Series 3 Warrants held by such holder shall be rounded down
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to the nearest cent and computed after aggregating cash amounts for all Company Series 3 Warrants held by such holder;

(iii)    Each Company Series 4 Warrant that is outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be
canceled at the Effective Time and, in consideration of such cancelation, the holder thereof, subject to withholdings and
adjustments as set forth in Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13 and 1.15, shall be entitled to receive, without interest, a cash payment equal
to (A) the number of shares of Series 4 Preferred Stock subject to such Company Series 4 Warrant multiplied by (B) (1) the Per
Share Common Closing Consideration plus (2) the Per Share Preferred Warrant Liquidation Amount, minus (3) the exercise price
per share of Series 4 Preferred Stock subject to such Company Series 4 Warrant, plus (4) the applicable portion of any Post-
Closing Consideration, as and when due. The amount of cash each holder of a Company Series 4 Warrant is entitled to receive for
all Company Series 4 Warrants held by such holder shall be rounded down to the nearest cent and computed after aggregating
cash amounts for all Company Series 4 Warrants held by such holder; and

(iv)    Each Company Series 5 Warrant that is outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be
canceled at the Effective Time and, in consideration of such cancelation, the holder thereof, subject to withholdings and
adjustments as set forth in Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13 and 1.15, shall be entitled to receive, without interest, a cash payment equal
to (A) the number of shares of Series 5 Preferred Stock subject to such Company Series 5 Warrant multiplied by (B) (1) the Per
Share Common Closing Consideration plus (2) the Per Share Preferred Warrant Liquidation Amount, minus (3) the exercise price
per share of Series 5 Preferred Stock subject to such Company Series 5 Warrant, plus (4) the applicable portion of any Post-
Closing Consideration, as and when due. The amount of cash each holder of a Company Series 5 Warrant is entitled to receive for
all Company Series 5 Warrants held by such holder shall be rounded down to the nearest cent and computed after aggregating
cash amounts for all Company Series 5 Warrants held by such holder.

1.7    Closing Payments and Estimated Closing Statement.

(a)    On the Closing Date, Parent will make, or cause to be made, the following payments, as set forth herein by
wire transfer of immediately available funds to the accounts set forth next to each recipient’s name on the Estimated Closing
Statement:

(i)    To the Company:

(1)    the aggregate Closing Options Payout Amount payable in respect of all In-the-Money Options
that are Employee Options, as set forth in Section 1.6; and

(2)    the aggregate Carve-Out Plan Amount payable under the Company Carve-Out Plan;

(ii)    To the Payment Agent, by wire transfer of immediately available funds, an aggregate amount in cash
(the “Closing Payment Amount”) equal to:

(1)    the Closing Consideration as of the Closing Date, minus
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(2)    the aggregate Closing Options Payout Amount payable in respect of all In-the-Money Options
that are Employee Options, minus

(3)    the Escrow Amount, as set forth in Section 1.13(a), minus

(4)    the Seller Representative Reserve, as set forth in Section 1.15(d).

(iii)    To the Escrow Agent, the Escrow Amount, as set forth in Section 1.13(a);

(iv)    To each Person (if any) identified on the Estimated Closing Statement, the portion of the Estimated
Closing Date Transaction Expenses set forth opposite such Person’s name on the Estimated Closing Statement;

(v)    To each Person (if any) identified on the Estimated Closing Statement, the portion of the Estimated
Closing Date Indebtedness set forth opposite such Person’s name on the Estimated Closing Statement; and

(vi)    To the Seller Representative, the Seller Representative Reserve, as set forth in Section 1.15(d).

(b)    Within the later of fourteen (14) days after Closing and the next regularly scheduled payroll after Closing,
Parent shall cause the Company through its customary payroll processes or, if applicable, any third party payroll services provider
engaged by the Company or successor thereto, to pay to each Carve-Out Plan Participant, the amount set forth next to such
Carve-Out Plan Participant’s name on the Estimated Closing Statement, subject to any required withholding and provided that as
a condition to payment, such Carve-Out Plan Participant must have delivered an executed Carve-Out Plan Transmittal Document
to the Company, Parent, or another Person designated by Parent.

(c)    No less than five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to Parent a
spreadsheet (the “Estimated Closing Statement”) setting forth:

(i)    the Company’s good faith estimate of (i) the Closing Working Capital (the “Estimated Closing
Working Capital”), (ii) the Closing Cash (the “Estimated Closing Cash”), (iii) the Closing Date Indebtedness (the “Estimated
Closing Date Indebtedness”), (iv) the Closing Date Transaction Expenses (the “Estimated Closing Date Transaction
Expenses”), and (v) the Closing Working Capital Adjustment (the “Estimated Closing Working Capital Adjustment”);

(ii)    the name of each holder of Company Capital Stock and Company Options immediately prior to the
Effective Time,

(iii)    a designation, with respect to each holder of In-the-Money Options, as to whether such In-the-
Money Options are Employee Options or Non-Employee Options,
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(iv)    the number of shares of Company Capital Stock held by each holder thereof immediately prior to the
Effective Time (including the number of shares of Company Capital Stock for which Company Options are exercisable),

(v)    the amount and calculation of the Closing Consideration and the Per Share Common Closing
Consideration as of the Closing Date,

(vi)    the name of each Carve-Out Plan Participant as of immediately prior to Closing, and the portion of
the Carve-Out Plan Amount owed to such Carve-Out Plan Participant prior to any withholding,

(vii)    the portion of the Closing Consideration, as of the Closing Date, which each holder of Company
Capital Stock, Company Warrants or In-the-Money Options, as applicable, is eligible to receive on the Closing Date under this
Agreement (as if no amounts were withheld for the Escrow Fund, the Seller Representative Reserve or Taxes),

(viii)    the Pro Rata Fraction for each Participating Securityholder,

(ix)    the portion of the Escrow Amount deposited with respect to each Participating Securityholder in
accordance with such Participating Securityholder’s Pro Rata Fraction,

(x)    the portion of the Seller Representative Reserve to be contributed on behalf of each Participating
Securityholder in accordance with such Participating Securityholder’s Pro Rata Fraction.

The items prepared for the Estimated Closing Statement under clause (i) of this Section 1.7(c) shall be prepared in
conformity with GAAP in accordance with the Company’s historical practices and methodologies and in a manner consistent
with the illustrative calculation of Closing Working Capital attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Closing Date Adjustment
Illustration”). Upon the delivery of the Estimated Closing Statement, to the extent reasonably requested by Parent, the Company
will make available to Parent and its Representatives the work papers (subject to the execution of customary work paper access
letters, if requested) and other books and records used in preparing the Estimated Closing Cash, the Estimated Closing Working
Capital, the Estimated Closing Date Indebtedness, the Estimated Closing Date Transaction Expenses, and the Estimated Closing
Working Capital Adjustment. The Estimated Closing Statement shall be delivered to Parent with a certificate of the Chief
Executive Officer (or other authorized officer) of the Company certifying that the Estimated Closing Statement is a true and
complete statement of the Company’s determination of the amounts set forth therein.

1.8    Loan Payoff. The Company shall deliver to Parent prior to or at the Closing, (a) payoff letters for the Closing Date
Indebtedness, which shall provide the dollar amount of all Closing Date Indebtedness required to be paid in order to fully pay off
such Closing Date Indebtedness as of the Closing and providing for the release (upon such payoff) of all Liens relating to such
Indebtedness and (b) drafts of termination statements under the Uniform Commercial Code, releases of intellectual property
security interests and other instruments as may reasonably be requested by Parent to release all Liens and guarantees related to
such Closing Date Indebtedness.
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1.9    Further Action. At and after the Effective Time, the officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation shall be
authorized to execute and deliver, in the name and behalf of the Company or Merger Sub, any deeds, bills of sale, assignments or
assurances and to take and do, in the name and on behalf of the Company or Merger Sub, any other actions and things to vest,
perfect or confirm of record or otherwise in the Surviving Corporation any and all right, title and interest in, to and under any of
the rights, properties or assets of the Company acquired or to be acquired by the Surviving Corporation as a result of, or in
connection with, the Merger.

1.10    Closing of the Company’s Transfer Books. At the Effective Time: (a) all shares of Company Capital Stock
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall automatically be canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and all
holders of certificates representing shares of Company Capital Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to the Effective
Time shall cease to have any rights as stockholders of the Company, and each certificate representing any such Company Capital
Stock (a “Company Stock Certificate”) shall thereafter represent the right to receive the consideration referred to in Section 1.5
(or if applicable, Section 1.14), if any; and (b) the stock transfer books of the Company shall be closed with respect to all shares
of Company Capital Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time. No further transfer of any such shares of
Company Capital Stock shall be made on such stock transfer books after the Effective Time.

1.11    Exchange/Payment.

(a)    Prior to the Closing and no later than the Closing Date, Parent shall deposit with the Payment Agent cash in
the amount of the Closing Payment Amount in accordance with Section 1.7(a)(ii). In no event later than one Business Day after
the Effective Time, Parent shall cause the Payment Agent to provide (electronically, with respect to any Company Stockholder
for whom an email address is listed on the Estimated Closing Statement and who holds electronic, and not physical, Company
Stock Certificates, and by physical mail, to any Company Stockholder for whom an email address is not provided or who holds
physical Company Stock Certificates), with respect to the Company Stockholders as of immediately prior to the Effective Time,
(i) a letter of transmittal in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C (each, a “Letter of Transmittal”) and (ii)
instructions for use in effecting the surrender of Company Stock Certificates, if applicable, in exchange for the portion, if any, of
the Merger Consideration payable in accordance with Section 1.5 and Section 1.6 (but subject to Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13, 1.15,
and 1.16). Upon submission to the Payment Agent of a duly executed Letter of Transmittal, and with respect to any physical
Company Stock Certificates the Company Stock Certificate, the holder of such Company Stock Certificate shall be entitled to
receive in exchange therefor the cash amounts payable in accordance with Sections 1.5 and/or 1.6, as the case may be (subject in
each case to Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13, 1.15, and 1.16) for each share of Company Capital Stock correctly listed on such duly
executed Letter of Transmittal. No Company Stockholder who holds electronic and not physical Company Stock Certificates
shall be required to surrender any Company Stock Certificates in exchange for such Company Stockholder’s applicable portion of
the Merger Consideration but such Company Stockholder shall be required to deliver a duly completed and validly executed
Letter of Transmittal to the Payment Agent in order to receive its portion of the Merger Consideration.
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(b)    (i) Within one Business Day following the Effective Time, Parent shall cause the Payment Agent to provide,
with respect to each holder of Non-Employee Options as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, an option termination
agreement in the form acceptable to Parent (each, an “Option Termination Agreement”) and such other customary documents as
may reasonably be required by the Payment Agent. Upon delivery to the Payment Agent of a duly completed and validly
executed electronic or physical Option Termination Agreement and such other documents as are reasonably required by the
Payment Agent in accordance with the instructions therein, such holder of Non-Employee Options shall be entitled to receive in
exchange therefor, and the Parent shall cause the Payment Agent to pay, the cash amounts payable in accordance with Section 1.6
(subject in each case to Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13, 1.15, and 1.16).

(ii)    Within three Business Days following the Effective Time, Parent shall cause the Surviving
Corporation (or any Affiliate thereof or successor thereto) to provide, with respect to each holder of an Employee Option as of
immediately prior to the Effective Time, an Option Termination Agreement. Upon delivery to the Surviving Corporation of a
duly completed and validly executed electronic or physical Option Termination Agreement in accordance with the instructions
therein, such holder of Employee Options shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor, and Parent shall cause the Surviving
Corporation (or any Affiliate thereof or successor thereto) to pay through its customary payroll processes or, if applicable, any
third party payroll services provider engaged by the Surviving Corporation or any Affiliate thereof or successor thereto, the cash
amounts payable in accordance with Sections 1.6 (subject in each case to Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13, 1.15, and 1.16), within 10
days after receipt by the Surviving Corporation of the duly completed and validly executed Option Termination Agreement.

(iii)    Within one Business Day following the Effective Time, Parent shall cause the Payment Agent to
provide, with respect to each holder of Company Warrants as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, a warrant termination
agreement in the form acceptable to Parent (each, an “Warrant Termination Agreement”) and such other customary documents
as may reasonably be required by the Payment Agent. Upon delivery to the Payment Agent of a duly completed and validly
executed electronic or physical Warrant Termination Agreement and such other documents as are reasonably required by the
Payment Agent in accordance with the instructions therein, such holder of Company Warrants shall be entitled to receive in
exchange therefor, and the Parent shall cause the Payment Agent to pay within three Business Days after receipt by the Payment
Agent of the duly completed and validly executed Warrant Termination Agreement, the cash amounts payable in accordance with
Section 1.6 (subject in each case to Sections 1.11, 1.12, 1.13, 1.15, and 1.16).

(c)    Any portion of the amounts payable by the Payment Agent in accordance with Section 1.5, Section 1.6,
Section 1.13 or Section 1.16 that remains undistributed by the Payment Agent to the applicable Participating Securityholders as
of (i) the first anniversary of the Effective Time for amounts payable in accordance with Section 1.5 and Section 1.6, (ii) the first
anniversary of the Final Adjustment Amount Determination Date for amounts payable in accordance with Section 1.13, and (iii)
the first anniversary of the expiration of the Contingent Consideration Period for amounts payable in accordance with Section
1.16 shall be delivered to Parent upon demand, and any Participating Securityholders who have not theretofore surrendered the
documentation contemplated under this Section 1.11 shall thereafter look only to Parent for
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satisfaction of their claims for the cash amounts payable in accordance with Sections 1.5, 1.6, 1.13 and 1.16.

(d)    Neither Parent nor the Surviving Corporation shall be liable to any Participating Securityholder or other
holder or former holder of Company Capital Stock, Company Options or Company Warrants with respect to any amounts
properly delivered to any public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property Law or escheat Law.

(e)    Each of Parent, the Surviving Corporation, the Payment Agent and the Escrow Agent (each a “Withholding
Agent”) will be entitled to deduct and withhold from the consideration otherwise payable under this Agreement to any
Participating Securityholder, the amounts such Withholding Agent is required to deduct and withhold under the Code or any other
Tax Law. If any withholding obligation may be reduced or avoided by any Participating Securityholder providing information or
documentation to a Withholding Agent, such Participating Securityholder shall provide such information or documentation to
Withholding Agent. At the request of a Participating Securityholder, the Withholding Agent shall use commercially reasonable
efforts to cooperate with such Participating Securityholder to reduce or avoid such withholding obligation. To the extent that
amounts are so withheld and properly paid over to the applicable Governmental Entity in accordance with applicable Law, such
withheld amounts will be treated as having been paid to the applicable Participating Securityholder.

1.12    Post-Closing Adjustment to Closing Consideration.

(a)    Within 90 calendar days following the Closing, Parent shall prepare and deliver to the Seller Representative a
written schedule (the “Closing Statement”) setting forth in reasonable detail its calculation of (i) the Closing Working Capital,
(ii) the Closing Cash, (iii) the Closing Date Indebtedness, (iv) the Closing Date Transaction Expenses, and (v) the Closing
Working Capital Adjustment. The Closing Statement shall be prepared in conformity with GAAP in accordance with the
Company’s historical practices and methodologies and in a manner consistent with the Closing Date Adjustment Illustration and
shall not include any changes in assets or liabilities as a result of purchase accounting adjustments or other changes arising from
or resulting as a consequence of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Following the Closing, Parent shall provide the
Seller Representative and its Representatives reasonable access (including by electronic delivery of documents), during regular
business hours, in such a manner as to not interfere with the normal operation of Parent or the Surviving Corporation (subject to
the execution of customary work paper access letters, if requested) work papers and books and records relating to the preparation
of the Closing Statement solely for the purpose of assisting the Seller Representative in its review of the Closing Statement and
the calculations contained therein. The parties agree that the purpose of preparing the Closing Statement and determining the
Closing Working Capital, the Closing Date Indebtedness and the Closing Date Transaction Expenses and the related purchase
price adjustment contemplated by this Section 1.12 is to measure the amount of Closing Cash, Closing Working Capital, Closing
Date Indebtedness and Closing Date Transaction Expenses, and such processes are not intended to permit the introduction of new
or different judgments, accounting methods, policies, principles, practices, procedures, classifications or estimation
methodologies for the purpose of preparing the Closing Statement or determining Closing Cash, Closing Working Capital,
Closing Date Indebtedness or Closing Date
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Transaction Expenses; provided, in each case, that the judgments, accounting methods, policies, principles, practices, procedures,
classifications and estimation methodologies used in preparing the Estimated Closing Statement and determining Estimated
Closing Cash, Estimated Closing Working Capital, Estimated Closing Date Indebtedness and Estimated Closing Date Transaction
Expenses were in conformity with GAAP in accordance with the Company’s historical practices and methodologies and, as
applicable, in a manner consistent with the Closing Date Adjustment Illustration.

(b)    If the Seller Representative disagrees with the calculations in the Closing Statement, the Seller
Representative shall notify Parent of such disagreement in writing (the “Dispute Notice”) within 30 days after delivery of the
Closing Statement. The Dispute Notice must set forth in reasonable detail any item on the Closing Statement which the Seller
Representative believes has not been prepared in accordance with this Agreement and the Seller Representative’s determination
of the amount of such item. Any item or amount that Seller Representative does not dispute in the Dispute Notice within such 30-
day period shall be final, binding and conclusive for all purposes hereunder. In the event any such Dispute Notice is timely
provided, Parent and Seller Representative shall use commercially reasonable efforts for a period of 15 days (or such longer
period as they may mutually agree) to resolve any disagreements with respect to the calculations included in the Closing
Statement that were disputed in the Dispute Notice. If, at the end of such period, the Seller Representative and Parent remain
unable to resolve the dispute in its entirety, then the unresolved items and amounts thereof in dispute shall be submitted to Grant
Thornton LLP, or if such firm cannot or does not accept such engagement, another nationally recognized independent accounting
firm, reasonably acceptable to Parent and Seller Representative, which shall not be the independent accountants of Parent or the
Company (the “Dispute Auditor”). The Dispute Auditor shall determine, based solely on the provisions of this Section 1.12 and
the related definitions in this Agreement and the written presentations by Seller Representative and Parent, and not by
independent review, only those items and amounts that remain then in dispute as set forth in the Dispute Notice. The Dispute
Auditor’s determination of the Closing Working Capital, the Closing Date Indebtedness and/or the Closing Date Transaction
Expenses, as applicable, shall be made within 45 days after the dispute is submitted for its determination and shall be set forth in
a written statement delivered to Seller Representative and Parent. A judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction selected
pursuant to Section 9.6 hereof may be entered upon the Dispute Auditor’s determination. The Dispute Auditor shall have
exclusive jurisdiction over, and resorting to the Dispute Auditor as provided in this Section 1.12(b) shall be the only recourse and
remedy of the parties against one another with respect to, those items and amounts that remain in dispute under this
Section 1.12(b), and Parent shall not be entitled to seek indemnification or recovery of any attorneys’ fees or other professional
fees incurred by Parent in connection with any dispute governed by this Section 1.12. The Dispute Auditor shall allocate its fees
and expenses between the Parent and Seller Representative (on behalf of the Participating Securityholders) according to the
degree to which the positions of the respective parties are not accepted by the Dispute Auditor. In no event shall the decision of
the Dispute Auditor assign a value to any item greater than the greatest value for such item claimed by either Parent or Seller
Representative or lesser than the smallest value for such item claimed by either Parent or Seller Representative. Any
determinations made by the Dispute Auditor pursuant to this Section 1.12 shall be final, non-appealable and binding on the
parties hereto, absent manifest error or fraud.
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(c)    If, upon final determination in accordance with the terms of this Section 1.12 (the date of such final
determination, the “Final Adjustment Amount Determination Date”), the Adjustment Amount (if any) is a positive number, then
the Merger Consideration shall be increased by the Adjustment Amount. If the Adjustment Amount (if any) is a negative number,
the Merger Consideration shall be decreased by the Adjustment Amount. If the Adjustment Amount (if any) is a positive number,
within five (5) Business Days after the Final Adjustment Amount Determination Date, Parent shall pay the Adjustment Amount
due pursuant to Sections 1.5 and 1.6 to the Payment Agent or the Surviving Corporation, as applicable, for further distribution to
the applicable Participating Securityholders based on each such holder’s applicable Pro Rata Fraction of such Adjustment
Amount. If the Adjustment Amount (if any) is a negative number then within five (5) Business Days after the Final Adjustment
Amount Determination Date, Parent and the Seller Representative shall deliver joint written instructions to the Escrow Agent
directing the Escrow Agent to release to Parent the amount of such shortfall by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an
account or accounts designated by Parent in such joint written instructions (it being understood that in no event shall any such
recovery be in excess of the then-available amount in the Escrow Fund).

(d)    “Adjustment Amount” means the net amount (if disputed, as finally determined in accordance with Section
1.12(b)), which may be positive or negative, equal to:

(i)    (A) the Post-Closing Adjustment Amount (as finally determined in accordance with this Section 1.12)
minus (B) the Closing Working Capital Adjustment set forth on the Estimated Closing Statement; plus

(ii)    (A) the amount of the Closing Cash (as finally determined in accordance with this Section 1.12)
minus (B) the amount of the Estimated Closing Cash; plus

(iii)    (A) the Estimated Closing Date Indebtedness minus (B) the amount of Closing Date Indebtedness (as
finally determined in accordance with this Section 1.12); plus

(iv)    (A) the Estimated Closing Date Transaction Expenses minus (B) the amount of Closing Date
Transaction Expenses (as finally determined in accordance with this Section 1.12).

(e)    “Post-Closing Adjustment Amount” means the net amount (if disputed, as finally determined in accordance
with this Section 1.12) which may be positive or negative (as to the overall net amount and each component used in the
calculation of such net amount), equal to:

(i)    the amount, if any, by which the Closing Working Capital (as finally determined in accordance with
this Section 1.12) is less than the Target Working Capital Floor,

(ii)    the amount, if any, by which the Closing Working Capital (as finally determined pursuant to this
Section 1.12) is greater than the Target Working Capital Ceiling, and

(iii)    zero dollars ($0) if the Closing Working Capital (as finally determined pursuant to this Section 1.12)
is equal to the Target Working Capital Floor or Target
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Working Capital Ceiling or is an amount that is greater than the Target Working Capital Floor but less than the Target Working
Capital Ceiling.

1.13    Working Capital Escrow.

(a)    On the Closing Date, Parent shall deliver to the Escrow Agent, as a deposit to the Escrow Fund, cash in an
amount equal to $[***] (the “Escrow Amount”) from the Merger Consideration for the purpose of securing the obligations of the
Participating Securityholders under Section 1.12 of this Agreement. Each Participating Securityholder’s Pro Rata Fraction of the
Escrow Amount shall be withheld from the Closing Consideration otherwise payable to such Participating Securityholder on the
Closing Date. The Escrow Fund shall be held by the Escrow Agent in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the terms
of the Escrow Agreement. The Escrow Fund shall be held as a trust fund and shall not be subject to any lien, attachment, trustee
process or any other judicial process of any creditor of any Person, and shall be held and disbursed solely for the purposes and in
accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreement. Any amounts held in the Escrow Fund following the Final Adjustment
Amount Determination Date shall be released to the Payment Agent or the Surviving Corporation, as applicable, for further
distribution to the Participating Securityholders in proportion to their respective Pro Rata Fractions no later than five (5) Business
Days following the date on which, as applicable, (i) full and final payment is made of any Adjustment Amount payable to Parent
pursuant to Section 1.12(b) or (ii) a final determination is made pursuant to Section 1.12 that no Adjustment Amount is payable
to Parent (the “Working Capital Escrow Expiration Date”).

(b)    The Seller Representative shall, within three (3) Business Days after the Working Capital Escrow Expiration
Date, as applicable, deliver to the Escrow Agent, Parent and the Payment Agent a written direction and an updated Estimated
Closing Statement (which need not be certified by an officer of the Surviving Company) setting forth the portion of any
distribution of the Escrow Fund payable to each Participating Securityholder. Each distribution of cash made from the Escrow
Fund to the Participating Securityholder shall be made in proportion to the respective Pro Rata Fractions of the Participating
Securityholders at the time of such distribution, as set forth in the updated Estimated Closing Statement and the Escrow
Agreement. Escrow Fund releases due to the Participating Securityholders in respect of Company Capital Stock, Company
Warrants, In-the-Money Options and/or the Carve-Out Plan Amount shall be made to the Payment Agent or the Surviving
Corporation, as applicable, for further distribution to the applicable Participating Securityholders based on each such
Participating Securityholder’s applicable Pro Rata Fraction.

(c)    Any income, gains, losses and expenses of the Escrow Fund shall be included by Parent as taxable income or
loss of Parent, and any income and gains of the Escrow Fund shall be available to Parent as part of the Escrow Fund, but if not
paid to Parent in connection with or an Adjustment Amount in accordance with Section 1.12 shall ultimately be distributable to
the Participating Securityholders in accordance with this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement net of any tax liability incurred
by Parent in respect thereof, which amount shall be simultaneously paid to Parent by wire transfer of immediately available funds
to an account or accounts designated by Parent.
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(d)    The approval of this Agreement by the Company Stockholders, and the acceptance of a portion of the
Merger Consideration by the Participating Securityholders, shall constitute approval of the Escrow Agreement and of all of the
arrangements relating thereto, including the placement of the Escrow Amount in the Escrow Fund in accordance with the terms
hereof and thereof.

1.14    Appraisal and Dissenters’ Rights.

(a)    Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, shares of Company Capital Stock
held by a holder who has not voted in favor of the Merger or consented thereto in writing and who has duly and validly made a
demand for appraisal of such shares in compliance with Section 262 of the DGCL (any such shares being referred to as
“Dissenting Shares” until such time as such holder fails to perfect or otherwise loses such holder’s appraisal rights under Section
262 of the DGCL with respect to such shares or it is determined that such holder does not have appraisal rights in accordance
with the DGCL), will not be converted into or represent the right to receive cash in accordance with Section 1.5, but will be
converted into the right to receive such consideration as may be determined to be due with respect to such Dissenting Shares
pursuant to the DGCL (and at the Effective Time, such Dissenting Shares shall no longer be outstanding and shall automatically
be canceled and shall cease to exist, and such holder shall cease to have any rights with respect thereto, except the rights set forth
in Section 262 of the DGCL); provided, that if a holder of Dissenting Shares (a “Dissenting Stockholder”) withdraws or loses
such holder’s demand for such payment and appraisal or becomes ineligible for such payment and appraisal then, as of the later
of the Effective Time or the date on which such Dissenting Stockholder withdraws such demand or otherwise becomes ineligible
for such payment and appraisal, such holder’s Dissenting Shares will cease to be Dissenting Shares and will be converted into the
right to receive a cash payment determined in accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section 1.5 (subject to Sections
1.11, 1.12, 1.13 and 1.15) upon surrender of a Letter of Transmittal and the certificate representing such shares in accordance
with the terms of Section 1.11.

(b)    The Company shall give Parent: (i) prompt notice of: (A) any written demand received by the Company
prior to the Effective Time to require the Company to purchase shares of Company Capital Stock pursuant to the DGCL, or, if
applicable, Chapter 13 of the California Code; (B) any withdrawal of any such demand and (C) any other demand, notice or
instrument delivered to the Company pursuant to the DGCL or, if applicable, Chapter 13 of the California Code; and (ii) the
opportunity to participate in all negotiations and proceedings with respect to any such demand, notice or instrument. Prior to the
Closing, neither Parent nor any of its Affiliates (including the Surviving Corporation) shall make or commit to make any payment
with respect to any Dissenting Shares or offer to settle or settle any demands with respect to any Dissenting Shares without the
prior written consent of the Company.

1.15    Seller Representative.

(a)    In order to efficiently administer certain matters contemplated hereby following the Closing, including any
actions that the Seller Representative may, in its sole discretion, determine to be necessary, desirable or appropriate in connection
with the matters set
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forth in Sections 1.12, 1.13 and 1.14, the Participating Securityholders, by the adoption of this Agreement, acceptance of
consideration under this Agreement and/or the completion and execution of the Participating Securityholders Transmittal
Document shall be deemed to have designated Fortis Advisors LLC as the representative of the Participating Securityholders (the
“Seller Representative”).

(b)    In the event the Seller Representative becomes unable to perform its responsibilities hereunder or resigns
from such position, the Participating Securityholders who hold at least a majority in interest of the Pro Rata Fractions at such
time shall be authorized to and shall select another representative to fill such vacancy and such substituted representative shall be
deemed to be the Seller Representative for all purposes of this Agreement and the documents delivered pursuant hereto. The
immunities and rights to indemnification shall survive the resignation or removal of the Seller Representative or any member of
the Advisory Group and the Closing and/or any termination of this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement.

(c)    By their adoption of this Agreement, acceptance of consideration under this Agreement and/or the delivery of
a Participating Securityholder Transmittal Document contemplated by Section 1.11, and without any further action of any of the
Participating Securityholders or the Company, the Participating Securityholders shall be deemed to have agreed, in addition to the
foregoing, that:

(i)    the Seller Representative shall be appointed and constitute the true and lawful attorney-in-fact and
exclusive agent of each Participating Securityholders with full power in his, her or its name and on his, her or its behalf to act
according to the terms of this Agreement and in general to do all things and to perform all acts including, without limitation,
executing and delivering any agreements, certificates, receipts, instructions, notices or instruments contemplated by or deemed
advisable in connection with this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement or the Seller Representative Engagement Agreement;

(ii)    the Seller Representative shall have full authority to (A) execute, deliver, acknowledge, certify and
file on behalf of the Participating Securityholders (in the name of any or all of the Participating Securityholders or otherwise) any
and all documents that the Seller Representative may, in its sole discretion, determine to be necessary, desirable or appropriate, in
such forms and containing such provisions as the Seller Representative may, in its sole discretion, determine to be appropriate,
(B) give and receive notices and other communications relating to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (except to the extent that this Agreement contemplates that such notice or communication shall be given or received by
the Participating Securityholder individually), (C) take or refrain from taking any actions (whether by negotiation, settlement,
litigation or otherwise) to resolve or settle all matters and disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby and (D) engage attorneys, accountants, financial and other advisors, paying agents and other
persons necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the Seller Representative for the accomplishment of the foregoing;
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(iii)    notwithstanding the foregoing, the Seller Representative shall have no obligation to act on behalf of
the Participating Securityholders, except as expressly provided herein, in the Escrow Agreement and in the Seller Representative
Engagement Agreement;

(iv)    Parent shall be entitled to rely conclusively on the instructions and decisions given or made by the
Seller Representative as to any of the matters described in this Section 1.15, and no party shall have any cause of action against
Parent for any action taken by Parent in reliance upon any such instructions or decisions;

(v)    the Seller Representative shall be entitled to: (i) rely upon the Estimated Closing Statement, (ii) rely
upon any signature believed by it to be genuine, and (iii) reasonably assume that a signatory has proper authorization to sign on
behalf of the applicable Participating Securityholder or other party;

(vi)    all actions, decisions and instructions of the Seller Representative shall be conclusive and binding
upon each of the Participating Securityholders and the Participating Securityholders successors as if expressly confirmed and
ratified in writing by Participating Securityholders, all defenses which may be available to any Participating Securityholder to
contest, negate or disaffirm the action of the Seller Representative taken in good faith under this Agreement, the Escrow
Agreement or the Seller Representative Engagement Agreement are waived, and no Participating Securityholder shall have any
cause of action against the Seller Representative Group for any action taken, decision made or instruction given by the Seller
Representative under this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement or the Seller Representative Engagement Agreement, except for
fraud or willful breach of this Agreement on the part of the Seller Representative;

(vii)    the provisions of this Section 1.15, and the powers, immunities and rights to indemnification
granted to the Seller Representative Group hereunder: (i) are independent and severable, are irrevocable and coupled with an
interest, and shall be enforceable notwithstanding any rights or remedies that any Participating Securityholder may have in
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) shall survive the death, incompetence, bankruptcy or
liquidation of any Participating Securityholder and shall be binding on any successor thereto, and (iii) shall survive the delivery
of an assignment by any Participating Securityholder of the whole or any fraction of his, her or its interest in the Escrow Amount
and Contingent Consideration; and

(viii)    the provisions of this Section 1.15 shall be binding upon the executors, heirs, legal representatives
successors and assigns of each Participating Securityholder, and any references in this Agreement to a Participating
Securityholder or the Participating Securityholders shall mean and include the successors to the Participating Securityholders’
rights hereunder, whether pursuant to testamentary disposition, the laws of descent and distribution or otherwise.

(d)    At the Closing, Parent shall cause to be deposited, in an account designated by the Seller Representative,
$500,000 (the “Seller Representative Reserve”). Each Participating Securityholders’ Pro Rata Fraction of the Seller
Representative Reserve shall be withheld from the
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Merger Consideration otherwise payable to such Participating Securityholder on the Closing Date. The Seller Representative
Reserve may be applied as the Seller Representative, in its sole discretion, determines to be appropriate to defray, offset, or pay
any charges, fees, costs, liabilities, losses, claims, damages, judgments, fines, amounts paid in settlement or expenses (including
fees, disbursements and costs of counsel and other skilled professionals and in connection with seeking recovery from insurers)
that the Seller Representative incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the Escrow
Agreement or the Seller Representative Engagement Agreement, including in connection with the matters contemplated by
Section 1.12 and the evaluation or defense of any claim for indemnification under this Agreement (the “Seller Representative
Expenses”), or as otherwise determined by the Advisory Group. The Seller Representative is not providing any investment
supervision, recommendations or advice and shall have no responsibility or liability for any loss of principal of the Seller
Representative Reserve other than as a result of its gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Seller Representative is not acting
as a withholding agent or in any similar capacity in connection with the Seller Representative Reserve and has no tax reporting or
income distribution obligations. The Participating Securityholders will not receive any interest on the Seller Representative
Reserve and assign to the Seller Representative any such interest. Subject to Advisory Group approval, the Seller Representative
may contribute funds to the Seller Representative Reserve from any consideration otherwise distributable to the Participating
Securityholders. The balance of the Seller Representative Reserve held pursuant to this Section 1.15(d), if any, shall, at the sole
discretion of the Seller Representative and at such time to be determined in the sole discretion of the Seller Representative, be
deposited with the Payment Agent and distributed to the Participating Securityholders according to each such Participating
Securityholder’s Pro Rata Fraction. Prior to any such distribution of the Seller Representative Reserve, the Seller Representative
shall deliver to Parent and the Payment Agent an updated Estimated Closing Statement (which need not be certified by an officer
of the Company) setting forth the portion of the Seller Representative Reserve payable to each Participating Securityholder.

(e)    Certain Participating Securityholders have entered into an engagement agreement (the “Seller Representative
Engagement Agreement”) with the Seller Representative to provide direction to the Seller Representative in connection with its
services under this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement and the Seller Representative Engagement Agreement (such Participating
Securityholders, including their individual representatives, collectively hereinafter referred to as the “Advisory Group”). As
between the Participating Securityholders and the Seller Representative, neither the Seller Representative nor its members,
managers, directors, officers, contractors, agents and employees nor any member of the Advisory Group (collectively, the “Seller
Representative Group”), shall be liable for any act done or omitted hereunder, under the Escrow Agreement or under the Seller
Representative Engagement Agreement as Seller Representative while acting in good faith, and any act done or omitted to be
done pursuant to the advice of counsel shall be conclusive evidence of such good faith. The Seller Representative Group shall be
indemnified, defended and held harmless and reimbursed by the Participating Securityholders against any Seller Representative
Expenses incurred without bad faith, gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Seller Representative and arising
out of or in connection with the acceptance or administration of its duties hereunder, under the Escrow Agreement or under the
Seller Representative Engagement Agreement and in connection with any Seller Representative Expenses, at the election of the
Seller Representative, at any time (i) from
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the Seller Representative Reserve, to the extent any funds remain in such fund, (ii) following exhaustion of the Seller
Representative Reserve, from any distribution of the Escrow Amount and Contingent Consideration otherwise distributable to the
Participating Securityholders at the time of distribution, and (iii) directly from the Participating Securityholders according to each
Participating Securityholder’s Pro Rata Fraction; provided, that no Participating Securityholder shall be liable to the Seller
Representative for any amount in excess of the portion of the Merger Consideration actually paid to such Participating
Securityholder. The Participating Securityholders acknowledge that the Seller Representative shall not be required to expend or
risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the exercise or performance of any of its powers, rights, duties or
privileges or pursuant to this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, the Seller Representative Engagement Agreement or the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby. Furthermore, the Seller Representative shall not be required to take any action
unless the Seller Representative has been provided with funds, security or indemnities which, in its determination, are sufficient
to protect the Seller Representative against the costs, expenses and liabilities which may be incurred by the Seller Representative
in performing such actions.

1.16    Contingent Consideration.

(a)    Revenue Statement. Within 90 days after completion of each of the Measurement Period, the First
Contingent Consideration Period and the Second Contingent Consideration Period, Parent will cause to be prepared and delivered
to the Seller Representative a certificate (each, a “Revenue Statement”) setting forth the Achieved Revenue for such period and,
with respect to the Revenue Statement delivered following completion of the First Contingent Consideration Period and the
Second Contingent Consideration Period, the amount of any Contingent Consideration due and payable by Parent to the
Participating Securityholders (in the aggregate) in respect of such period.

(b)    Defined Terms. As used in this Agreement:

(i)     “Contingent Consideration” means (i) for the First Contingent Consideration Period, an amount
equal to [***] the Achieved Revenue for the First Contingent Consideration Period exceeds [***] (such amount, the “First Period
Earned Contingent Consideration”), and (ii) for the Second Contingent Consideration Period, an amount equal to [***] the
Achieved Revenue for the Second Contingent Consideration Period exceeds [***] (such amount, the “Second Period Earned
Contingent Consideration” and, with the First Period Earned Contingent Consideration, the “Earned Contingent
Consideration”); provided, however, in no event shall the aggregate of the First Period Earned Contingent Consideration and the
Second Period Earned Contingent Consideration exceed Thirty-Five Million Dollars ($35,000,000) (the “Maximum Contingent
Consideration”);

(ii)    “Achieved Revenue” means the gross revenue, determined in accordance with GAAP, from sales of
the Company Products, and any product that is an improvement or modification to a Company Product or that embodies any
Company Intellectual
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Property or any material Intellectual Property licensed to the Company, (collectively, “Revenue Products”) by the Company or
an Affiliate thereof (in the case of sales during the Measurement Period) or by the Surviving Corporation or an Affiliate thereof
(each, a “Selling Party”), less, in each case to the extent actually incurred or allowed and allocated to such products in
accordance with GAAP, consistently applied, returns, allowances for returns, cash discounts, rebates, performance guarantees and
fees paid or payable to any group purchasing organization to the extent such fees are in amounts customary in the trade of the
Surviving Corporation and its Affiliates; provided that Achieved Revenue outside of the United States will first be determined in
the currency in which it is incurred and will then be converted into an amount in United States dollars using the Selling Party’s
customary and usual conversion procedures for the applicable time period and such converted amount will be used in determining
the Contingent Consideration;

(iii)    “First Contingent Consideration Period” means the period beginning the first day of the fiscal
quarter of Parent during which the Closing Date occurs and ending on the last day of the fourth successive fiscal quarter of Parent
thereafter;

(iv)    “Second Contingent Consideration Period” means the period beginning the day immediately
following the end of the First Contingent Consideration Period and ending on the last day of the fourth successive fiscal quarter
of Parent thereafter (with each of the First Contingent Consideration Period and the Second Contingent Consideration Period
being referred to herein as a “Contingent Consideration Period”); and

(v)    “Measurement Period” means the twelve-month period ending on the last day of the last completed
calendar quarter preceding the Closing Date (unless the Closing Date is on the last day of a calendar quarter, in which case, such
period will be the twelve-month period ending on the Closing Date) (such date, the “Measurement Period End Date”).

(c)    Dispute of Revenue Statement. Following delivery of the applicable Revenue Statement, Parent shall give the
Seller Representative and its Representatives timely reasonable access to the work papers prepared or reviewed by Parent and its
Representatives in connection with the preparation of the applicable Revenue Statement and to such other records and
Representatives of Parent and any Selling Party as are reasonably necessary to enable the Seller Representative to verify the
accuracy of the applicable Revenue Statement (the “Revenue Records”). Parent shall maintain the Revenue Records until one
year after the end of the Second Contingent Consideration Period. Seller Representative may dispute any amounts reflected on
such Revenue Statement by notifying Parent in writing of each disputed item within 30 days after the date on which Seller
Representative is given access to the applicable Revenue Records. If Seller Representative delivers a notice of disagreement
within such 30-day period, Seller Representative and Parent shall, during the 15 days following such delivery (or such longer
period as they may mutually agree), each use commercially reasonable efforts to reach agreement on the disputed items or
amounts in order to finally determine the amounts set forth on such Revenue Statement. If Seller Representative and Parent are
unable to reach agreement concerning any items on such Revenue Statement during such 15-day period, they shall promptly
thereafter submit the dispute and all Revenue Records to the Dispute Auditor for resolution pursuant to Section 1.12(b). The
amounts set forth on each Revenue Statement shall be deemed conclusively determined for purposes of this Agreement upon the
earlier to occur of (i) the failure of Seller Representative to
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notify Parent of a dispute within 30 days of the date on which Seller Representative is given access to the applicable Revenue
Records, (ii) the mutual written resolution of all disputes by Parent and Seller Representative and (iii) the resolution of all
disputes by the Dispute Auditor pursuant to Section 1.12(b).

(d)    Payment Procedures. Within 10 Business Days of the final determination of the Achieved Revenue for the
applicable Contingent Consideration Period in accordance with the last sentence of Section 1.16(c), Parent shall pay to the
Payment Agent or the Surviving Corporation (as applicable), and shall cause the Payment Agent or the Surviving Corporation, as
applicable, to pay to each Participating Securityholder, by wire transfer of immediately available funds (or by check, as
reasonably directed by such person), such person’s Pro Rata Fraction of the Contingent Consideration for such Contingent
Consideration Period (in accordance with the provisions of Section 1.11). The right of the Participating Securityholders to receive
their respective Pro Rata Fractions of any Contingent Consideration shall not be evidenced by any form of certificate or
instrument. The right of any Participating Securityholder to receive such person’s Pro Rata Fraction of any Contingent
Consideration shall not be assignable or transferable except by will, the applicable Laws of intestacy or other operation of
applicable Law, without Parent’s written consent (which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed but which
may be subject to Parent’s requirement that any costs or expenses related to any such assignment or transfer be borne by the
applicable Participating Securityholder) and neither Parent, the Surviving Corporation, the Payment Agent, nor the Seller
Representative shall give effect to any purported assignment or transfer made in contravention of this sentence.

(e)    Covenants.

(i)    Until the end of the Second Contingent Consideration Period, Parent shall, and shall cause each
Selling Party to, use commercially reasonable efforts to commercialize and sell Company Products; provided that nothing in this
clause (i) shall require Parent to commercialize or sell any Company Products outside the United States. Without limiting the
foregoing, at no point during either Contingent Consideration Period shall Parent take, or shall Parent permit any Selling Party to
take, directly or indirectly, any action for the primary purpose of avoiding or reducing any of the Earned Contingent
Consideration, it being understood that subject to the first sentence of this Section 1.16(e)(i), Parent shall have sole discretion
with regard to all matters relating to the operation of the Surviving Corporation and its Affiliates.

(ii)    Until the end of the Second Contingent Consideration Period, in the event of the occurrence of any of
the following events, if the Maximum Contingent Consideration has not been paid, then the difference between the Maximum
Contingent Consideration and the Contingent Consideration already paid shall be immediately due and payable in full: (A) Parent
or the Surviving Corporation commences any proceeding in bankruptcy or for dissolution, liquidation, winding-up, or other relief
under state or federal bankruptcy laws; (B) any such proceeding is commenced against Parent or the Surviving Corporation, or a
receiver or trustee is appointed for Parent or the Surviving Corporation or a substantial part of its respective property, and such
proceeding or appointment is not dismissed or discharged within sixty (60) days after its commencement; (C) Parent or the
Surviving Corporation makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or petitions or applies to any tribunal for the appointment
of a custodian, receiver or
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trustee for all or substantially all of its assets or has a receiver, custodian or trustee appointed for all or substantially all of its
assets; or (D) a Change of Control is consummated.

(f)    Duty to Notify; Information Rights.

Parent shall deliver a status update to the Seller Representative not less frequently than once each calendar quarter
during either Contingent Consideration Period including the Achieved Revenue as of the end of the applicable quarter and a high-
level summary of commercialization activities conducted in such quarter; provided that in no case shall Parent be required to
provide any such status update before it publicly announces its financial results for the applicable quarter. Parent shall also
provide additional information related to the Achieved Revenue and commercialization activities as reasonably requested by the
Seller Representative. The Seller Representative shall not disclose any information included in any such status update except to
Company Stockholders who serve on the Seller Representative’s advisory committee or who have executed a confidentiality
agreement on substantially similar terms as those set forth in the Confidentiality Agreement or as necessary to enforce this
Agreement or as required by applicable law.

(g)    Restrictions on Transfer. Until the earlier to occur of the payment of the Maximum Contingent Consideration
and the end of the Second Contingent Consideration Period, if Parent or the Surviving Corporation or an Affiliate thereof sells,
assigns, licenses or otherwise transfers rights in or to any Revenue Product to a third party (a “Significant Sale”), then Parent
shall either (i) cause such third party in such Significant Sale to assume Parent’s obligations under this Agreement with respect to
the Contingent Consideration, which assumption shall not require any Participating Securityholder’s or the Seller
Representative’s consent, provided that Parent shall remain liable for all such assumed obligations, or (ii) pay the difference
between the Maximum Contingent Consideration and the Earned Contingent Consideration already paid to the Payment Agent
for distribution to the Participating Securityholders in accordance with the terms of this Agreement within 20 Business Days
following the consummation of such Significant Sale. For the sake of clarity, in no event shall (A) the grant of rights to market,
sell, and/or pursue and maintain regulatory clearances with respect to a Revenue Product to a third party distributor,
subdistributor or other reseller of Parent or the Surviving Corporation or an Affiliate thereof or (B) the sale of any Revenue
Product to a customer or end-user constitute a “Significant Sale.”

Section 2.    REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company represents and warrants to Parent and Merger Sub, except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedule, as
follows:

2.1    Authority; Binding Nature of Agreement. The Company has all necessary corporate power and authority to enter
into and to perform its obligations under this Agreement and each Transaction Document to which it is a party, and, subject to, in
the case of the consummation of the Merger, adoption of this Agreement by the Required Company Stockholder Votes, to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. As of the date of this Agreement, the Board of Directors of the
Company (at a meeting duly called and held) has (a) determined that this Agreement, the Merger and the other Transactions are
advisable and fair
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and in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, (b) authorized, approved and declared advisable the “agreement of
merger” (as such term is used in Section 251 of the DGCL) contained in this Agreement, the execution, delivery and performance
of this Agreement by the Company and the consummation of the Merger, and (c) recommended the adoption of the “agreement
of merger” contained in this Agreement by the Company Stockholders and directed that the “agreement of merger” contained in
this Agreement be submitted for consideration by the Company Stockholders by written consent (collectively, the “Company
Board Recommendation”). This Agreement has been duly executed by the Company, and constitutes the legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to (i) laws of general
application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors, and (ii) rules of law governing specific performance,
injunctive relief and other equitable remedies. When each Transaction Document to which the Company is or will be a party has
been duly executed and delivered by the Company (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by each other party
thereto), such Transaction Document will constitute a legal and binding obligation of the Company enforceable against it in
accordance with its terms, subject to (i) laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors,
and (ii) rules of law governing specific performance, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies.

2.2    Due Incorporation; No Subsidiaries; Etc.

(a)    The Company is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the
State of Delaware and has all necessary corporate power and authority to own, operate or lease the properties and assets now
owned, operated or leased by it and to conduct its business in the manner in which its business has been and is currently being
conducted.

(b)    The Company is qualified to do business as a foreign corporation, and is in good standing, under the laws of
all states where the nature of its business requires such qualification, except where the failure to be so qualified or in such good
standing has not had and could not reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(c)    The Company does not own, have any interest in any shares or have an ownership interest in any other
Person, and it has never owned, had any interest in any shares or had any ownership interest in any other Person.

2.3    Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. The Company has delivered or made available to Parent copies of the
Company Charter and Company bylaws, including all amendments thereto, as in effect on the date hereof, which organizational
documents are in full force and effect.

2.4    Capitalization, Etc.

(a)    As of the date of this Agreement, the authorized capital of the Company consists of:
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(i)    121,005,403 shares of Preferred Stock, of which 30,581,046 shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock are
issued and outstanding and 191,689 shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock are subject to issuance upon exercise of outstanding
Company Warrants, 7,839,461 shares of Series 4 Preferred Stock are issued and outstanding and 72,120 shares of Series 4
Preferred Stock are subject to issuance upon exercise of outstanding Company Warrants, 45,971,053 shares of Series 5 Preferred
Stock are issued and outstanding and 3,741,351 shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock are subject to issuance upon exercise of
outstanding Company Warrants, and 32,608,683 shares of Series 6 Preferred Stock are issued and outstanding; and

(ii)    146,000,000 shares of Company Common Stock, of which 4,548,906 shares are issued and
outstanding. 18,478,131 shares of Company Common Stock are reserved for issuance under the Company Option Plan, of which
16,158,947 shares are subject to outstanding stock options under the Company Option Plan and 2,319,184 shares remain
available for future grant under the Company Option Plan, and 448,842 shares of Company Common Stock are subject to
issuance upon exercise of outstanding Company Warrants.

(b)    Except as set forth in Section 2.4(a) above and except for (i) the Company Options, (ii) the Company
Warrants, (iii) the conversion privileges of the Company Preferred Stock and (iv) those rights set forth in Part 2.4(b) of the
Disclosure Schedule, (A) there are no other existing options, warrants, calls, rights (including conversion rights, preemptive
rights, co-sale rights, rights of first refusal or other similar rights), agreements or commitments of the Company or to which the
Company, any Company Stockholder or holder of Company Options or Company Warrants is a party requiring, and there are no
securities of the Company outstanding which upon conversion or exchange would require, the issuance, sale or transfer of any
additional shares of capital stock or other equity securities of the Company or other securities convertible into, exchangeable for
or evidencing the right to subscribe for or purchase shares of Company Capital Stock or other equity securities of the Company,
(B) there are no commitments or obligations, contingent or otherwise, of the Company to repurchase, redeem or otherwise
acquire any shares of Company Capital Stock and (C) there are no outstanding stock appreciation, phantom stock, profit
participation or similar rights with respect to the Company.

(c)    Except for those rights set forth in Part 2.4(c) of the Disclosure Schedule, there are no bonds, debentures,
notes or other Indebtedness of the Company having the right to vote or consent (or, convertible into, or exchangeable for,
securities having the right to vote or consent) on any matters on which the Company Stockholders may vote. Except as set forth
in Part 2.4(c) of the Disclosure Schedule, there are no voting trusts, irrevocable proxies or other Contracts to which the Company,
or, to the Company’s Knowledge, any Company Stockholder or any holder of Company Options or Company Warrants is a party
or is bound with respect to the voting or consent of any shares of Company Capital Stock.

(d)    All of the outstanding shares of Company Capital Stock are, and all shares which may be issued pursuant to
the exercise of the Company Options and Company Warrants, when issued in accordance with the applicable security, will be (i)
duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, (ii) not subject to any preemptive rights created by statute, the
provisions of the Company Charter or Company bylaws, or any agreement to which the Company is a party; and (iii) free of any
Encumbrances created by the Company in respect thereof. All of
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the outstanding shares of Company Capital Stock, the Company Options and the Company Warrants have been issued and
granted in all material respects in compliance with all applicable Laws.

(e)    Part 2.4(e) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth (i) the name of each Person that is the registered owner of
any shares of Company Capital Stock outstanding as of the date of this Agreement and the number and class of shares owned by
such Person; (ii) with respect to each Company Option that is outstanding as of the date of this Agreement: (A) the name of the
holder of such Company Option; (B) the total number of shares of Company Common Stock that are subject to such Company
Option; (C) the exercise price per share of Company Common Stock purchasable under such Company Option; and (D) whether
such Company Option is an Employee Option or a Non-Employee Option; (iii) with respect to each Company Warrant that is
outstanding as of the date of this Agreement: (A) the name of the holder of such Company Warrant; (B) the total number and
class of shares and class of Company Capital Stock that are subject to such Company Warrant; and (C) the exercise price per
share of Company Capital Stock purchasable under such Company Warrant and (iv) with respect to the Company Carve-Out
Plan, as of the date of this Agreement: (A) the name of each Carve-Out Plan Participant, (B) the percentage of Net Proceeds that
the Board has approved as the Carve-Out Plan Amount, and (C) the percentage of the Carve-Out Plan Amount that each Carve-
Out Plan Participant would be entitled to receive after the Effective Time pursuant to the Company Carve-Out Plan, assuming
that such Carve-Out Plan Participant were to have complied with all requirements of the Company Carve-Out Plan necessary to
receive such amounts at the times and subject to the conditions set forth in the Company Carve-Out Plan. Prior to the Effective
Time, the Company will provide to Parent (x) the determination of the aggregate amount of Net Proceeds by the Board of
Directors of the Company, and (y) the Company’s determination (set forth on the Estimated Closing Statement as required by
Section 1.7(c)(vi)) of the amount of the Carve-Out Plan Amount that each Carve-Out Plan Participant is entitled to receive (prior
to applicable withholding and taxes) pursuant to the Company Carve-Out Plan as of the Effective Time, assuming that such
Carve-Out Plan Participant has complied with all requirements of the Company Carve-Out Plan necessary to receive such
amounts as of the Effective Time.

(f)    Each grant of a Company Option was duly authorized no later than the date on which the grant of such
Company Option was by its terms to be effective (the “Grant Date”) by all necessary corporate action, the award agreement
governing such grant was duly executed and delivered by each party thereto, each such grant was made in accordance with the
terms of the Company Option Plan and all other applicable legal requirements and the per share exercise price of each Company
Option was equal to the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the applicable Grant Date. No Company Options are
treated as non-exempt nonqualified deferred compensation arrangements under Section 409A of the Code and the treasury
regulations thereunder.

2.5    Non-Contravention; Consents. Except as set forth in Part 2.5 of the Disclosure Schedule, the execution, delivery
and performance of this Agreement by the Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement will not cause a: (a) violation of any of the provisions of the Company Charter or Company bylaws; (b) violation
by the Company of any Law applicable to the Company; or (c) default (or an event that, with or
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without notice or lapse of time or both would constitute a default) on the part of the Company under, or give to others any rights
of termination, cancellation or acceleration of any material obligations of the Company pursuant to, any Material Contract, or
result in the creation of a Lien on any of the properties or assets of the Company (other than a Permitted Encumbrance). Except
as set forth in Part 2.5 of the Disclosure Schedule and except as may be required by the DGCL or HSR Act, the Company is not
required to obtain any Consent from, or submit any filing or notification to, any Governmental Entity or party to a Material
Contract at any time prior to the Closing as a result of, or in order to carry out, the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the
other Transaction Documents or the consummation by the Company of the Transactions.

2.6    Financial Statements. The Company has delivered or otherwise made available to Parent or its counsel (a) the
Company’s audited balance sheet as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019, (b) the Company’s audited statement of
operations and statement of cash flows for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019, and (c) the
Company’s unaudited balance sheet as of September 30, 2020 (the “Unaudited Balance Sheet”), and the unaudited statement of
operations and statement of cash flows for the 9 months ended September 30, 2020 (all of the foregoing financial statements of
the Company and any notes thereto are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Company Financial Statements”). The
Company Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis throughout the period
involved and fairly present in all material respects the financial condition of the Company at the dates therein indicated and the
results of operations of the Company for the periods therein specified in accordance with GAAP, except (i) as may be indicated in
the footnotes to such financial statements and (ii) that the unaudited financial statements do not contain footnotes (none of which,
if presented, would materially differ from those in the audited financial statements) and are subject to normal and recurring year-
end adjustments (none of which are, individually or in the aggregate, material).

2.7    Absence of Certain Changes. Except as expressly contemplated by this Agreement, between the date of the
Unaudited Balance Sheet and the date of this Agreement, there has not occurred: (a) any event or occurrence or series of related
events or occurrences that has had or could reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material
Adverse Effect; or (b) any event or action that would require the consent of Parent pursuant to Sections 4.2 if such event or action
occurred during the Pre-Closing Period.

2.8    Title to Assets. The Company has good and valid title to all assets owned by it as of the date of this Agreement,
other than Intellectual Property which is covered by Section 2.10, including all assets (other than capitalized or operating leases)
reflected on the Unaudited Balance Sheet (except for assets sold or otherwise disposed of since the date of the Unaudited Balance
Sheet in the ordinary course of business). Except as set forth in Part 2.8 of the Disclosure Schedule, (a) all of such assets are
owned by the Company free and clear of any Liens (other than Permitted Encumbrances), (b) all of such assets are in good
operating condition and repair, and are adequate for the uses to which they are being put as of the date of this Agreement and (c)
all of such assets
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are sufficient for the continued conduct of the Company’s business after the Closing in substantially the same manner as
conducted as of the date of this Agreement.

2.9    Real Property; Leasehold. The Company does not own, and has never owned, any real property, and the Company
does not own, and has never owned, any interest in real property, except for the leaseholds created under the real property leases
identified in Part 2.9 of the Disclosure Schedule (the “Leased Real Property”). The Company is in material compliance with such
real property leases and has a valid and subsisting leasehold interest in all Leased Real Property, in each case free and clear of all
Liens, other than Permitted Encumbrances. The Company has not granted any other Person the right to occupy or use any Leased
Real Property. There are no written or oral subleases, licenses, concessions, occupancy agreements or other Contracts granting to
any other Person the right of use or occupancy of any Leased Real Property or under which the Company is a sublessor of any
Leased Real Property. The Company has not received written notice of (a) default, or intention to terminate or not renew, any real
property lease or (b) any eminent domain, condemnation or similar proceeding pending or threatened, against all or any portion
of any Leased Real Property. The use and operation of the Leased Real Property in the conduct of the Company’s business does
not violate in any material respect any Law, covenant, condition, restriction, easement, license, Permit or agreement. There are no
Legal Proceedings pending nor, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened against or affecting the Leased Real Property or any
portion thereof or interest therein in the nature or in lieu of condemnation or eminent domain proceedings.

2.10    Intellectual Property.

(a)    Part 2.10(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list of each Company Product.

(b)    Part 2.10(b)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule identifies: (i) each item of Registered IP in which the Company
has or purports to have an ownership interest of any nature (whether exclusively, jointly with another Person, or otherwise);
(ii) the jurisdiction in which such item of Registered IP has been registered or filed and the applicable registration or serial
number and filing and registration date; (iii) any other Person that has an ownership interest in such item of Registered IP and the
nature of such ownership interest, and (iv) any unregistered copyrights, trademarks or software that is material to the Company.
To the Company’s Knowledge, each of the Patents included in the Registered IP that are owned by the Company properly
identifies by name each and every inventor of the claims thereof as determined in accordance with the Laws of the jurisdiction in
which such Patent is issued or pending. Each item of Company Intellectual Property is, to the Company’s Knowledge, valid and
enforceable, and in the case of Registered IP, subsisting. As of the date of this Agreement, no Registered IP that is listed or
required to be listed on Part 2.10(b)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule is involved in any interference, opposition, reissue,
reexamination, revocation, or equivalent proceeding, in which the scope, validity or enforceability of any such Registered IP is
being contested or challenged.

(c)    Except as set forth in Part 2.10(c) of the Disclosure Schedule, the Company exclusively owns and has good,
valid, and sole title (free and clear of all Liens other than Permitted Encumbrances) to all of the Company Intellectual Property.
The Company Intellectual Property,
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together with any Intellectual Property and Intellectual Property Rights licensed to the Company pursuant to an Inbound License
constitutes all Intellectual Property and Intellectual Property Rights used in, necessary for or otherwise material to the operation
of the business of the Company, other than Off-the-Shelf Software.

(d)    To the Company’s Knowledge, the Company’s conduct of the business as currently conducted does not
infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate, and has not infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated any valid Intellectual
Property Rights of others. Except as set forth in Part 2.10(d) of the Disclosure Schedule, since January 1, 2017, no Person has
asserted any written claim (i) challenging or questioning the Company’s right, interest or title in any of the Company Intellectual
Property or (ii) alleging infringement or misappropriation of any Intellectual Property by the Company. None of the Company
Intellectual Property is subject to any pending or outstanding injunction, directive, order, judgment, or other disposition of
dispute that adversely restricts the use, transfer, registration or licensing of any such Intellectual Property by the Company, or
otherwise adversely affects the validity, scope, use, registrability, or enforceability of any Company Intellectual Property.

(e)    To the Company’s Knowledge, since January 1, 2017 no Person has infringed or misappropriated, and no
Person is currently infringing, misappropriating or otherwise violating any Company Intellectual Property. The Company has not,
since January 1, 2017, asserted any claim that any Person has infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated any Company
Intellectual Property.

(f)    Part 2.10(f) of the Disclosure Schedule identifies each Contract pursuant to which any material Intellectual
Property or Intellectual Property Rights are licensed to the Company (other than (i) agreements between the Company and its
employees and consultants, (ii) non-exclusive licenses to commercially available third-party software (“Off-the-Shelf Software”)
or (iii) non-disclosure agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice) (“Inbound
Licenses”). For the avoidance of doubt, a covenant not to sue granted in favor of the Company and that relates to Intellectual
Property shall be considered an Inbound License. Except with respect to the agreements listed in Part 2.10(f) of the Disclosure
Schedule and Off-the-Shelf Software, the Company is not obligated under any contract or other agreement to make any payments
by way of royalties, fees, or otherwise to any owner or licensor of, or other claimant to, any Intellectual Property or Intellectual
Property Rights. Except as set forth on Part 2.10(f) of the Disclosure Schedule, all Off-the-Shelf Software used by the Company
in the conduct of its business will continue to be available for use by the Surviving Corporation following the consummation of
the Transactions without payment of any additional fees by the Surviving Corporation.

(g)    Part 2.10(g) of the Disclosure Schedule lists each outbound license of Company Intellectual Property, other
than non-exclusive licenses entered into in the ordinary course of business (“Outbound Licenses”). Each Inbound License and
Outbound License is valid and enforceable against the Company and the counterparties thereto. The Company is not, and to the
Company’s Knowledge, no counterparty thereto is in default or other breach of any Inbound License or Outbound License. For
the avoidance of doubt, a covenant not to sue granted by the Company and that relates to Intellectual Property shall be considered
an Outbound License.
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(h)    The Company has taken reasonable security measures, including measures against unauthorized disclosure,
to protect the secrecy, confidentiality, and value of its trade secrets and other technical information. To the Company’s
Knowledge, there has been no unauthorized use or disclosure of any of the Company’s trade secrets or other technical
information.

(i)    All current and former employees, contractors, consultants of the Company and any other Persons who have
been involved in the development of any Company Intellectual Property for or on behalf of the Company have executed
agreements (i) acknowledging the Company’s exclusive ownership of all Intellectual Property invented, created, or developed by
such employee or independent contractor within the scope of his or her employment or engagement with the Company; (ii)
granting to the Company a present, irrevocable assignment of any ownership interest such employee or independent contractor
may have in or to such Intellectual Property; and (iii) irrevocably waiving any right or interest, including any moral rights,
regarding any such Intellectual Property, to the extent permitted by applicable Law (each, an “IP Agreement”). All such IP
Agreements are in the form(s) provided to Parent, and the Company has provided Parent with true and complete copies of all
such IP Agreements. No employee, officer, director, consultant or advisor of the Company (i) has any right, license, and claim or
interest whatsoever in or with respect to any Company Intellectual Property, or (ii) to the Company’s Knowledge, is in material
violation of any IP Agreement.

(j)    Except as set forth on Part 2.10(j) of the Disclosure Schedule, no Governmental Entity or academic
institution has any right to, ownership of, or right to royalties for or license to any Company Intellectual Property.

(k)    The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby (alone or in combination with any other event), and the compliance with the provisions of this Agreement do not and will
not conflict with, alter, or impair, any of the rights of the Company in any Company Intellectual Property or any rights of the
Company under agreements identified in Part 2.10(f) of the Disclosure Schedule or the validity, enforceability, use, right to use,
ownership, priority, duration, or scope of any Company Intellectual Property or any Intellectual Property or Intellectual Property
Rights that the Company uses pursuant to an agreement identified in Part 2.10(f) of the Disclosure Schedule.

(l)    Part 2.10(l)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule identifies each item of Open Source Code used or distributed in
connection with each Company Product and the Company Software, including an identification of the license pursuant to which
such Open Source Code is used or distributed, identification of the Company Product or Company Software with which such
Open Source Code is used or distributed and a description of the manner of use or distribution of such Open Source Code. Except
as set forth in Part 2.10(l)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedule, the Company has not used and no Company Software contains any
Open Source Code in a manner that: (i) requires the Company to distribute or disclose the source code of any Company Software;
(ii) requires the Company to distribute or make available any Company Software without charge or at a reduced charge; or (iii)
provides users the right to decompile, disassemble or otherwise reverse engineer any Company Software; except, in each of the
foregoing cases, other than with respect to the Open Source Code itself.
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(m)    Except as listed in Part 2.10(m) of the Disclosure Schedule, and except for software (e.g., javascript) which
is customarily delivered in source code form in the ordinary course of providing such software (e.g., accompanying a developer’s
kit), the Company has not disclosed or delivered to any Person, or permitted the disclosure or delivery to any escrow agent or
other Person of, the source code for any Company Software, other than to consultants and independent contractors pursuant to a
non-disclosure and confidentiality agreement and in connection with their work for the Company. No event has occurred, and no
circumstance or condition exists, that (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) shall result in the disclosure or delivery of
the source code for any Company Software by the Company or any escrow agent to any other Person. Part 2.10(m) of the
Disclosure Schedule identifies each Contract pursuant to which Company has deposited, or is or may be required to deposit, with
an escrow agent or other Person, the source code for any Company Software.

(n)    Using commercially available tools and procedures, the Company has periodically scanned the Company
Software in a manner designed to help ensure that none of the Company Software contains any undocumented “back door,” “drop
dead device,” “time bomb,” “Trojan horse,” “virus,” or “worm” (as such terms are commonly understood in the software
industry) or any other code designed or intended to have, or capable of performing, any of the following functions: (i) disrupting,
disabling, harming or otherwise impeding in any manner the operation of, or providing unauthorized access to, a computer
system or network or other device on which such code is stored or installed; or (ii) damaging or destroying any data or file
without the user’s consent.

(o)    The Company is, and at all times during the past six years has been, in compliance with (i) its own website
privacy policy and any other external facing policies governing Personal Data in the Company’s possession or control
(collectively, “Privacy Policies”); (ii) all applicable Privacy Laws; (iii) all Contracts (or portions thereof) to which the Company
is a party that contain obligations governing Personal Data; and (iv) the PCI Security Standards Council’s Payment Card Industry
Data Security Standard and all other applicable rules and requirements by the PCI Security Standards Council, card brand,
merchant bank, or acquiring bank (collectively, “PCI Requirements”); except in each case of (i) through (iv), individually and in
the aggregate, as could not reasonably be expected to result in liability material to the Company. The Company has not received
any written notices from any Government Entity or Person alleging a violation of any applicable Privacy Laws and, to the
Company’s Knowledge, no circumstance exists that may reasonably lead to any investigation of the Company by any
Government Entity with respect to applicable Privacy Laws or require the Company to take any action, including the notification
of any Person, with respect to any violation under any applicable Privacy Laws. Except as would not reasonably be expected to
result in liability material to the Company, there has been no unauthorized intrusion, ransomware, or breaches of security into any
Company systems.

(p)    At all times during the past six years, the Company has taken commercially reasonable steps (such as,
implementing, maintaining, and monitoring compliance with government-issued or industry standard measures with respect to
administrative, technical and physical security) designed to protect all Personal Data and confidential information in its
possession or control against damage, loss, and against unauthorized access, acquisition, use, modification, disclosure or other
misuse. Except as would not reasonably be expected to result in
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liability material to the Company, there has been no unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of Personal Data or confidential
information in the possession or control of the Company, or, to the Company’s Knowledge, any of the Company’s contractors,
service providers, or other entities processing the Company’s Personal Data on the Company’s behalf.

(q)    The Company contractually requires all third parties, including vendors, affiliates, and other persons
providing services to the Company that have access to or receive Personal Data from or on behalf of the Company to comply
with all applicable Privacy Laws, and to take commercially reasonable steps designed to protect Company Personal Data in such
third parties’ possession or control against damage, loss, and against unauthorized access, acquisition, use, modification,
disclosure or other misuse.

(r)    The Company has provided notifications to, and has obtained consent from, Persons regarding its processing
of Personal Data where such notice or consent is required by applicable Privacy Laws. The Company has collected all Personal
Data in accordance with its Privacy Policies and Privacy Laws, and the Company’s collection of such Personal Date or any other
data from third parties is in accordance with any requirements from such third parties, including written website terms and
conditions. The Company has all permissions necessary to provide all Personal Data to Parent, and, to the Company’s
Knowledge, Parent may use such Personal Data in at least the same manner as Company used such Personal Data prior to the
consummation of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement.

2.11    Regulatory Matters; Healthcare Laws; Healthcare Permits.

(a)    The Company and any Person acting on its behalf are, and have been at all times, in compliance in all
material respects with all Healthcare Laws and Orders applicable to the operation of the Company’s business, as well as the terms
of and ongoing obligations associated with any applicable Healthcare Permit in each case, regarding the design, development,
sale, distribution and promotion of any Company Products in jurisdictions where the Company currently conducts such activities.
The Company has not received any request for information, notice, subpoena, demand letter, administrative inquiry, formal or
informal complaint, claim, or other written notice from any Governmental Entity (i) contesting the sale of any Company Product
or (ii) otherwise alleging any violation of any Healthcare Laws by the Company with respect to any Company Product. As of the
date of this Agreement, there is no Legal Proceeding or investigation pending, or to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened
against the Company regarding any alleged violation of any Healthcare Law, and, to the Company’s Knowledge, no facts or
circumstances exist that could reasonably be expected to give rise to material liability of the Company under any Healthcare
Laws. Neither the Company nor any of its directors, officers or employees has made any voluntary self-disclosure to any
Governmental Entity regarding any potential non-compliance with any Healthcare Law applicable to the business of the
Company. The Company has not been and is not subject to any corrective action plan, corporate integrity agreement, deferred
prosecution agreement, consent decree, settlement agreement or similar undertaking with or imposed by any Governmental
Entity arising from any alleged violation of any Healthcare Law. The Company is not currently, neither has it been, subject to any
continuing reporting obligations pursuant to a settlement agreement or other remedial measure entered into with any
Governmental Entity.
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(b)    With respect to the Company Products sold or marketed in all applicable jurisdictions, except as set forth in
Part 2.11(b) of the Disclosure Schedule:

(i)    the Company has not received any adverse inspectional finding, data integrity review, investigation,
inquiry, penalty, fine, sanction, assessment, request for corrective or remedial action, warning letter, regulatory letter, untitled
letter, Form 483, or other compliance or enforcement notice, communication, correspondence, or other notice from any
Governmental Entity or any other Person specifically identifying any actual or alleged violation of, or failure to comply with, any
applicable regulations or Laws governing the sale and marketing of such Company Products (an “Adverse Notice”); and

(ii)    the Company is not subject to any obligation or requirement arising under any consent decree,
inspection report or warning letter issued by or entered into with the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”), or
any other Governmental Entity with regard to the development, testing, manufacture, clearance or marketing of such Company
Products.

(c)    The Company has made available to Parent copies or documentation, to the extent applicable, of any and all
material communications and any and all non-routine communications with the FDA and any other Governmental Entity,
including but not limited to Adverse Notices. Any Adverse Notice set forth on Part 2.11(c) of the Disclosure Schedule has been
closed out by the relevant Governmental Entity or other Person.

(d)    All clinical trials, whether completed or ongoing, that are or have been sponsored or conducted by the
Company are listed in Part 2.11(d) of the Disclosure Schedule, and all such clinical trials are being or have been conducted by (or
on behalf of) the Company in compliance with all Healthcare Laws in all material respects, including, as applicable, FDA’s
investigational device exemption regulations and good clinical practices requirements. All animal studies conducted by or on
behalf of the Company have been conducted in compliance with good laboratory practices set forth in the regulations under 21
C.F.R. Part 58 and all applicable Laws and institutional policies.

(e)    Neither the Company nor any Person operating on its behalf has made any false statements on, or omissions
from, any applications, notifications, registrations, reports, or other submissions to the FDA or any other Governmental Entity, or
made any false statements on, or omissions from, any other material records and documentation prepared or maintained to
comply with the requirements of the FDA or any other Governmental Entity or applicable Law. Neither the Company nor, to the
Company’s Knowledge, any Person operating on its behalf has (i) raised allegations with the Company related to qualifying such
person as a relator or potential relator under the Federal False Claims Act; or (ii) caused to be presented a claim for a healthcare
item or service that was not provided as claimed, or for a healthcare item or service where such person knew or should have
known the claim was false or fraudulent.

(f)    The Company has not knowingly or willfully offered, paid, solicited or received any remuneration (including
any kickback, bribe, or rebate), directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind at any time during the past three years
(i) in return for referring any
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individual to a person for the furnishing or withholding, or arranging for the furnishing or withholding, of any item or service for
which payment may be made in whole or in part by any “Federal Health Care Program” as defined in 42 U.S.C. 1320a-7b(f),
including Medicare, Medicaid, TRICARE/CHAMPVA and any state health care program (as defined therein) (each, a
“Government Healthcare Program”), as amended from time to time, or any other governmental payment, procurement or non-
procurement program, (ii) in return for purchasing, leasing, or ordering or arranging for or recommending purchasing, leasing, or
ordering any good, facility, service, or item for which payment may be made in whole or in part by any Government Healthcare
Program, or (iii) to influence a patient’s selection of a particular health care provider practitioner or supplier, unless in each case
in (i)-(iii) above such remuneration complies with an applicable exception or safe harbor under applicable Healthcare Laws.

(g)    The Company is not subject to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”)
and does not receive any “Protected Health Information” (as defined by HIPAA) from any entity that is a covered entity or
business associate under HIPAA.

2.12    Material Contracts.

(a)    Part 2.12(a) of the Disclosure Schedule lists each Contract (other than purchase orders) in effect as of the
date of this Agreement to which any Company is a party or by which any of its properties or assets are otherwise bound of the
following categories (the “Material Contracts”):

(i)    any Contract or group of related Contracts (except for any offer letters or employment agreements
entered into with Company Employees, independent contractors or consultants) that require future payments by or to the
Company in excess of $75,000 in any calendar year, in each case to the extent the Contract is not terminable without penalty on
90 days’ or shorter notice;

(ii)    any acquisition agreement entered into in the five (5) year period preceding the date of this
Agreement pursuant to which the Company acquired any operating business or material assets, in each case other than any such
Contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business (including pursuant to financing agreements, leases and commercial
agreements with suppliers and/or with respect to the sale, distribution or licensing of products by the Company);

(iii)    any Contract for the sale of any material asset of the Company (other than inventory sales in the
ordinary course of business) or the grant of any preferential rights to purchase any such asset or requiring the consent of any party
to the transfer thereof;

(iv)    (A) any monetary guaranty, surety or performance bond or letter of credit issued or posted, as
applicable, by the Company; (B) any Contract evidencing Indebtedness of the Company or providing for the creation of or
granting any Lien upon any of the property or assets of the Company (excluding Permitted Encumbrances); and (C) any currency,
commodity or other hedging or swap Contract;

(v)    any Contract under which the Company has made any advance, loan, extension of credit or capital
contribution to, or other investment in, any Person (other than the
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Company and other than extensions of trade credit and other advances under commercial arrangements in the ordinary course of
business);

(vi)    (A) any Contract creating or purporting to create any joint venture or any sharing of profits or losses
by the Company with any third party; or (B) any Contract that provides for “earn-outs” or other similar contingent payments by
or to the Company for the deferred purchase price of property or services;

(vii)    under which any Governmental Entity has any material rights;

(viii)    (A) any Contract containing covenants restricting competition which have, or would have, the
effect of limiting the freedom of the Company or, after the Closing, Parent or the Surviving Corporation, to engage in any
business or activity in any geographic area or other jurisdiction or with any Person, other than nondisclosure agreements entered
into (1) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice or (2) in connection with this Agreement; (B) any
Contract in which the Company has granted “exclusivity” or that requires the Company to deal exclusively with, or grant
exclusive rights or rights of first refusal to, any customer, vendor, supplier, distributor, contractor or other Person; (C) any
Contract that includes minimum purchase obligations on the part of the Company that exceed $75,000 in any calendar year to the
extent the Contract is not terminable without penalty on 90 days’ or shorter notice; or (D) any Contract containing a “most-
favored-nation”, “best pricing” or other similar term or provision by which another party to such Contract or any other Person is,
or could become, entitled to any benefit, right or privilege which, under the terms of such Contract, must be at least as favorable
to such party as those offered to another Person;

(ix)    any Contract involving commitments to make capital expenditures or to contract, purchase or sell
assets involving $100,000 or more individually in any calendar year;

(x)    any lease, sublease, rental or occupancy agreement under which the Company is lessee or lessor of,
or owns, uses or operates any leasehold or other interest in any real property;

(xi)    any Inbound License and any Outbound License;

(xii)    any power of attorney granted by the Company that is currently in effect, except for any power of
attorney granted to a professional services firm for the purpose of making any Tax filings or foreign intellectual property filings,
in each case, on behalf of the Company;

(xiii)    any collective bargaining agreement or other Contract with any union, labor union, works council,
or similar labor entity;

(xiv)    any Contract relating to the outsourcing or provision of labor or related services (including without
limitation the Shelter Plan Service Agreement entered into as of June 10, 2014 between the Company and Offshore International,
Inc. and any extensions and amendments thereto) (except for employment agreements entered into in the ordinary course of
business);

33.



(xv)    any offers letter, employment agreement or other Contract with employees, independent contractors
or consultants (or similar arrangements) that is not terminable by the Company at-will, without material penalty or without more
than 30 days’ notice;

(xvi)    any Contract requiring or otherwise relating to (A) the right of any Person to return products or
(B) the payment of government rebates, commercial rebates or chargeback claims with respect to the products;

(xvii)    any Contract with any supplier listed or required to be listed as a Top Supplier or otherwise for the
purchase of materials, supplies, goods, services, equipment or other assets constituting a sole source of supply;

(xviii)    any Contract with any customer listed or required to be listed as a Top 10 Customer;

(xix)    any Contract relating to the development, research or manufacturing of any of the Company’s
products, including clinical trial agreements, sponsored research agreements, development agreements, material transfer
agreements, contract manufacturing agreements and similar agreements; and

(xx)    any other Contract that is material to the Company or the operation of the Company’s business.

(b)    With respect to each Material Contract listed in Part 2.12(a) of the Disclosure Schedule: (i) such Material
Contract is in full force and effect, is valid and binding on the Company in accordance with its terms and is, to the Company’s
Knowledge, with respect to each party thereto other than the Company, binding and enforceable against such party in accordance
with its terms, subject in each case to (A) laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors,
and (B) rules of Law governing specific performance, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies; and (ii) the Company is not
in material breach or material default of such Material Contract or, with the giving of notice or the giving of notice and passage of
time without a cure would be, in material breach or material default of such Material Contract, and to the Company’s Knowledge
no other party to such Material Contract is in material breach or material default of such Material Contract. The Company has
delivered or otherwise made available to Parent or its counsel true and complete copy of each such Material Contract.

2.13    Liabilities. As of the date of this Agreement, the Company has no material liabilities required to be reflected in the
Unaudited Balance Sheet under GAAP other than: (a) those specifically disclosed or adequately reserved in the Unaudited
Balance Sheet; (b) those incurred in the ordinary course of business since the date of the Unaudited Balance Sheet (none of which
is a liability for breach of contract, breach of warranty, tort, infringement, violation of Law,
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or that relates to any cause of action, claim or lawsuit); and (c) those incurred pursuant to or in connection with the execution,
delivery or performance of this Agreement.

2.14    Compliance with Laws; Permits.

(a)    Except with respect to Tax matters, which are addressed solely in Section 2.16 and Healthcare matters, which
are addressed in Section 2.11, the Company is in compliance with all applicable Laws except as could not reasonably be expected
to result in liability material to the Company. The Company has not received any written notices of any violation with respect to
such Laws, except for violations that are immaterial, have been cured or are no longer being asserted, or received any request for
information, notice, demand letter, administrative inquiry or formal or informal complaint or claim from any Governmental
Entity, in each case with respect to any aspect of the Company’s business.

(b)    Part 2.14(b) of the Disclosure Schedule lists all current Permits issued to the Company, including the names
of the Permits and their respective dates of issuance and expiration (the “Necessary Permits”). All Necessary Permits, including
Healthcare Permits required for the Company to conduct its business as currently conducted and as proposed to conducted after
the Merger have been obtained by it and have all times been maintained and are valid and in full force and effect. All fees and
charges with respect to such Necessary Permits as of the date hereof have been paid in full. None of the Necessary Permits will
be terminated or suspended as a result of this Agreement, any other Transaction Documents or the Transactions. No event has
occurred that, with or without notice or lapse of time or both, could reasonably be expected to result in the cancellation,
revocation, suspension, lapse, default or limitation of any Necessary Permit set forth in Part 2.14(b) of the Disclosure Schedule.

2.15    Certain Business Practices. Each of the Company, and to the Company’s Knowledge, the Company’s employees
or other representatives while acting on the Company’s behalf (a) has not used and is not using any funds for any unlawful
contributions, unlawful gifts, unlawful entertainment or other unlawful expenses; (b) has not made any direct or indirect unlawful
payments to any foreign or domestic Government Official; (c) has not violated, aided or abetted the violation of, or conspired to
violate, and is not violating, aiding or abetting the violation of, or conspiring to violate, any Anti-Corruption Laws; (d) has not
established or maintained, and is not maintaining, any unlawful or unrecorded fund of monies or other properties; (e) has not
made, and is not making, any false or fictitious entries on its accounting books and records; (f) has not made, and is not making,
any bribe, rebate, payoff, influence payment, kickback or other unlawful payment of any nature, and has not paid, and is not
paying, any fee, commission or other payment that has not been properly recorded on its accounting books and records as
required by the Anti-Corruption Laws; and (g) has not otherwise given or received anything of value to or from a Government
Official, an intermediary for payment to any individual including Government Officials, any political party or customer for the
purpose of obtaining or retaining business.

(b)    Neither the Company, nor to the Company’s Knowledge, any Company employee or representative acting on
behalf of the Company (i) is a Sanctioned Person, (ii) has violated, aided and abetted the violation of, or conspired to violate any
Sanctions Laws or export control laws, or (iii) has been the subject of any investigation, inquiry or enforcement proceedings
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by any Governmental Entity regarding, any direct or indirect dealings with any Sanctioned Person or in any Sanctioned Country
on behalf of the Company; and, to the Company’s Knowledge, no such investigation, inquiry or proceedings have been
threatened or are pending, and there are no circumstances likely to give rise to any such investigation, inquiry or proceedings in
connection with any conduct related to any Sanctions Laws or export control laws.

2.16    Tax Matters.

(a)    The Company has filed all income and other material Company Returns that it was required to file under
applicable Laws. All such Company Returns were correct and complete in all material respects. All Taxes required to be paid by
the Company (whether or not shown as owing on a Company Return) have been paid. There are no Liens for Taxes (other than
Permitted Encumbrances) upon any of the assets of the Company.

(b)    No audit or other examination of the Company is presently in progress or pending, nor has the Company
been notified in writing of any request for such an audit or other examination. There is no unresolved Tax deficiency outstanding,
nor has the Company received written notice of any Tax deficiency assessed or proposed against the Company. The Company has
never received a written claim from any Governmental Entity in a jurisdiction in which the Company does not file Company
Returns that the Company is or may be subject to taxation by that jurisdiction. The Company has not (i) waived any statute of
limitations beyond the date hereof in respect of any Taxes, (ii) agreed to any extension of time beyond the date hereof with
respect to a Tax assessment or deficiency or (iii) requested any written extension of time within which to file a Company Return,
in each case, other than in connection with customary extensions of the due date for filing a Company Return obtained in the
ordinary course of business. No power of attorney has been executed by or on behalf of the Company with respect to Taxes that
will remain in force following the Closing Date.

(c)    The Company has withheld and paid all material Taxes required to have been withheld and paid in
connection with any amounts paid or owing to any employee, independent contractor, creditor, stockholder, or other third party.

(d)    The Company has not been a United States real property holding corporation within the meaning of Section
897(c)(2) of the Code during the applicable period specified in Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code.

(e)    The Company has not constituted either a “distributing corporation” or a “controlled corporation” in a
distribution of stock intended to be governed in whole or in part by Section 355 or 361 of the Code. The Company has not
consummated or participated in, nor is it currently participating in, any “reportable transaction” within the meaning of Section
6707A(c)(1) of the Code and Treasury Regulations Section 1.6011-4(b).

(f)    The Company will not be required to include an item of income in, or exclude an item of deduction from,
taxable income for any Tax period (or portion thereof) ending after the Closing as a result of any: (i) change in method of
accounting for a Tax period ending prior to the Closing; (ii) “closing agreement” as described in Section 7121 of the Code (or any
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comparable or similar provisions of applicable Law) executed prior to the Closing; (iii) election pursuant to Section 108(i) of the
Code; (iv) installment sale or open transaction disposition made prior to the Closing; (v) prepaid amount received or deferred
revenue accrued prior to the Closing (other than prepaid amounts received or deferred revenue accrued in the ordinary course of
business); or (vi) use of an improper method of accounting for a taxable period or portion thereof ending prior to the Closing.

(g)    The Company has delivered or made available to Parent complete and accurate copies of all income
Company Returns for taxable years ending on or after December 31, 2014, and complete and accurate copies of all audit or
examination reports and statements of deficiencies assessed against the Company.

(h)    The Company is not a party to any agreement with any third party relating to allocating or sharing the
payment of, or liability for, Taxes (other than this Agreement and any contract, such as a loan or a lease, entered into in the
ordinary course of business the primary purpose of which is unrelated to Taxes).

(i)    The Company has not been a member of an affiliated group filing a U.S. federal income Tax Return. The
Company does not have any Liability for the Taxes of any other Person (i) under Treasury Regulation Section 1.1502-6 (or any
similar provision of state, local, or foreign Law); (ii) as a transferee or successor; or (iii) otherwise by operation of Law.

(j)    The Company has been resident in the United States for Tax purposes and has not, at any time, been treated
as a resident of any other country. The Company does not have a permanent establishment (within the meaning of an applicable
Tax treaty) or otherwise have an office or other fixed place of business in a jurisdiction other than the United States.

(k)    The Company has been classified as a C-corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes since its formation
date.

(l)    The Company has not entered into a closing agreement or other similar agreement with a Governmental
Entity relating to Taxes. No private letter rulings, technical advice memoranda or similar agreements or rulings have been
requested, entered into, or issued by any Governmental Entity with respect to the Company.

(m)    Part 2.16(m) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of elections that have been made
(or are pending as of the date hereof) or actions that have been taken (or are pending as of the date hereof) by the Company
pursuant to Sections 7001-7005 of the Families First Coronavirus Response Act.

(n)    Part 2.16(n) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth the following (whether occurring or applied for, as
applicable, as of the date hereof) by the Company: (i) credits claimed pursuant to Section 2301 of the CARES Act, (ii) payroll
and employment taxes deferred pursuant to Section 2302(a) of the CARES Act, (iii) net operating losses carried back pursuant to
Section 2303(b) of the CARES Act, (iv) alternative minimum tax credits used pursuant to Section 2305 of the CARES Act, (v)
elections made pursuant to Section 2306 of the CARES Act, and (vi) additional depreciation taken pursuant to Section 2307 of
the CARES Act.
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(o)    Except as set forth in Part 2.16(o) of the Disclosure Schedule, the Company is not a party to any contract or
benefit plan that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result, separately or in the aggregate, in the payment of (i) any
“excess parachute payment” within the meaning of section 280G of the Code (or any corresponding provisions of state, local or
foreign Law) or (ii) any compensation paid or payable for services rendered on or prior to Closing Date that will not be fully tax
deductible for federal or state income Tax purposes (including under section 162(m) of the Code).

2.17    Employee Benefit Plans and Employee Matters.

(a)    Part 2.17(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of each plan, program, policy,
practice, contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for compensation, severance, termination pay, deferred
compensation, performance awards, stock or stock-related options or awards, pension, retirement benefits, profit-sharing,
savings, disability benefits, medical insurance, dental insurance, health insurance, life insurance, death benefit, other insurance,
welfare benefits, fringe benefits or other employee benefits or remuneration of any kind, whether written, unwritten or otherwise,
funded or unfunded, including, but not limited to, any “employee benefit plan” as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA, which is or
has been maintained, contributed to, or required to be contributed to, by the Company for the benefit of any current or former
employee, director, advisor, contractor or consultant, or for which the Company has any liability (excluding from such list option
notices, option grants, at-will employment offer letters, the forms of such option notices, option grants, and offer letters, and
state-mandated benefit programs such as unemployment insurance) (the “Company Plans”). The Company has not made any
plan or commitment to establish any new Company Plan, to modify any Company Plan, or terminate any Company Plan (except
to the extent required by law or to conform any such Company Plan to the requirements of any Applicable Law, in each case as
previously disclosed to Parent in writing, or as expressly required by this Agreement).

(b)    With respect to each Company Plan, the Company has delivered or otherwise made available to Parent or its
counsel a true, correct and complete copy of: (i) all documents constituting any part of a Company Plan and all amendments
thereto, and all trusts and service agreements relating to the administration and recordkeeping of the Company Plan, and written
summaries of the terms of all unwritten Company Plans; (ii) the two most recent Annual Reports (Form 5500 Series or otherwise
in a form in accordance with applicable Law) including all applicable schedules, if any, for each Company Plan that is subject to
such reporting requirements; (iii) the current summary plan description and any material modifications thereto, if any, or any
written summary provided to participants with respect to any plan for which no summary plan description exists; (iv) if the
Company Plan is funded, the most recent annual and periodic accounting of the Company Plan assets; (v) all communications
material to any employee or employees relating to any Company Plan and any proposed Company Plan, in each case, relating to
any amendments, terminations, establishments, increases or decreases in benefits, acceleration of payments or vesting schedules
or other events which would result in any liability to the Company; (vi) all material, non-routine correspondence to or from any
Governmental Entity relating to any Company Plan for the last three years; (vii) all discrimination tests for each Company Plan
for the three most recent plan years; and (viii) if such Company Plan is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code,
the most recent determination letter (or if applicable,

38.



advisory or opinion letter) from the IRS, if any, and any pending applications for a determination or opinion letter.

(c)    Each Company Plan has been established, maintained and administered in all material respects in accordance
with its terms and in all material respects in compliance with all applicable Laws, including but not limited to ERISA or the
Code. No “prohibited transaction,” within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code or Sections 406 and 407 of ERISA, and not
otherwise exempt under Section 408 of ERISA, has occurred with respect to any Company Plan that would reasonably be
expected to result in any liability. There are no current actions, suits or claims pending, or, to the Company’s Knowledge,
threatened in writing or reasonably anticipated (other than routine claims for benefits) against any Company Plan or against the
assets of any Company Plan. There are no audits, inquiries or proceedings pending or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened
in writing by any Governmental Entity with respect to any Company Plan. The Company has timely made or otherwise provided
for all contributions and other payments required by and due under the terms of each Company Plan. No event has occurred that
could give rise to loss of the tax-qualified or tax-exempt status of any Company Plan. Neither the Company nor any ERISA
Affiliate is subject to any fine, assessment, penalty or other Tax or liability with respect to any Company Plan under
Section 502(i) of ERISA or Sections 4975 through 4980 of the Code or otherwise by operation of law or contract.

(d)    No payment or benefit which will or may be made by the Company with respect to any “disqualified
individual” (as defined in Code Section 280G and the regulations thereunder) could reasonably be expected to be or will be
characterized as a “parachute payment” within the meaning of Code Section 280G(b)(2). There is no contract, agreement, plan or
arrangement to which the Company is bound to provide a gross-up or otherwise reimburse any employee for excise taxes paid
pursuant to Section 4999 of the Code. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the Merger will
not result in any acceleration of the time of payment or vesting of any material benefits under any Company Plan.

(e)    Each Company Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and has
received a currently effective favorable determination letter, or is entitled to rely on an advisory letter or opinion letter, as
applicable, from the Internal Revenue Service that such plan is qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code and exempt from
federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Code, and to the Knowledge of the Company nothing has occurred that could
reasonably be expected to adversely affect the qualified status of any such Company Plan.

(f)    Neither the Company nor any entity or other Person with which the Company is or was, at the relevant time,
considered a single employer or under common control with under Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code (“ERISA
Affiliate”) currently maintains, sponsors, contributes to, or participates in, or has, within the six (6) years preceding the date of
this Agreement, maintained, sponsored, contributed to, participated in, or had any obligations or incurred any liability under any
employee benefit plan (i) that was or is subject to Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code (including any “defined benefit
plan” within the meaning of Section 3(35) of ERISA), (ii) that was or is a “multiemployer plan” within the meaning of Section
3(37) of ERISA, (iii) that was or is a self-insured “group health plan” (within the meaning of
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Section 5000(b)(1) of the Code) that provides benefits to employees (other than a medical flexible spending account, health
reimbursement arrangement or other similar program, including any such plan pursuant to which a stop-loss policy or contract
applies), (iv) that was or is a multiple employer plan or to any plan described in Section 413 of the Code, or (v) that provides, or
reflects or represents any liability to provide, post-termination or retiree life insurance, health or other employee welfare benefits
to any Person for any reason, except as may be required by the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as
amended (“COBRA”), or other applicable statute, and the Company has not represented, promised or contracted (whether in oral
or written form) to any employee (either individually or to employees as a group) or any other Person that such employee(s) or
other Person would be provided with life insurance, health or other employee welfare benefits, except to the extent required by
statute.

(g)    The Company and each ERISA Affiliate has, prior to the date hereof, complied in all material respects with
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended, the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, as
amended, COBRA, the Family Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended, the California Family Rights Act of 1993, as amended,
the Women’s Health and Cancer Rights Act of 1998, the Newborns’ and Mothers’ Health Protection Act of 1996, and any similar
provisions of foreign or state law applicable to its employees or compliance with those provisions has been delegated to a third-
party administrator, and the Company does not have any Knowledge of any non-compliance by such administrator. Neither the
Company nor any ERISA Affiliate has any unsatisfied obligations to any employees or qualified beneficiaries pursuant to
COBRA or any state or statutory local law governing health care coverage or extension thereof.

(h)    Except as set forth in Part 2.17(h) of the Disclosure Schedule, neither the execution and delivery of this
Agreement nor the consummation of the Transactions or any termination of employment or service in connection therewith will
(i) result in any payment (including severance, gratuity, golden parachute, bonus or otherwise), becoming due to any employee,
(ii) result in any forgiveness of indebtedness, (iii) increase any benefits otherwise payable by the Company or any ERISA
Affiliate, (iv) obligate the Company or any ERISA Affiliate to fund any trust, or (v) result in the acceleration of the time of
payment or vesting of any such benefits except as required under Section 411(d)(3) of the Code.

(i)    Each “nonqualified deferred compensation plan” (as such term is defined under Section 409A(d)(1) of the
Code and the guidance thereunder) under which the Company makes, is obligated to make or promises to make, payments (each,
a “409A Plan”) complies in both form and operation, with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code and the guidance
thereunder. No compensation shall be includable in the gross income of any current or former employee, director, or consultant of
the Company as a result of the operation of Section 409A of the Code and no payment to be made under any 409A Plan is or will
be subject to the penalties of Section 409A(a)(1) of the Code.

(j)    The Company: (i) is and at all times has been in material compliance with all applicable Laws and contractual
arrangements, and with any order, ruling, decree, judgment or arbitration award of any arbitrator or any court or other
Governmental Entity, respecting employment and employment practices, including but not limited to, payment of wages, hours of
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work, non-discrimination, reasonable accommodation, disability rights or benefits, worker classification (including the proper
classification of workers as independent contractors and consultants), overtime compensation, child labor, hiring, working
conditions, meal and break periods, labor relations, leave of absence requirements, paid sick or family leave, occupational health
and safety, privacy, harassment, retaliation, immigration; (ii) has made commercially reasonable efforts to comply with all
applicable guidance published by a Governmental Entity, concerning workplace and employee health and safety practices related
to the COVID-19 pandemic; (iii) has withheld and reported all amounts required by any Law or contract to be withheld and
reported with respect to wages, salaries and other payments to any employee; and (iv) has no liability for any payment to any
trust or other fund governed by or maintained by or on behalf of any Governmental Entity with respect to unemployment
compensation benefits, social security or other benefits or obligations for any employee (other than routine payments to be made
in the normal course of business and consistent with past practice). The Company has not effectuated a “mass layoff,” “plant
closing,” partial “plant closing,” or “relocation” (each as defined in the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act or
any similar Laws) affecting any single site of employment or one or more facilities or operating units within any single site of
employment or facility of the Company, nor is any such action currently contemplated, planned, or announced. To the Company’s
Knowledge, all employees of the Company classified as exempt under the Fair Labor Standards Act and state and local wage and
hour laws are properly classified. All individuals who perform or performed services for the Company and who are characterized
and treated by the Company as independent contractors or consultants are properly characterized and treated as independent
contractors under all applicable Laws. All employees of the Company located in the United States are legally authorized to work
in the United States, and all employees of the Company outside of the United States are legally authorized to work in the country
in which they work pursuant to the Laws of such country.

(k)    The Company is not and has never been a party to or otherwise bound by any collective bargaining
agreement, Contract or other agreement or understanding with a labor union or labor organization, or works council or similar
body, nor is any such Contract or agreement presently being negotiated, nor, to the Company’s Knowledge, is there, nor has there
been in the last three years, a representation campaign or organizational effort with respect to any of the employees of the
Company. As of the date of this Agreement, there is no pending or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened, labor strike,
dispute, walkout, work stoppage, slow-down or lockout involving the Company. Neither the Company nor any of its
Representatives has committed or engaged in any material unfair labor practice in connection with the operation of the business
of the Company. The Company has no duty to bargain with any labor union or labor organization, works council or similar body.
There are no Legal Proceedings pending or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened, relating to any Company Plan, collective
bargaining obligation or agreement, wages and hours, leave of absence, plant closing notification, employment statute or
regulation, privacy right, labor dispute, workers’ compensation policy, safety, retaliation, harassment, immigration or
discrimination matter involving any employee, including charges of unfair labor practices, discrimination, retaliation or
harassment complaints or other labor or employment disputes. All employees of the Company have executed a legally
enforceable nondisclosure and confidentiality agreement and arbitration agreement, in each case in the form made available to
Parent. To the Company’s Knowledge, no employee of Company is in any respect in violation of any material term of any
employment Contract, nondisclosure
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agreement, common law nondisclosure obligation, fiduciary duty, noncompetition agreement, restrictive covenant or other
obligation. To the Company’s Knowledge, as of the date of this Agreement, no officer, director or managerial employee or any
independent contractor has given notice that such employee or independent contractor intends to terminate his or her employment
or engagement with the Company.

(l)    During the past five (5) years, the Company has not been a party to a settlement agreement with a current or
former employee that relates to allegations of harassment, including sexual harassment or sexual misconduct. During the past five
(5) years no material claims of harassment, including sexual harassment or sexual misconduct, have been made against: (i) any
officer or director of the Company in his or her capacity as an officer or director of the Company, or (ii) any executive or
management employee of the Company in his or her capacity as an employee of the Company.

(m)    Part 2.17(m)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a correct and complete list of all current employees of
the Company as of the date of this Agreement, including any employee who is on a leave of absence of any nature, paid or
unpaid, authorized or unauthorized, and sets forth for each such individual the following: job title, work location, name,
employing entity, current annual base salary or base wages, current cash bonus target, any other current cash compensation
entitlements, “exempt” or “non-exempt” classification (for employees working in the United States), date of hire, credit service,
accrued and unused paid time off and employment status (active or nature of leave of absence). Part 2.17(m)(ii) of the Disclosure
Schedule sets forth a correct and complete list of all individual independent contractors or other individual service providers of
the Company as of the date of this Agreement and sets forth for such individual the following: name, work location, the fee or
compensation schedule, and the applicable term for which such services were or are anticipated to be provided. A list of the
employees under a visa or other similar authorization to work in a country other than the employee’s country of citizenship is set
forth in Part 2.17(k)(iii) of the Disclosure Schedule.

(n)    Except as set forth in Part 2.17(n) of the Disclosure Schedule, no Company Plan is maintained outside the
jurisdiction of the United States, or covers any employee residing or working outside the United States.

(o)     To the Company’s Knowledge, assignments of inventions, patents and non-solicitation agreements and other
restrictive covenants entered into with employees as provided to the Buyer have not been amended and remain in effect and are
enforceable.

(p)    To the Company’s Knowledge, the employees performing work on behalf of the Company in Mexico who
are employed by Maquilas Teta Kawi S.A. de C.V. are compensated and employed consistent with all applicable laws governing
wages, benefits and other terms and conditions of employment under Mexico law as it existed as of the signing of this
Agreement.

2.18    Environmental Matters. The Company is in material compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws. As of
the date hereof, the Company has not received any written notices, demand letters or requests for information from any
Governmental Entity indicating that
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the Company is or may be in violation of, or be liable under, any Environmental Law, and the Company is not subject to any
pending or, to Company’s Knowledge, threatened action or investigation by any Governmental Entity under any Environmental
Law. To the Company’s Knowledge, no current or prior owner of any property leased or controlled by the Company has received
any written notice from a Governmental Entity during the past two years that alleges that such current or prior owner or the
Company is materially violating any Environmental Law. The Company is in compliance in all material respects with, and has no
material liability under, any provisions of leases relating in any way to any Environmental Laws or to the use, management or
release of Hazardous Substances under such leases. All Environmental Permits, if any, required to be obtained by the Company
under any Environmental Law in connection with its operations as they are currently being conducted, including those relating to
the management of Hazardous Substances, have been obtained by the Company, are in full force and effect, and the Company is
in material compliance with the terms thereof. The Company has not disposed of or released any Hazardous Substances on, in or
under any real property that could reasonably be expected to require remediation under Environmental Laws. The Company has
delivered or otherwise made available to Parent or its counsel copies of any environmental investigation, study, test, audit, review
or other analysis in its possession in relation to the current or prior business of the Company.

2.19    Inventory. All inventory of the Company, whether or not reflected in the Unaudited Balance Sheet, consists of a
quality and quantity usable and salable inventory in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, except for
obsolete, damaged, defective or slow-moving items that have been written off or written down to fair market value or for which
adequate reserves have been established. All such inventory is owned by the Company free and clear of all Liens, and no
inventory is held on a consignment basis. The quantities of each item of inventory (whether raw materials, work-in-process or
finished goods) are not excessive but are reasonable in the present circumstances of the Company.

2.20    Accounts Receivable. All accounts and notes receivable of the Company represent sales actually made or services
provided in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices or valid claims as to which full performance has been
rendered by the Company. All of the accounts and notes receivable of the Company are collectible in full in accordance with their
terms at their recorded amounts. No counter claims, defenses, offsetting claims or adjustments with respect to the accounts or
notes receivable of the Company are pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened. All of the accounts and notes
receivable of the Company relate solely to sales of goods or services to customers of the Company, none of whom are Affiliates
of the Company. The accounts and notes receivable at Closing do not reflect any changes in discounts, rebates or other benefits
offered to customers.

2.21    Suppliers and Customers.

(a)    Part 2.21(a)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, correct and complete list of the top 10 suppliers
for materials, products or services of the business of the Company based on the amount spent by the Company with such
suppliers for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2020 (the “Top Suppliers”). Part 2.21(a)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedule
sets forth a true, correct and complete list of the top 25 customers based on the revenue the Company
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derived from such customers for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2020 (the “Top Customers” and the top 10 of such
customers based on such revenue, the “Top 10 Customers”).

(b)    The Company has not received any written notice to the effect that any Top Supplier or Top Customer will,
intends to, or is considering terminating, cancelling, discontinuing, reducing, changing the terms (whether related to payment,
price or otherwise) of, or otherwise adversely modifying its direct or indirect business with the Company, and there are no
outstanding or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened disputes with any Top Supplier or Top Customer. The Company has not
received any written notice from, and has no Knowledge that any Top Supplier or Top Customer is or will be the subject of any
voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar proceeding. Attached to Part 2.21(b) of the Disclosure Schedule
are the Company’s standard form(s) of customer agreements.

2.22    Insurance. All insurance policies and bonds maintained by or for the benefit of the Company (the “Insurance
Policies”) are in full force and effect and all premiums due and payable under such Insurance Policies have been paid on a timely
basis, and, with regard to Insurance Policies on a retrospective or audited premium basis (or any similar basis to the foregoing),
no additional amounts will be due in excess of 10% of the stated annual initial premium. As of the date of this Agreement, there
is no claim pending under any of the Company’s Insurance Policies as to which coverage has been questioned, denied or disputed
by the underwriters of such policies. The Company is in compliance in all material respects with the terms of such policies. The
Company is in compliance with all terms of such Insurance Policies and has not received any written notice of any threatened
termination of, or material premium increase with respect to, any of such policies. None of the Insurance Policies are issued by a
captive insurer or, other than workers’ compensation, are on a fronting or similar basis.

2.23    Legal Proceedings; Orders. Except as set forth in Part 2.23 of the Disclosure Schedule, as of the date of this
Agreement, there is no pending Legal Proceeding, and, to the Company’s Knowledge, no Person has threatened in writing to
commence any Legal Proceeding: (a) that involves the Company or any of the assets owned or used by the Company or any
Person whose liability the Company has retained or assumed, either contractually or by operation of law; or (b) that challenges,
or that may have the effect of preventing, delaying, making illegal or otherwise interfering with, the Merger or any of the other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents. As of the date of this Agreement, there is no
Order resulting from a Legal Proceeding against the Company to which the Company is subject. To the Company’s Knowledge,
no officer or other employee of the Company is subject to any Order that prohibits such officer or other employee from engaging
in or continuing any conduct, activity or practice relating to the Company’s business.

2.24    Vote Required. Except as set forth in Part 2.24 of the Disclosure Schedule, the adoption of this Agreement and
approval of the Merger: (a) requires the affirmative votes of the holders of a majority of the shares of Company Common Stock
and Company Preferred Stock (on an as-converted to common stock basis) outstanding on the applicable record date, voting
together as a single class, and (b) may require the affirmative votes of (i) the holders of a majority of the shares of Company
Common Stock outstanding on the applicable record date, and (ii) the holders of a majority of the shares of Company Preferred
Stock outstanding on the applicable record date,
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voting together as a single class on an as-converted to common stock basis (together, the “Required Company Stockholder
Votes”). The Required Company Stockholder Votes are the only votes of the holders of any of the Company Capital Stock
necessary to adopt this Agreement and the Transaction Documents, approve the Merger and consummate the Merger and the
other Transactions.

2.25    Books and Records. All minute books, stock record and other books, records and accounts of the Company, all of
which have been made available to Parent, are true, correct and complete and have been maintained in accordance with good
business practice and all applicable Laws. The minute books of the Company contain accurate and complete records of all
meetings, and actions taken by written consent of, the Company Stockholders, the Board of the Directors of the Company and
any committees of the Board of the Directors of the Company, and no meeting, or action taken by written consent, of any such
Company Stockholders, Board of Directors or committee has been held for which minutes have not been prepared and are not
contained in such minute books. At the Closing, all of those books and records will be in the possession of the Company.

2.26    Financial Advisor. Except as set forth in Part 2.26 of the Disclosure Schedule, no broker, finder or investment
banker is entitled to any brokerage or finder’s fee in connection with the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by
this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company.

2.27    Bank Accounts; Directors and Officers; Names. Part 2.27 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and
complete list of the name and address of each bank with which the Company has an account or safe deposit box, the account
number for each such account and the names of all persons authorized to draw thereon or have access thereto. Part 2.27 of the
Disclosure Schedule lists the directors and officers (or equivalents) of the Company. The Company has not used any name or
names under which it has invoiced account debtors, maintained records concerning its assets or otherwise conducted its business,
other than its current legal name.

2.28    Product Liabilities.

(a)    Except as set forth in Part 2.28(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, the Company has not suffered, experienced,
incurred, received notice of, or become the subject of, or been threatened to be the subject of, any (i) material product return or
warranty claim based on failures of any Company Products or, had they been resolved as desired by the claimant or customer
seeking to make such returns, could reasonably have resulted in a material liability, (ii) claim or allegation of personal injury,
death, or property or economic damages, any claim for punitive or exemplary damages, any claim for contribution or
indemnification, or any claim for injunctive relief in connection with the design, manufacture, marketing, sale, distribution,
servicing or use of any Company Products, (iii) request by any customer for indemnification with respect to any claim asserted
against the customer by any employee of the Company, or (iv) Legal Proceedings involving any Company Products before, or
brought by, a Governmental Entity alleging a violation of any Laws governing the use, manufacture, packaging, labeling,
advertising, promotion, distribution, storage, development, processing, transportation or sale of such Company Products.
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(b)    All Company Products previously and currently sold, marketed or distributed by the Company (i) comply
and complied, as applicable, in all respects with all (A) applicable manufacturing and product specifications disclosed to
customers of such Company Products by the Company, (B) applicable industry and trade-association standards, and (C) Laws
applicable to such sale, marketing, advertising, promotion or distribution, including all Laws governing the use, manufacture,
packaging, labeling, distribution, storage, development, processing, or transportation of such Company Products and (ii) are free
from latent or patent defects and have contained and contain, as applicable, adequate warnings, presented in a reasonably
prominent manner, in accordance with applicable Laws and, with industry practice with respect to its contents and use as of the
time of such sale. The Company’s quality management system is in compliance with the general safety and performance
requirements as set out by applicable Law and the actual scientific standard.

2.29    Product Recalls. Except as set forth on Part 2.29 of the Disclosure Schedule, there have been no, and, to the
Company’s Knowledge, there exist no facts that could reasonably cause any, (a) product recalls, return programs, customer
notifications or withdrawals, or (b) investigations, requests for product recalls or withdrawals by any Governmental Entity or by
any customers of the Company, in each case relating to any Company Products (collectively, “Product Recalls”). Any Product
Recalls initiated before the Closing Date have been completed in accordance with all applicable Laws and Orders and have been
resolved to the satisfaction of the applicable Governmental Entity. No Person or Governmental Entity has alleged that any
Company Products are defective or unsafe or fail to meet any standards or requirements promulgated by a Governmental Entity.

2.30    Related Party Transactions. Except as set forth in Part 2.30 of the Disclosure Schedule, there are no material
Contracts, commitments or transactions with, or obligations of the Company, to officers, directors, stockholders or employees of
the Company other than (a) for payment of salaries, wages and bonuses for services rendered, (b) reimbursement of customary
and reasonable expenses incurred on behalf of the Company, (c) benefits due under Company Plans and fringe benefits not
required to be listed on Part 2.17(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, (d) agreements relating to outstanding Company Options, and (e)
in respect of Company Capital Stock.

Section 3.    REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB

Parent and Merger Sub represent and warrant to the Company as follows:

3.1    Due Incorporation; Subsidiaries. Parent is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Merger Sub is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Delaware.

3.2    Authority; Binding Nature of Agreement. Parent and Merger Sub have the absolute and unrestricted right, power
and authority to perform their obligations under this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents to which Parent or Merger
Sub is a party, and the execution, delivery and performance by Parent and Merger Sub of this Agreement and the other
Transaction Documents to which Parent or Merger Sub is a party have been duly authorized
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by all necessary action on the part of Parent, Merger Sub and their respective boards of directors. This Agreement constitutes the
legal, valid and binding obligation of Parent and Merger Sub, enforceable against them in accordance with its terms, subject to (a)
laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors and (b) rules of law governing specific
performance, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies.

3.3    Non-Contravention; Consents. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub and the
consummation by Parent and Merger Sub of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not: (a) conflict with or cause
a violation of any of the provisions of the certificate of incorporation or bylaws of Parent or Merger Sub, (b) conflict with or
cause a violation by Parent or Merger Sub of any Law applicable to Parent or Merger Sub or (c) result in any breach, or constitute
a default on the part of Parent or Merger Sub under any material Contract of Parent or Merger Sub. Except as may be required by
the DGCL or HSR Act, neither Parent nor Merger Sub is required to obtain any Consent from, or submit and filing or notification
to, any Governmental Entity or party to a material Contract of Parent or Merger Sub at any time prior to the Closing in
connection with, or in order to carry out, the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the consummation of the Merger.

3.4    Litigation. As of the date of this Agreement, there is no Legal Proceeding pending (or, to the knowledge of Parent
or Merger Sub, being threatened) against Parent or Merger Sub challenging or that may have the effect of preventing, delaying,
making illegal or otherwise interfering with, the Merger.

3.5    Merger Sub. Merger Sub (a) was formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, (b) has engaged in no other business activities and (c) has conducted its operations only as contemplated by this
Agreement.

3.6    No Vote Required. No vote or other action of the stockholders of Parent or Merger Sub is required by applicable
Law, the certificate of incorporation or bylaws (or similar charter or organizational documents) of Parent or Merger Sub or
otherwise in order for Parent and Merger Sub to consummate the Merger and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

3.7    Financing. Parent has and will have, from and after the Closing, sufficient cash, available lines of credit or other
sources of immediately available funds on hand (without restrictions on drawdown that would delay payment of the Purchase
Price) to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the payment of all amounts payable by or on
behalf of Parent under this Agreement or otherwise as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 4.    CERTAIN COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY

4.1    Access. During the period from the date of this Agreement through the earlier of the Effective Time or the
termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1 (the “Pre-Closing Period”), the Company shall (a) upon reasonable
advance notice to the Company, provide Parent and Parent’s Representatives with reasonable access during normal business
hours to the Company’s personnel, facilities and existing books and records; (b) furnish Parent and its
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Representatives with such financial, operating and other data and information related to the Company as Parent or any of its
Representatives may reasonably request; and (c) instruct the Representatives of the Company to cooperate with Parent and
Parent’s Representatives in their investigation of the Company; provided, that any such access pursuant to clause (a) shall be
conducted at Parent’s sole cost and expense, under the supervision of appropriate personnel of the Company and in such a
manner as to maintain the confidentiality of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby in accordance with the
terms hereof and not to interfere unreasonably with the normal operation of the business of the Company. Nothing herein shall
require the Company to disclose any information to Parent, its Affiliates or Representatives if such disclosure would, in the
Company’s reasonable discretion (a) jeopardize any attorney-client or other legal privilege or (b) contravene any applicable Law,
fiduciary duty or binding agreement entered into prior to the date of this Agreement (including any confidentiality agreement to
which the Company is a party).

4.2    Conduct of the Business of the Company. During the Pre-Closing Period, except (w) as set forth in Part 4.2 of the
Disclosure Schedule, (x) to comply with the Company’s obligations under this Agreement or in connection with a COVID-19
Response, (y) as necessary to ensure that the Company complies with applicable Laws and contractual obligations, or (z) with
Parent’s consent (which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed): (i) the Company shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to (A) carry on its ordinary course of business, (B) preserve substantially intact their present business
organization, and (C) preserve their material relationships with suppliers, distributors, licensors, licensees and others to whom the
Company has contractual obligations; and (ii) except as set forth in Part 4.2 of the Disclosure Schedule, the Company shall not:

(a)    amend the Company Charter, Company bylaws and other charter and organizational documents of the
Company;

(b)    split, combine, subdivide or reclassify any of its capital stock or issue or authorize the issuance of any other
securities in respect of, in lieu of or in substitution for shares of its capital stock;

(c)    issue, sell, pledge, grant, create a Lien upon, or authorize the issuance, sale, pledge, grant or creation of a
Lien upon, any shares of Company Capital Stock or securities convertible into, or subscriptions, rights, warrants or options to
acquire, or other agreements or commitments of any character obligating it to issue any such shares or other convertible securities
(other than the issuance of Company Common Stock in respect of any conversion of Company Preferred Stock or the exercise of
Company Options or Company Warrants outstanding on the date of this Agreement);

(d)    merge or consolidate with or into any other Person or enter into or adopt any plan or agreement of complete
or partial liquidation, restructuring or dissolution, or file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or commence a voluntary legal
procedure for reorganization, restructuring, arrangement, adjustment, release or composition of Indebtedness in bankruptcy or
other similar Laws now or hereafter in effect;
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(e)    make any loans, advances, guarantees or capital contributions to or in any Person (other than business-related
advances to its employees in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice) or incur any indebtedness for
borrowed money (other than borrowings under existing lines of credit, letters of credit or similar arrangements issued for the
benefit of suppliers or manufacturers), or guarantee any such indebtedness, or issue or sell any debt securities or guarantee any
debt securities of others;

(f)    make any capital expenditures, capital additions or capital improvements, in excess of $25,000 in the
aggregate per month, for each full or partial calendar month in the Pre-Closing Period (other than in accordance with the budget
for capital expenditures previously made available to Parent);

(g)    knowingly waive any right of the Company under any Material Contract;

(h)    acquire or agree to acquire by merging or consolidating with, or by purchasing a portion of the stock or
(other than in the ordinary course of business) assets of, or by any other manner, any business or any entity;

(i)    sell, assign, transfer, grant a Lien upon, pledge, encumber or otherwise dispose of, abandon, invalidate,
dedicate to the public domain, lease or exclusively license or sublicense any Company Intellectual Property or other properties or
assets of the Company which are material to the Company;

(j)    (i) enter into any Contract that would constitute a Material Contract or lease, sublease, or other rental or
occupancy agreement relating to the leasing, use, or occupancy of any real property or otherwise granting a right in any real
property; (ii) amend in any material respect any Material Contract or accelerate, cancel or terminate any Material Contract, or
(iii) request, decline, or grant any consent or waiver, in each case, in connection with any material provision of any Material
Contract, in each case other than to extent such action is expressly set forth in Part 4.2(b) of the Disclosure Schedule or is in
furtherance of an action that is expressly permitted by other subsections of this Section 4.2(a) (e.g. capital expenditures within the
limit permitted under subclause (f) above) and does not result in any action that would not be permitted under other subsections
of this Section 4.2(a);

(k)    make any material change in any accounting method or practice of the Company, except as required by
GAAP or as disclosed in the notes to the Company Financial Statements;

(l)    make or change any material election in respect of Taxes, adopt or change any accounting method in respect
of Taxes, settle any claim or assessment in respect of Taxes, or consent to any extension or waiver of the limitation period
applicable to any claim or assessment in respect of Taxes (other than pursuant to customary extensions of the due date for filing
Tax Returns obtained in the ordinary course of business of no more than seven months), incur any Taxes outside of the ordinary
course of business other than Transaction Payroll Taxes incurred in connection with the Transactions, surrender the right to any
Tax refund, enter into any agreement
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with any Governmental Entity with respect to any Tax or Company Returns, or file any amended Company Returns;

(m)    (i) adopt, establish, enter into, amend or terminate any Company Plan or any plan, agreement, program,
policy, trust, fund or other arrangement that would be a Company Plan if it were in existence as of the date of this Agreement
(except for amendments determined by the Company in good faith to be required to comply with applicable Law), (ii) increase
the compensation or fringe benefits of, or grant any bonus or any bonus opportunity to, any current or former employee, director,
officer, independent contractor or consultant of the Company other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice, (iii) accelerate the vesting or payment of any compensation or benefit for any current or former employee, officer,
director, independent contractor or consultant (except in the ordinary course of business), (iv) grant any severance or termination
pay to any current or former director, officer, employee, independent contractor or consultant of the Company (provided, that the
Company may make severance or termination payments to employees in the ordinary course of business and in accordance with
the terms of any Material Contract disclosed in Part 2.12(a) of the Disclosure Schedule between the Company and such
employees in effect on the date of this Agreement or as required by applicable local statutory Laws), or (v) terminate the
employment of any key employee or executive other than for cause under applicable local law, provided that the Company may
terminate employees in the ordinary course of business;

(n)    hire or promote any person as or to (as the case may be) an officer or hire or promote any employee below
officer level except to fill a vacancy in the ordinary course of business;

(o)    waive, release, assign, compromise, commence, settle or agree to settle any Legal Proceeding, other than
waivers, releases, compromises or settlements in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice that (i) involve only
the payment of monetary damages not in excess of $100,000 individually or $500,000 in the aggregate and (ii) do not include the
imposition of equitable relief on, or the admission of wrongdoing by, the Company; or

(p)    agree or commit to take any of the actions described in clauses “(a)” through “(p)” of this Section 4.2.

Nothing herein shall require the Company to obtain consent from Parent to do any of the foregoing if obtaining such consent
might reasonably be expected to violate applicable Law, including Antitrust Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Agreement, nothing contained herein shall give to Parent, directly or indirectly, the right to control or direct the operations of the
Company prior to the Closing Date, and prior to the Closing Date, each of Parent and the Company shall exercise, consistent with
the terms and conditions hereof, complete control and supervision of its respective operations.

4.3    No Solicitation

(a)    The Company will immediately cease and cause to be terminated any discussions with any Person that relate
to any Acquisition Proposal existing as of the date hereof.
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During the Pre-Closing Period, the Company shall not and shall cause its Representatives not to, directly or indirectly, (i) solicit,
initiate, knowingly encourage, facilitate or continue inquiries regarding the submission of any Acquisition Proposal by any
Person or (ii) participate in any discussions or negotiations regarding, or furnish to any Person any non-public information with
respect to, or take any other action intended or reasonably expected to facilitate the making of any inquiry or proposal to the
Company that constitutes or is reasonably expected to lead to, any Acquisition Proposal by any Person. The Company shall
immediately cease and cause to be terminated, and shall cause its Affiliates and all of its and their Representatives to immediately
cease and cause to be terminated, all existing discussions or negotiations with any Persons conducted heretofore with respect to,
or that is reasonably expected to lead to, an Acquisition Proposal. For purposes hereof, “Acquisition Proposal” shall mean any
inquiry, proposal, offer or indication of interest from any Person (other than Parent or any of its Affiliates or Representatives)
concerning (i) a merger, consolidation, liquidation, recapitalization, share exchange or other business combination transaction
involving the Company; (ii) the issuance or acquisition of shares of capital stock or other equity securities of the Company (other
than the issuance of Company Common Stock in respect of any conversion of Company Preferred Stock or the exercise of
Company Options or Company Warrants outstanding on the date of this Agreement); or (iii) the sale, lease, exchange or other
disposition of any significant portion of the Company’s properties or (except in the Company’s ordinary course of business)
assets.

(b)    Neither the Board of Directors of the Company nor any committee thereof shall (i) withdraw or modify in a
manner materially adverse to Parent or Merger Sub, the Company Board Recommendation, (ii) approve or recommend any
Acquisition Proposal or (iii) cause the Company to enter into any letter of intent, agreement in principle, acquisition agreement or
other similar agreement with respect to any Acquisition Proposal.

(c)    In addition to the obligations of the Company set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section 4.3, the
Company promptly (and in all events within three (3) Business Days) shall notify Parent of the material terms of any Acquisition
Proposal received by the Company.

4.4    Notice of Certain Events. 

(a)    From the date hereof until the Closing, the Company shall promptly upon the Company’s Knowledge thereof
notify Parent in writing of:

(i)     any fact, circumstance, event or action the existence, occurrence or taking of which has resulted in, or
could reasonably be expected to result in, the failure of the condition set forth in Section 6.1 to be satisfied at Closing;

(ii)    any notice or other communication received by the Company from any Person alleging that the
consent of such Person is or may be required in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; and

(iii)    any Legal Proceeding commenced or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened against, relating to
or involving or otherwise affecting the Company that, if pending on
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the date of this Agreement, would have been required to have been disclosed pursuant to Section 2.23.

(b)    Parent’s receipt of information pursuant to this Section 4.4 shall not operate as a waiver or otherwise affect
any representation, warranty or agreement given or made by the Company in this Agreement (including Section 8.1(d)) and shall
not be deemed to amend or supplement the Disclosure Schedule.

Section 5.    ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES

5.1    Stockholder Consent or Approval.

(a)    Immediately following the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Company shall deliver to Parent
written consents of the Company Stockholders in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E (each, a “Written Consent”) collectively
constituting the Required Company Stockholder Votes, together with a certificate from the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company certifying that such Written Consents constitute the Required Company Stockholder Votes. The Company shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to obtain and deliver to Parent Written Consents from the Company Stockholders that were not
signatories to the Required Company Stockholder Votes and shall, within 10 Business Days after the date of this Agreement, in
accordance with the Company Charter and the Company’s bylaws and the applicable requirements of the DGCL (including
Sections 228 and 262 of the DGCL), and, if applicable, the California Code, (i) prepare an information statement (the
“Information Statement”), and (ii) cause a copy of the Information Statement, together with the Written Consent and Company
Board Recommendation, to be delivered to the physical or electronic address on record for each Company Stockholder who is
entitled to vote upon adoption of this Agreement and who did not already do so as of the time of the mailing of the Information
Statement. The Information Statement shall (i) include a statement to the effect that the Board of Directors of the Company
unanimously determined that the Merger is advisable in accordance with Section 251(b) of the DGCL and in the best interests of
the Company Stockholders and unanimously approved and adopted this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions
contemplated hereby, (ii) provide the Company Stockholders to whom it is sent with notice of the actions taken in the Written
Consent, including the approval and adoption of this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby in
accordance with Section 228(e) of the DGCL and the bylaws of the Company and (iii) notify such Company Stockholders of
their dissent and appraisal rights pursuant to Section 262 of the DGCL. The Information Statement shall include therewith a copy
of Section 262 of Delaware Law and all such other information as Parent shall reasonably request. All materials submitted to the
Company Stockholders in accordance with this Section 5.1(c) shall be subject to Parent’s advance review and reasonable
approval.

(b)    Prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall (i) secure from any Person who is a “disqualified individual”,
as defined in Section 280G of the Code, and who has a right to any payments and/or benefits or potential right to any payments
and/or benefits in connection with the consummation of the Merger that would be deemed to constitute “parachute payments”
pursuant to Section 280G of the Code, a waiver of such Person’s rights to any such payments and/or benefits applicable to such
Person to the extent that all remaining payments and/or benefits
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applicable to such Person shall not be deemed to be “parachute payments” pursuant to Section 280G of the Code (the “Waived
280G Benefits”) and (ii) submit for approval by the Company Stockholders the Waived 280G Benefits, to the extent and in the
manner required under Sections 280G(b)(5)(A)(ii) and 280G(b)(5)(B) of the Code and the treasury regulations thereunder,
including Q-7 of Section 1.280G-1 of such Treasury Regulations. Prior to such solicitation, all waiver and stockholder approval
materials, including the calculations prepared by the Company or the Company’s advisors to determine the Waived 280G
Benefits, shall be subject to prior review by Parent, and such review shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The
Company shall not pay any of the Waived 280G Benefits if such payment is not approved by the Company Stockholders as
contemplated above. Prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to Parent evidence satisfactory to Parent that a vote of
the Company Stockholders was received in conformance with Section 280G of the Code and the regulations thereunder, or that
such requisite stockholder approval has not been obtained with respect to the Waived 280G Benefits, and, as a consequence, the
Waived 280G Benefits have not been and shall not be made or provided.

5.2    Regulatory Filings.

(a)    As promptly as practicable after execution and delivery of this Agreement, Parent, Merger Sub and the
Company shall each use commercially reasonable efforts, and cooperate with each other party hereto, to take, or cause to be
taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, appropriate or desirable to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, including and in no event later than eight (8) Business Days after the date of this Agreement, to
make or cause to be made all filings and submissions required under the HSR Act or other Laws applicable to the consummation
of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The parties shall cooperate in good faith in connection with such filings and
submissions and shall promptly comply with any requests for additional information relating thereto from any Governmental
Entity, including requests for production of documents and production of witnesses for interviews or depositions by any
Governmental Entities.

(b)    Parent shall diligently assist and cooperate with the Company in preparing and filing all documents required
to be submitted by the Company and/or its respective Affiliates to any Governmental Entities in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and in obtaining any Governmental Entity or third party consents, waivers, authorizations or
approvals which may be required to be obtained by the Company in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement (which assistance and cooperation shall include timely furnishing to the Company and/or its respective
Representatives, all information concerning Parent and its Affiliates that counsel to the Company reasonably determines is
required to be included in such documents or would be helpful in obtaining such required consent, waiver, authorization or
approval). Each of the parties shall have the right to review in advance, and to the extent practicable each will consult the other
on any filing made with, or other material communications submitted to, any third party and/or any Governmental Entity in
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Subject to applicable Laws relating to the exchange of
information, each party shall, to the extent practicable, give the other party reasonable advance notice of all material
communications with any Governmental Entity and consider in good faith the views of the other party in connection with any
analysis, appearance, presentation, memorandum, brief, argument, opinion, proposal or other communication to be made or
submitted
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in connection with any such request, inquiry, investigation, action, or legal proceeding, and each party shall have the right to
attend or participate in material conferences, meetings and telephone or other communications between the other parties and a
Governmental Entity concerning the Transactions, unless prohibited by such Governmental Entity. Materials required to be
provided pursuant to this Section 5.2(b) may be redacted (i) to remove references concerning the valuation of the Company or
other bidders for the Company, (ii) as necessary to comply with contractual arrangements (iii) as necessary to address attorney-
client or other privilege concerns, and (iv) to remove material that is unrelated to the contemplated transactions. Each party, as
each deems advisable and necessary, shall be entitled to designate any competitively sensitive material provided to the other
under this Section 5.2 as “Antitrust Counsel Only Material.” Such materials and the information contained therein shall be given
only to the outside antitrust counsel of the recipient and will not be disclosed by such outside antitrust counsel to Representatives
of the recipient unless express written permission is obtained in advance from the source of the materials or its legal counsel.
Parent shall be responsible for all filing fees under the HSR Act and all other Laws or regulations applicable to Parent and/or its
Affiliates. The parties shall cause the filings under the HSR Act to be considered for grant of “early termination.” No party shall
commit to or agree with any Governmental Entity to stay, toll, or extend any applicable waiting period under the HSR Act, or
pull and refile under the HSR Act, without the prior written consent of the other parties.

(c)    Without limiting the generality of anything contained in this Section 5.2 and subject to any limitations under
applicable Laws, Parent agrees to, and to cause its controlled Affiliates to, use commercially reasonable efforts to eliminate each
and every impediment that is asserted by any Governmental Entity so as to enable the parties hereto to consummate the
transactions contemplated under this Agreement promptly and, in any event, prior to the End Date. Nothing in this Agreement,
including this Section 5.2, obligates Parent, or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, to (a) propose, negotiate, commit to or effect,
by consent decree, hold separate orders, or otherwise, (i) the sale, divesture, licensing, encumbrance, or disposition of any of
Parent’s or its Subsidiaries’ or Affiliates’ assets, properties or businesses, or of the Company’s properties or businesses to be
acquired pursuant to this Agreement, or (ii) the imposition of any obligations, restraints, commitments, or other conditions upon
the operation or conduct of any assets, businesses, or operations of Parent, any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or of the
Company’s properties or businesses to be acquired pursuant to this Agreement, or (b) defend through litigation on the merits or
otherwise any claim asserted in court by any party in order to avoid entry of, or to have vacated or terminated, any decree, order
or judgment (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) that would prevent the Closing from occurring prior to the End Date.

(d)    Prior to the Closing Date, Parent shall not, and shall cause its Affiliates not to, acquire or agree to acquire by
merging or consolidating with, or by purchasing a substantial portion of the assets of or equity in, or by any other manner, any
Person or portion thereof, or otherwise acquire or agree to acquire any assets, if the entering into of an agreement relating to or
the consummation of such acquisition, merger or consolidation would reasonably be expected to (i) impose any material delay in
the obtaining of, or increase the risk of not obtaining, any authorizations, consents, Orders, declarations or approvals of any
Governmental Entity necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the expiration or termination
of any applicable waiting period, (ii) increase the risk of any Governmental Entity entering an
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Order prohibiting the consummation of the Transactions or (iii) materially delay the consummation of the Transactions.

5.3    Employee Benefits.

(a)    Parent agrees that from and after the Effective Time, Parent and its Affiliates shall assume and honor accrued
wages and related employment obligations (including bonuses and commissions) of the Company. For a period of not less than
twelve (12) months following the Effective Time, Parent shall provide or shall cause to be provided, to current employees of the
Company (the “Company Employees”) (i) base salary and target incentive compensation opportunities (excluding equity,
phantom equity, and change in control compensation) comparable in the aggregate to those in effect with respect to such
Company Employees immediately prior to the Effective Time; and (ii) benefits programs (excluding defined benefit and retiree
health) that are comparable in the aggregate to those provided to such Company Employees immediately before the Effective
Time; provided, that the foregoing shall not diminish any obligation of the Surviving Corporation pursuant to any employment or
similar agreement between the Company and any Company Employee in existence as of the Closing Date.

(b)    For all purposes under the employee benefit plans of Parent and its Affiliates providing benefits to any
Company Employees after the Effective Time (the “New Plans”), each Company Employee shall be credited with his or her
years of service with the Company before the Effective Time, to the same extent as such Company Employee was entitled, before
the Effective Time, to credit for such service under any similar Company Plans. In addition, and without limiting the generality of
the foregoing: (i) each Company Employee shall be immediately eligible to participate, without any waiting time, in any and all
New Plans; and (ii) for purposes of each New Plan providing medical, dental, pharmaceutical and/or vision benefits to any
Company Employee, Parent shall cause all pre-existing condition exclusions, waiting periods and actively-at-work requirements
of such New Plan to be waived for such employee and his or her covered dependents, and Parent shall cause any eligible
expenses incurred by such employee and his or her covered dependents during the portion of the plan year of the Company Plan
in which such Company Employee participated immediately before the Effective Time ending on the date such employee’s
participation in the corresponding New Plan begins to be taken into account under such New Plan for purposes of satisfying all
deductible, coinsurance and maximum out-of-pocket requirements applicable to such employee and his or her covered
dependents for the applicable plan year as if such amounts had been paid in accordance with such New Plan.

(c)    Nothing contained herein, express or implied, (i) is intended to confer upon any Company Employee any
right to continued employment for any period or continued receipt of any specific employee benefit, or shall constitute an
amendment to or any other modification of any benefit plan, (ii) shall alter or limit Parent’s or the Company’s or their Affiliates’
ability to amend, modify or terminate any particular benefit plan, program, agreement or arrangement or (iii) is intended to confer
upon any individual (including employees, retirees or dependents or beneficiaries of employees or retirees) any right as a third
party beneficiary of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Section 5.3, Parent’s and its Affiliates’
obligations under this Section 5.3 shall not limit Parent’s and its Affiliates’ right, in their sole discretion, to
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furlough, temporarily layoff, terminate the employment of, or reduce the hours or benefits of, any employee because of, in whole
or in part, COVID-19 pandemic related circumstances.

5.4    Indemnification of Officers and Directors.

(a)    If the Merger is consummated, then from the Effective Time until the sixth anniversary of the date on which
the Effective Time occurs, the Surviving Corporation shall, and Parent shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, fulfill and honor
all rights to indemnification by the Company existing in favor of those Persons who are directors and officers of the Company as
of the date of this Agreement (the “D&O Indemnified Persons”) for their acts and omissions occurring prior to the Effective
Time, as provided in the Company Charter and the Company’s bylaws (in each case, as in effect as of the date of this Agreement)
and as provided in the indemnification agreements between the Company and such D&O Indemnified Persons (as in effect as of
the date of this Agreement) in the forms made available by the Company to Parent prior to the date of this Agreement, to the
fullest extent available under applicable Law, and any claim made requesting indemnification pursuant to such indemnification
rights shall continue to be subject to this Section 5.4(a) and the indemnification rights provided under this Section 5.4(a) until
disposition of such claim.

(b)    If the Merger is consummated, then from the Effective Time until the sixth anniversary of the date on which
the Effective Time occurs, the Surviving Corporation shall maintain in effect, for the benefit of the D&O Indemnified Persons
with respect to their acts and omissions occurring prior to the Effective Time, the six-year “tail” policy for the existing directors
and officers liability insurance that the Company shall purchase as of the effective time (the “Tail D&O Policy”); provided, that
in no event shall Parent be required to expend in any one year an amount in excess of 150% of the annual premium currently
payable by the Company with respect to such current policy.

(c)    In the event that Parent, the Company or the Surviving Corporation or any of their respective successors or
assigns (i) consolidates with or merges into any other Person and shall not be the continuing or surviving corporation or Entity of
such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person, then, and in each
such case, Parent shall ensure that the successors and assigns of Parent, the Company or the Surviving Corporation, as the case
may be, shall assume the obligations set forth in this Section 5.4.

(d)    The provisions of this Section 5.4 shall survive the consummation of the Merger and are (i) intended to be
for the benefit of, and will be enforceable by, each of the D&O Indemnified Persons and their successors, assigns and heirs and
(ii) in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other rights to indemnification or contribution that any such D&O Indemnified
Person may have by Contract or otherwise. This Section 5.4 may not be amended, altered or repealed after the Effective Time
without the prior written consent of the affected D&O Indemnified Person.

(e)    Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section 5.4, any indemnification agreement, the Company
Charter or the Company’s bylaws, no such D&O Indemnified Person will have any right of indemnification from the Surviving
Corporation or its
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successors or Acquiror pursuant to this Section 5.4 with respect to any damages incurred if such D&O Indemnified Person
committed Fraud.

5.5    Disclosure; Confidentiality.

(a)    During the Pre-Closing Period, neither the Company nor its Affiliates, on the one hand, nor Parent or any of
its Affiliates, on the other hand, shall issue (and each shall cause its Representatives not to issue) any press release or make any
public statement regarding this Agreement or the Merger, or regarding any of the other transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, without the prior written consent of the other party hereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing, but subject to the terms
and conditions of the Confidentiality Agreement, each party hereto shall be allowed to disclose the terms of this Agreement, the
Transaction Documents and the Transactions as required under applicable securities or other Laws or the rules of any national
securities exchange or interdealer quotation service. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Debt
Financing Sources may issue customary announcements and make other customary communications, including preparation and
distribution of marketing materials, in connection with the Debt Financing; provided, that the recipients of such information and
any other information contemplated to be provided by the Debt Financing Sources agree to customary confidentiality
arrangements, including “click through” confidentiality agreements and confidentially provisions contained in customary bank
books and offering memoranda.

(b)    Each of Parent, and, prior to the Closing, the Company and their respective controlled Affiliates shall comply
with, and shall cause its respective Representatives to comply with, all of its respective obligations under the Confidentiality
Agreement which shall survive the termination of this Agreement in accordance with the terms set forth therein.

5.6    Tax Matters.

(a)    Transfer Taxes. Parent on the one hand and the Participating Securityholders on the other hand shall each be
responsible for and pay fifty percent (50%) of all stock transfer Taxes, real property transfer or mortgage Taxes, sales Taxes,
documentary stamp Taxes, recording charges and other similar Taxes, if any, arising from the Contemplated Transactions and
Parent shall prepare and file all necessary Tax Returns and other documentation in connection with such Taxes and Seller
Representative shall cooperate as necessary in filing any such Tax Returns.

(b)    Cooperation. Parent and the Seller Representative agree to furnish or cause to be furnished to the other, upon
reasonable request, such information and assistance in such party’s possession (including the possession of any Affiliate) relating
to Taxes, including access to books and records, as is reasonably necessary for the filing of all Company Returns by Parent, or the
Participating Securityholders. Parent shall retain all books and records in its possession with respect to Taxes for a period of at
least seven years following the Closing Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Seller
Representative shall have no obligation to prepare or file any Tax Returns.
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(c)    Tax Treatment. For all applicable Tax purposes, the parties to this Agreement agree to, and no party shall
take any action or filing position inconsistent with, the following Tax treatment of the items specified below:

(i)    The Seller Representative Reserve shall be treated as having been received and voluntarily set aside
by the Participating Securityholders on the Closing Date, and no Tax withholding or information reporting shall be required in
connection with the subsequent distribution of any portion of the Seller Representative Reserve to the Participating
Securityholders.

(ii)    Except for amounts paid in respect of In-the-Money Options (which are addressed in Section 5.6(d)
(iii)) and amounts received by a Participating Securityholder in the taxable year of such Participating Securityholder in which the
Closing occurs, (A) the rights of the Participating Securityholders to the amounts held in the Escrow Account shall be treated as
deferred contingent purchase price eligible for installment treatment under Section 453 of the Code and any corresponding
provision of Applicable Law, as appropriate, and (B) if and to the extent any amount is released to the Participating
Securityholders, interest may be imputed on such amount if required by Section 483 or 1274 of the Code.

(iii)    Any payments made in respect of In-the-Money Options pursuant to this Agreement (A) shall be
treated as compensation paid by the Company as and when received by the holder thereof to whom such payment is due (which,
for the avoidance of doubt, shall be when released in respect of such In-the-Money Options in the case of amounts released from
the Escrow Account or any amounts paid pursuant to Section 1.12), and (B) shall be net of any Taxes withheld pursuant to
Section 1.11(e).

(d)    All Tax allocation, sharing, receivable or indemnity agreements involving the Company shall be terminated
prior to the Closing Date, such that, after the Closing, neither Parent, the Company, the Surviving Corporation, nor any of their
Affiliates, shall be bound thereby or have any liability thereunder. For the avoidance of doubt, this provision shall not apply to
customary agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business (such as a loan or a lease) the primary purpose of which is
not Taxes.

5.7    R&W Insurance. Parent and Merger Sub acknowledge and agree that (a) Parent may obtain the R&W Insurance
Policy, which if obtained shall be bound as of the date hereof and be in full force and effect upon Closing, (b) Parent shall be
responsible for all fees, expenses and premiums relating to the R&W Insurance Policy, and (c) if an R&W Insurance Policy is
obtained, Parent shall provide a copy to the Company prior to the date of this Agreement and shall not amend, waive or terminate
the subrogation provisions contained in the R&W Insurance Policy in a manner adverse to the Company or the Participating
Securityholders, without the prior written consent of the Company prior to Closing, or the Seller Representative after Closing
(such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed).

5.8    Efforts to Provide Notices. The Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to give any required notices to
and make any required filings in connection with the matters set forth in item (c)3. on Part 2.5 of the Disclosure Schedule and
Section 6.15, and Parent will cooperate with the Company in all reasonable respects in connection therewith.

58.



Section 6.    CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO OBLIGATIONS OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB

The obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger and otherwise consummate the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by Parent), at or prior to the Closing, of each of the following
conditions:

6.1    Accuracy of Representations and Warranties. The Specified Representations that are qualified by materiality or
Company Material Adverse Effect shall be true and correct in all respects as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing
Date with the same effect as though made on and as of the Closing (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in
which case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects as of such earlier date). The Specified
Representations that are not qualified by materiality or Company Material Adverse Effect shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date with the same effect as though made on and as of the Closing
(except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be true and
correct in all material respects as of such earlier date). The other representations and warranties of the Company set forth in
Section 2 shall be true and correct (without giving effect to any limitation as to materiality or Company Material Adverse Effect
set forth therein) as of the date of this Agreement and of the Closing Date with the same effect as though made on and as of the
Closing (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be true
and correct as of such earlier date), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be true and correct could
not reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

6.2    Performance of Covenants. The Company shall have performed and complied with, in all material respects, all of
its covenants contained in this Agreement (other than Section 4.4)at or before the Closing (to the extent that such covenants
require performance by the Company at or before the Closing).

6.3    Stockholder Approval. This Agreement shall have been duly adopted by the Required Company Stockholder
Votes.

6.4    No Restraints. No Order enjoining, preventing or prohibiting the consummation of the Merger by Parent shall have
been issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other Governmental Entity and remain in effect, and no Law shall have
been enacted since the date of this Agreement that, in each case, makes consummation of the Merger by Parent or Merger Sub
illegal.

6.5    No Governmental Litigation. There shall not be pending before any court of competent jurisdiction any lawsuit or
other Legal Proceeding challenging the Merger that has been commenced by a Governmental Entity.

6.6    Agreements and Documents. Parent shall have received the following agreements and documents, each of which
shall be in full force and effect:

(a)    the Certificate of Merger, executed by the Company; and
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(b)    (i) a notice to the IRS, in accordance with the requirements of Treasury Regulation Section 1.897-2(h)(2)
dated as of the Closing Date, together with written authorization for Parent to deliver such notice to the IRS on behalf of the
Company after the Closing and (ii) a certification that the shares of Company Capital Stock are not “United States real property
interests” as defined in Section 897(c) of the Code prepared in accordance with the Treasury Regulations under Sections 897 and
1445 of the Code (for purposes of satisfying Parent’s obligations under Treasury Regulation Section 1.1445-2(c)(3)), in each
case, validly executed by a duly authorized officer of the Company;

(c)    [Reserved;]

(d)    [Reserved;]

(e)    [Reserved;]

(f)    [Reserved;]

(g)    [Reserved;] and

(h)    written resignations of all officers and directors of the Company effective as of the Effective Time.

6.7    Closing Certificate

. An authorized officer of the Company shall have delivered to Parent a certificate to the effect that each of the conditions
specified above in Sections 6.1 and 6.2 is satisfied in all respects.

6.8    Dissenting Shares. Dissenting Shares shall not constitute more than 10% of the Company Capital Stock outstanding
on the applicable record date.

6.9    Officer’s Certificate. The Company shall have delivered to Parent a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer (or
other authorized officer) of the Company certifying (a) that attached thereto are true and complete copies of all resolutions
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company (i) authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and
the Transaction Documents and the consummation of the Transactions and (ii) with respect to the Company Carve-Out Plan,
setting forth the determination of the aggregate amount of Net Proceeds by the Board of Directors of the Company; (b) that the
resolutions described in clause (a) are in full force and effect and are all the resolutions adopted in connection with the matters
described in clause (a) and the items set forth in Section 2.4(e)(iv); and (c) the names of the officers of the Company authorized
to sign this Agreement, the Transaction Documents and the other documents to be delivered hereunder and thereunder.

6.10    Good Standing Certificates. The Company shall have delivered to Parent a good standing certificate (or its
equivalent) from the secretary of state or similar Governmental Entity of the jurisdiction under the Laws in which the Company is
organized.

6.11    Escrow Agreement. The Seller Representative shall have executed and delivered the Escrow Agreement.
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6.12    No Company Material Adverse Effect. Since the date of this Agreement, there shall not have occurred any
Company Material Adverse Effect other than a Company Material Adverse Effect that is capable of being cured and has been
cured to Parent’s satisfaction as of the Closing Date.

6.13    HSR Clearance. The waiting period (and any extensions thereof) applicable to the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement under the HSR Act shall have expired or been terminated.

6.14    R&W Insurance Policy. If Parent elects to procure the R&W Insurance Policy pursuant to Section 5.7, the R&W
Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect.

6.15    Termination of 401(k) Plan. The board of directors of the Company shall have adopted a resolution terminating
the Company’s existing 401(k) plan contingent upon the Closing and effective as of the day immediately prior to the Closing
Date.

6.16    Termination and Payment of Severance. Each of the Persons identified on Schedule 6.6(d) shall have resigned or
been terminated as employees of the Company conditioned on and effective as of the Effective Time, and such resignation or
termination shall have been deemed to constitute an event pursuant to which such Persons are entitled severance under their
existing agreements with the Company (such severance, the “Specified Severance”).

6.17    Offer Letters and Consulting Agreements. No individual identified on Schedule6.17(a) shall have revoked the
consulting agreement from Parent that was executed by such individual simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this
Agreement. No individual identified on Schedule 6.17(b) shall have revoked the offer letter or restrictive covenant agreement
from Parent in each case that was executed by such individual simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Agreement.

Section 7.    CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO OBLIGATIONS OF THE COMPANY

The obligation of the Company to effect the Merger and otherwise consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by the Company), at or prior to the Closing, of the following conditions:

7.1    Accuracy of Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub set
forth in Section 3 shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date with
the same effect as though made on and as of the Closing (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case
such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects as of such earlier date).

7.2    Performance of Covenants. Parent and Merger Sub shall have performed and complied with, in all material
respects, all of their agreements, covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement and each Transaction Document to be
performed or complied with by it at or before the Closing (to the extent that such agreements, covenants or conditions require
performance by Parent or Merger Sub at or before the Closing).
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7.3    Stockholder Approval. This Agreement shall have been duly adopted by the Required Company Stockholder
Votes.

7.4    No Restraints. No Order enjoining, preventing or prohibiting the consummation of the Merger by the Company
shall have been issued by any court of competent jurisdiction and remain in effect, and no Law shall have been enacted since the
date of this Agreement that, in each case, makes consummation of the Merger by the Company illegal.

7.5    No Governmental Litigation. There shall not be pending or threatened before any court of competent jurisdiction
any lawsuit or other Legal Proceeding challenging the Merger that has been commenced by a Governmental Entity.

7.6    Escrow Agreement. Parent shall have executed and delivered to the Company the Escrow Agreement.

7.7    Closing Certificate. An authorized officer of Parent and Merger Sub shall have delivered to Company a certificate
to the effect that each of the conditions specified above in Sections 7.1 and 7.2 is satisfied in all respects.

7.8    HSR Clearance. The waiting period (and any extensions thereof) applicable to the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement under the HSR Act shall have expired or been terminated.

Section 8.    TERMINATION

8.1    Termination. This Agreement may be terminated prior to the Effective Time (whether before or after the adoption
of this Agreement by the Required Company Stockholder Votes):

(a)    by mutual written consent of Parent and the Company;

(b)    by either Parent or the Company if the Merger shall not have been consummated by the End Date; provided,
that a party shall not be permitted to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(b) if the failure to consummate the
Merger by the End Date is primarily attributable to a breach or failure on the part of such party to perform any representation,
warranty, covenant or agreement in this Agreement required to be performed by such party at or prior to the Effective Time as set
forth in this Agreement;

(c)    by either Parent or the Company if a court of competent jurisdiction shall have issued a final and
nonappealable Order having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the Merger; provided, that a
party shall not be permitted to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(c) if such party did not use commercially
reasonable efforts to have such Order vacated prior to its becoming final and nonappealable;

(d)    by Parent, if the Company shall have materially breached or materially failed to perform any of its
representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement, which material breach or failure to perform (i)
would give rise to the failure of a
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condition set forth in Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 and (ii) cannot be or has not been cured within 30 calendar days following receipt
by the Company of written notice of such material breach or failure to perform;

(e)    by the Company, if Parent or Merger Sub shall have materially breached or materially failed to perform any
of their respective representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement, which material breach or
failure to perform (i) would give rise to the failure of a condition set forth in Section 7.1 or Section 7.2 and (ii) cannot be or has
not been cured within 30 calendar days following receipt by Parent of written notice of such material breach or failure to
perform; or

(f)    by Parent, by written notice to the Company if, immediately following the execution of this Agreement, the
Company has not obtained the Required Company Stockholder Votes and has not delivered to Parent Written Consents
constituting the Required Company Stockholder Votes.

8.2    Effect of Termination. In the event of the termination of this Agreement as provided in Section 8.1, this Agreement
shall be of no further force or effect; provided, that no such termination shall relieve any party from any liability for any Damages
for Willful Breach of this Agreement before such termination; provided, further, that Section 5.5(b), this Section 8.2 and Section
9 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 9.    MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9.1    No Recourse; Non-Survival of Representations, Warranties and Covenants.

(a)    All representations and warranties and all covenants and obligations of the Company set forth in this
Agreement (other than those covenants and agreements that by their terms apply or are to be performed in whole or in part (but
only to the extent of such part) at or after the Closing (collectively, the “Post-Closing Covenants”)) shall terminate at the Closing
(the “Expiration Date”) and it is the intention of the parties hereto, to the extent permitted by applicable Law, that the Expiration
Date supersede any applicable statutes of limitations with respect to such representations, warranties and covenants, provided,
that (i) nothing herein shall relieve any Person from any liability or damages resulting from such Person’s Fraud (it being
understood that no Person shall be liable for any Fraud committed by any other Person), and (ii) each Post-Closing Covenant
shall survive until such covenant is performed or otherwise expires in accordance with its terms.

(b)    Parent (on behalf of itself, its Affiliates (including, from and after the Closing, the Company) and its and its
Affiliates’ Representatives, collectively, the “Parent Parties” and each, a “Parent Party”) hereby waives, from and after the
Closing, any and all rights, claims and causes of action which any Parent Party may have against the Company or any of the
Participating Securityholders, any of its or their respective Affiliates or any of its or their Representatives (collectively, the
“Seller Parties”) arising out of, relating to or otherwise resulting from the Transactions; provided, however, that such waiver shall
not limit the liability of any Participating Securityholder for any Fraud committed by that Participating Securityholder. Parent
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(on behalf of the Parent Parties) agrees that, from and after the Closing, under no circumstances will the Seller Parties have any
liability or responsibility to any of the Parent Parties for any losses or other liabilities relating to or arising from any actual or
alleged breach of any representation or warranty or any covenant or agreement to have been performed prior to the Closing set
forth in this Agreement (or any Exhibit, Schedule or certificate delivered hereunder), including by virtue of or based upon any
alleged misrepresentation or inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations or warranties or covenants or obligations set
forth in this Agreement that are to be performed prior to the Closing, any certificate, instrument, opinion or other documents
delivered hereunder, the ownership, operation, management, use or control of the business of the Company prior to the Closing,
any of their respective assets, or any actions or omissions at or prior to the Closing, whether by the enforcement of any
assessment or by any legal or equitable proceeding, or by virtue of any statute, regulation or other applicable Law, except for any
claim of Fraud with respect to the representations and warranties in Section 2 of this Agreement. From and after the Closing, the
Parent Parties shall have no recourse of any kind to the Seller Parties under any Theory of Liability, for any action or inaction of
any of the Seller Parties, in each case prior to the Closing; except for any claim of Fraud with respect to the representations and
warranties in Section 2 of this Agreement. In no event shall any Participating Securityholder be liable in connection with the
transactions contemplated under this Agreement for any damages, losses or other liabilities (a) in excess of such Participating
Securityholder’s pro rata portion of such amounts based on the portion of Merger Consideration actually received by such
Participating Securityholder compared to the total Merger Consideration or (b) in excess of the amount of Merger Consideration
actually received by such Participating Securityholder under this Agreement.

9.2    Amendment. This Agreement may be amended with the approval of the respective boards of directors of the
Company (or the Seller Representative following the Closing) and Parent at any time (whether before or after the adoption of this
Agreement by the Required Company Stockholder Votes); provided, that after any such adoption of this Agreement by the
Required Company Stockholder Votes, no amendment shall be made which by Law requires further approval of the Company
Stockholders without the further approval of such Company Stockholders; provided, further, that this Agreement shall not be
amended, modified or supplemented in any manner that would adversely affect the rights of any Debt Financing Source Parties
under Section 5.5, this Section 9.2, Section 9.6, Section 9.8 and/or Section 9.18 (in each case, together with any related
definitions and other provisions of this Agreement to the extent an amendment, modification or supplement thereto would serve
to modify the substance or provision of any such sections) (collectively, the “Debt Financing Provisions”) without the prior
written consent of the Debt Financing Sources. This Agreement may not be amended except by an instrument in writing signed
on behalf of the Company and Parent (prior to the Closing) or Parent and the Seller Representative (after the Closing) (and, in the
case of the Debt Financing Provisions, the Debt Financing Sources).

9.3    Expenses. All fees and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement, the Transaction Documents and the
Transactions shall be paid by the party incurring such expenses, whether or not the Merger is consummated, except that all (a)
filing fees payable under or pursuant to the HSR Act (and any other government regulation) shall be paid by Parent, and (b) fees
and expenses of the Payment Agent and the Escrow Agent shall be paid by Parent.
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9.4    Waiver.

(a)    No failure on the part of any party to exercise any power, right, privilege or remedy under this Agreement,
and no delay on the part of any party in exercising any power, right, privilege or remedy under this Agreement, shall operate as a
waiver of such power, right, privilege or remedy; and no single or partial exercise of any such power, right, privilege or remedy
shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or of any other power, right, privilege or remedy.

(b)    No party shall be deemed to have waived any claim arising out of this Agreement, or any power, right,
privilege or remedy under this Agreement, unless the waiver of such claim, power, right, privilege or remedy is expressly set
forth in a written instrument duly executed and delivered on behalf of such party; and any such waiver shall not be applicable or
have any effect except in the specific instance in which it is given.

9.5    Entire Agreement; Counterparts. This Agreement (together with the Disclosure Schedule and Exhibits which are
intended to be and hereby are specifically made a part of this Agreement), the Transaction Documents and the Confidentiality
Agreement constitute the entire agreement and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among
or between any of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof; provided, that the Confidentiality Agreement
shall not be superseded, shall survive any termination of this Agreement and shall continue in full force and effect until the earlier
to occur of (a) the Effective Time and (b) the date on which the Confidentiality Agreement expires in accordance with its terms or
is validly terminated by the parties thereto. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile
or electronic transmission, each of which shall be deemed an original.

9.6    Applicable Law; Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of
the State of Delaware, regardless of the laws that might otherwise govern under applicable principles of conflicts of laws thereof.
Except as set forth in Section 1.12, in any action between any of the parties arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of
the Transactions: (a) each of the parties irrevocably and unconditionally consents and submits to the exclusive jurisdiction and
venue of the state and federal courts located in Delaware; (b) if any such action is commenced in a state court, then, subject to
applicable Law, no party shall object to the removal of such action to any federal court located in Delaware; and (c) each of the
parties irrevocably waives the right to trial by jury. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein and without limiting Section
9.18, (i) no party hereto nor its controlled Affiliates shall bring or support any action or causes of action (whether in contract or in
tort or otherwise, or whether at law (including at common law or by statute) or in equity) against the Debt Financing Source
Parties (in each case, in such capacity) in any way relating to this Agreement or any of the Transactions, including any dispute
arising out of or relating in any way to the Debt Financing or the performance thereof, in any forum other than the Supreme Court
of the State of New York, County of New York or, if under applicable Law exclusive jurisdiction is vested in the federal courts,
the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (and appellate courts thereof), (ii) all claims, crossclaims,
third party-claims or causes of action (whether in contract or in tort or otherwise, or whether at law (including at common law or
by statute) or in equity) against any of
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the Debt Financing Source Parties (in each case, in such capacity) in any way relating to this Agreement or any of the
Transactions, including any dispute arising out of or relating in any way to the Debt Financing or the performance thereof, shall
be exclusively governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal Laws of the State of New York, without giving effect
to principles or rules of choice or conflict of Laws to the extent such principles or rules would require or permit the application of
Laws of another jurisdiction and (iii) each party HERETO hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives and shall cause its
Affiliates to waive any right such party may have to a trial by jury in respect of any litigation (whether in contract or in tort or
otherwise, or whether at law (including at common law or by statute) or in equity) directly or indirectly arising out of or relating
in any way to this Agreement and/or the Transactions, including any dispute arising out of or relating in any way to the Debt
Financing or the performance thereof.

9.7    Assignability. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall be enforceable by and inure solely to the benefit of,
the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns; provided, that, neither this Agreement nor any of the rights
hereunder may be assigned (whether by merger, consolidation, sale or otherwise) by the Company (prior to the Effective Time) or
Parent without the prior written consent of the other party, and any attempted assignment of this Agreement or any of such rights
without such consent shall be void and of no effect (except that Parent may assign this Agreement or any such rights to an
Affiliate without the prior written consent of the Company (prior to the Effective Time) or the Seller Representative (at or after
the Effective Time)); provided, further, however, that Parent and the Surviving Corporation may assign this Agreement as a
whole without such consent in connection with the acquisition (whether by merger, consolidation, sale or otherwise) of Parent or
the Surviving Corporation or of that part of Parent’s or the Surviving Corporation’s business to which this Agreement relates, as
long as Parent provides written notice to the Company (prior to the Effective Time) or the Seller Representative (at or after the
Effective Time) of such assignment and the assignee thereof agrees in writing to assume and be bound as Parent and the
Surviving Corporation hereunder.

9.8    Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided in Section 5.4, nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is
intended to or shall confer upon any Person (other than the parties hereto) any right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever
under or by reason of this Agreement; provided, that the Debt Financing Source Parties are intended third-party beneficiaries of
the Debt Financing Provisions and such provisions shall be enforceable by each Financing Source.

9.9    Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be delivered to any party under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly delivered, given and received (a) upon receipt when delivered by
hand, (b) upon transmission, if sent by electronic transmission (in each case with receipt verified by electronic confirmation), or
(c) one Business Day after being sent by courier or express delivery service, provided that in each case the notice or other
communication is sent to the address set forth beneath the name of such party below (or to such other address as such party shall
have specified in a written notice given to the
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other parties hereto), provided that with respect to notices deliverable to the Seller Representative, such notices shall be delivered
solely via email or facsimile:

if to Parent or Merger Sub:

Haemonetics Corporation
125 Summer Street
Boston, Massachusetts 02110
Attn: Michelle Basil, General Counsel
Email: [***]

with a copy to:

DLA Piper LLP
33 Arch Street, 26th Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02110
Attn: Adam Ghander
Email: adam.ghander@dlapiper.com    

if to the Company (prior to Closing):

Cardiva Medical, Inc.
1615 Wyatt Drive
Santa Clara, CA  95054
Attn: [***]
Email: [***]

or the Seller Representative (after the Closing):

Fortis Advisors LLC
Facsimile [***]
E-mail: [***]
Attention: [***]

in the case of notices to the Company (prior to Closing) or to the Seller Representative (after the Closing), with a copy to
(which shall not constitute notice):

Cooley LLP
3175 Hanover Street
Palo Alto, CA 94304
Attention: Mark Weeks; Josh Seidenfeld; Anne Lieberman    
E-mail: mweeks@cooley.com; jseidenfeld@cooley.com;
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alieberman@cooley.com     

9.10    Severability. Any term or provision of this Agreement that is invalid or unenforceable in any situation in any
jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or the validity or
enforceability of the offending term or provision in any other situation or in any other jurisdiction. If the final judgment of a court
of competent jurisdiction declares that any term or provision hereof is invalid or unenforceable, the parties hereto agree that the
court making such determination shall have the power to limit the term or provision, to delete specific words or phrases, or to
replace any invalid or unenforceable term or provision with a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes
closest to expressing the intention of the invalid or unenforceable term or provision, and this Agreement shall be enforceable as
so modified. In the event such court does not exercise the power granted to it in the prior sentence, the parties hereto agree to
replace such invalid or unenforceable term or provision with a valid and enforceable term or provision that will achieve, to the
extent possible, the economic, business and other purposes of such invalid or unenforceable term.

9.11    Knowledge. “Knowledge” of the Company shall mean the actual knowledge of a fact or other matter, after
reasonable inquiry of the direct reports with operational responsibility for the matters in question, of the Knowledge Individuals.

9.12    Conflict of Interest. If the Seller Representative so desires, acting on behalf of the Participating Securityholders
and without the need for any consent or waiver by the Company or Parent, Cooley LLP (“Cooley”) shall be permitted to represent
the Participating Securityholders after the Closing in connection with any matter, including without limitation, anything related to
the Transactions, any other agreements referenced herein or any disagreement or dispute relating thereto. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, after the Closing, Cooley shall be permitted to represent the Participating Securityholders, any of
their agents and Affiliates, or any one or more of them, in connection with any negotiation, transaction or dispute (including any
litigation, arbitration or other adversary proceeding) with Parent, the Company or any of their agents or Affiliates under or
relating to this Agreement, any transaction contemplated by this Agreement, and any related matter, such as claims or disputes
arising under other agreements entered into in connection with this Agreement, including with respect to any indemnification
claims. Upon and after the Closing, the Company shall cease to have any attorney-client relationship with Cooley, unless and to
the extent Cooley is specifically engaged in writing by the Company to represent the Company after the Closing and either such
engagement involves no conflict of interest with respect to the Participating Securityholders or the Seller Representative consents
in writing at the time to such engagement. Any such representation of the Company by Cooley after the Closing shall not affect
the foregoing provisions hereof.

9.13    Attorney-Client Privilege. Parent, Participating Securityholders and the Company agree that any attorney-client
privilege, attorney work-product protection, and the expectation of client confidence attaching as a result of counsel’s (whether
external or internal) representation of the Company in connection with the Transactions, and all information and documents
covered by such privilege or protection (the “Covered Materials”), shall belong to and be controlled by the Seller Representative,
and not by the Parent or the Company, following the Closing, and may be waived only by the Seller Representative, and not the
Company, and shall not pass to or be claimed

68.



or used by Parent or the Company. Absent the consent of the Seller Representative, neither Parent nor the Company shall have a
right to access the Covered Materials following the Closing and, in the event Parent or the Company accesses Covered Materials
in violation of this sentence, such access will not waive or otherwise affect the rights of the Seller Representative with respect to
the related privilege or protection. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a dispute arises between Parent or the Company, on the one
hand, and a third party other than (and unaffiliated with) the Participating Securityholders and the Seller Representative, on the
other hand, after the Closing, then the Company may assert such attorney-client privilege to prevent disclosure to such Covered
Materials; and provided, further, that Parent and the Company may not waive such privilege without the prior written consent of
the Seller Representative. The foregoing shall not extend to (i) any communication unrelated to this Agreement, any of the
Transaction Documents or the Transactions, (ii) communications among any of the Company Stockholders, the Seller
Representative or the Company, on the one hand, and any Person other than Cooley or the Company’s other legal counsel, on the
other hand, or (iii) any post-Closing communications between the Company and Cooley and its other legal counsel.

9.14    No Implied Representations; Non-Reliance. The parties acknowledge that, except as expressly provided in
Section 2 and Section 3, none of the parties hereto has made or is making any representations or warranties whatsoever, implied
or otherwise; provided, that nothing in this Section 9.14 shall limit Parent’s right to seek any remedy on account of Fraud. Parent
hereby acknowledges and agrees that:

(a)    Parent has conducted its own independent investigation, review and analysis of the business, results of
operations, prospects, condition (financial or otherwise) or assets of the Company, and acknowledges that it has been provided
adequate access to the personnel, properties, assets, premises, books and records, and other documents and data of the Company
for such purpose. Parent acknowledges and agrees that: (i) in making its decision to enter into this Agreement and the other
Transaction Documents and to consummate the Transactions, Parent has relied solely upon its own investigation and the express
representations and warranties of the Company set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement (including, and subject to, the related
portions of the Disclosure Schedule) and disclaims reliance on any other representations and warranties of any kind or nature
express or implied (including, but not limited to, any relating to the future or historical financial condition, results of operations,
assets or liabilities or prospects of the Company); and (ii) none of the Company Stockholders, the Company or any other Person
has made any representation or warranty as to a Company Stockholder, the Company or the accuracy or completeness of any
information regarding the Company furnished or made available to Parent and its Representatives, except as expressly set forth in
Section 2 of this Agreement (including, and subject to, the related portions of the Disclosure Schedule).

(b)    In connection with the due diligence investigation of the Company by Parent and its Affiliates, stockholders
and/or Representatives, Parent and its Affiliates, stockholders and Representatives have received and may continue to receive
after the date hereof from the Company and its Affiliates, stockholders and Representatives certain estimates, projections,
forecasts and other forward-looking information, as well as certain business plan information, regarding the Company and its
businesses and operations. Parent hereby acknowledges that there are uncertainties inherent in attempting to make such estimates,
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projections, forecasts and other forward-looking statements, as well as in such business plans, and that Parent will have no claim
against any of the Company, or any of its Affiliates, stockholders, directors, officers, employees, consultants, agents,
representatives or advisors, or any other Person, with respect thereto, including as to the accuracy or completeness of any
information provided. Accordingly, Parent hereby acknowledges and agrees that, except for the representations and warranties
expressly set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement (including, and subject to, the related portions of the Disclosure Schedule),
neither the Company, nor any of its Affiliates, stockholders, directors, officers, employees, consultants, agents, representatives or
advisors has made or is making any express or implied representation or warranty with respect to such estimates, projections,
forecasts, forward-looking statements or business plans.

9.15    Specific Performance. The parties agree that irreparable damage for which monetary damages, even if available,
would not be an adequate remedy, would occur in the event that the parties do not perform their obligations under the provisions
of this Agreement in accordance with its specified terms or otherwise breach such provisions. The parties acknowledge and agree
that (a) the parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions, specific performance, or other equitable relief, to prevent
breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof in the courts described in Section 9.6
without proof of damages or otherwise, this being in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled under this
Agreement or at law or in equity and (b) the right of specific performance is an integral part of the Transactions and without that
right, none of the Company, Parent or Merger Sub would have entered into this Agreement. The right to specific enforcement
hereunder shall include the right of the Company to cause Parent to consummate the Merger, and to consummate the other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement. Each of the
parties agrees that it will not oppose the granting of an injunction, specific performance and other equitable relief on the basis that
the other parties have an adequate remedy at law or an award of specific performance is not an appropriate remedy for any reason
at law or equity. The parties acknowledge and agree that any party seeking an Order to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to
enforce specifically the terms and provisions of this Agreement in accordance with this Section 9.15 shall not be required to
provide any bond or other security in connection with any such Order.

9.16    Construction

(a)    For purposes of this Agreement, whenever the context requires: the singular number shall include the plural,
and vice versa; the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders; the feminine gender shall include the
masculine and neuter genders; and the neuter gender shall include masculine and feminine genders.

(b)    The parties hereto agree that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against
the drafting party shall not be applied in the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.

(c)    As used in this Agreement, the words “include” and “including,” and variations thereof, shall not be deemed
to be terms of limitation, but rather shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation.”

70.



(d)    Except as otherwise indicated, all references in this Agreement to “Sections,” “Exhibits” and “Schedules”
are intended to refer to Sections of this Agreement and Exhibits or Schedules to this Agreement.

(e)    The bold-faced headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, shall not be
deemed to be a part of this Agreement and shall not be referred to in connection with the construction or interpretation of this
Agreement.

(f)    All references to materials being “furnished,” “provided,” “delivered,” or “made available” by the Company
means documents posted and accessible to Parent and its advisors in the Venue Hub electronic data room for “Project Cardiva”
hosted by Donnelley Financial Solutions no less than 24 hours before the date of this Agreement and remained so posted and
accessible continuously through the Closing.

9.17    Disclosure Schedule. The Disclosure Schedule has been arranged, for purposes of convenience only, as separate
Parts corresponding to the subsections of Section 2 of this Agreement. The representations and warranties contained in Section 2
of this Agreement are subject to (a) the exceptions and disclosures set forth in the part of the Disclosure Schedule corresponding
to the particular subsection of Section 2 in which such representation and warranty appears; (b) any exceptions or disclosures
explicitly cross-referenced in such part of the Disclosure Schedule by reference to another part of the Disclosure Schedule; and
(c) any exception or disclosure set forth in any other part of the Disclosure Schedule to the extent it is reasonably apparent that
such exception or disclosure is intended to qualify such representation and warranty. No reference to or disclosure of any item or
other matter in the Disclosure Schedule shall be construed as an admission or indication that such item or other matter is material
(nor shall it establish a standard of materiality for any purpose whatsoever) or that such item or other matter is required to be
referred to or disclosed in the Disclosure Schedule. The information set forth in the Disclosure Schedule is disclosed solely for
the purposes of this Agreement, and no information set forth therein shall be deemed to be an admission by any party hereto to
any third party of any matter whatsoever, including of any violation of Law or breach of any agreement. The Disclosure Schedule
and the information and disclosures contained therein are intended only to qualify and limit the representations, warranties and
covenants of the Company contained in this Agreement. Nothing in the Disclosure Schedule is intended to broaden the scope of
any representation or warranty contained in this Agreement or create any covenant. Matters reflected in the Disclosure Schedule
are not necessarily limited to matters required by the Agreement to be reflected in the Disclosure Schedule. Such additional
matters are set forth for informational purposes and do not necessarily include other matters of a similar nature.

9.18     Waiver of Claims Against Debt Financing Sources. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the
Company (and its directors, officers, employees, equityholders, Representatives, advisors and Affiliates (in each case, in such
capacity)) and the Seller Representative (and its directors, officers, employees, equityholders, Representatives, advisors and
Affiliates (in each case, in such capacity)) each hereby waives any rights or claims against any of the Debt Financing Source
Parties (in each case, in such capacity), in any way relating to this Agreement or any of the Transactions, including any dispute
arising out of or relating in any way to the Debt Financing, whether at law, in equity, in contract, in tort or otherwise. Nothing in
this
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Section 9.18 shall in any way limit or modify the rights of Parent or Merger Sub under this Agreement or any Debt Financing
Source’s obligations to Parent as may be mutually agreed by Parent and the Debt Financing Sources.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written.

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION

By: /s/ Christopher A. Simon
Name: Christopher A. Simon
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

CONCORDIA MERGER SUB, INC.

By: /s/ Stewart Strong
Name: Stewart Strong
Title: President

CARDIVA MEDICAL, INC.

By: /s/ John Russell
Name: John Russell
Title: CEO

Seller Representative

By: /s/ Ryan Simkin
Name: Ryan Simkin
Title: Managing Director



EXHIBIT A

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

For purposes of the Agreement (including this Exhibit A):

“409A Plan” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.17(i) of this Agreement.

“Accrued Dividends” shall have the meaning given to such term in Article 2, Section (a) of the Company Charter.

“Accrued Pre-Closing Income Taxes” means an amount (which shall not be less than zero ($0) dollars with respect to the
Company in any jurisdiction or tax regime) equal to the aggregate amount of any accrued and unpaid Income Taxes of the
Company for any Pre-Closing Tax Period (whether or not yet due and payable), determined (i) except as required under
applicable Law or otherwise provided in this definition, in accordance with the past practices (including reporting positions,
elections and accounting methods) of the Company in preparing Company Returns, (ii) by including (A) in taxable income, any
adjustment pursuant to Section 481 of the Code (or any corresponding or similar provision of state, local or non-U.S. Law) (B)
the sum of the installment payments, if any, of the Company due (or to become due in any future period) under Section 965(h) of
the Code and (C) any Taxes payable in any Straddle Period pursuant to Sections 951 and 951A of the Code by a direct, indirect or
constructive shareholder of the Company that are attributable to the Pre-Closing Tax Period portion of such Straddle Period,
(iii) by including as deductions against taxable income all Transaction Deductions in the Pre-Closing Tax Period to the maximum
extent permitted by applicable Law and (iv) subject to clause (ii) above, by excluding any deferred Income Tax assets and
liabilities. In the case of any Straddle Period, Accrued Pre-Closing Income Taxes shall include an amount equal to the Pre-
Closing Tax Period portion of such Taxes, determined on a closing of the books basis; provided that exemptions, allowances or
deductions that are calculated on an annual basis (including, but not limited to, depreciation and amortization deductions) shall be
apportioned on a per diem basis.

“Achieved Revenue” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.16(b)(ii) of this Agreement.

“Acquisition Proposal” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(a) of this Agreement.

“Adjustment Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.12(d) of this Agreement.

“Adverse Notice” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.11(b)(i) of this Agreement.

“Affiliate” shall mean, with respect to any specified Person, any other Person that, directly or indirectly, through one or
more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such specified Person (but excluding, with
respect to the Company, any portfolio
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companies of venture capital or investment funds that are Company Stockholders, which portfolio companies may otherwise be
deemed to be “under common control with” the Company).

“Aggregate Exercise Amount” shall mean the aggregate exercise price of all In-the-Money Options and all Company
Warrants that will receive Merger Consideration, in each case outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, as set
forth on the Estimated Closing Statement.

“Aggregate Liquidation Amount” shall mean the sum of the Aggregate Series 3 Liquidation Amount, the Aggregate
Series 4 Liquidation Amount, the Aggregate Series 5 Liquidation Amount, the Aggregate Series 6 Liquidation Amount, and the
Aggregate Preferred Warrant Liquidation Amount.

“Aggregate Preferred Warrant Liquidation Amount” shall mean the Per Share Preferred Warrant Liquidation Amount,
multiplied by the number of shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock, Series 4 Preferred Stock, and Series 5 Preferred Stock issuable
pursuant to Company Warrants as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Aggregate Series 3 Liquidation Amount” shall mean the Per Share Series 3 Liquidation Amount, multiplied by the
number of shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Aggregate Series 4 Liquidation Amount” shall mean the Per Share Series 4 Liquidation Amount, multiplied by the
number of shares of Series 4 Preferred Stock outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Aggregate Series 5 Liquidation Amount” shall mean the Per Share Series 5 Liquidation Amount, multiplied by the
number of shares of Series 5 Preferred Stock outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Aggregate Series 6 Liquidation Amount” shall mean the Per Share Series 6 Liquidation Amount, multiplied by the
number of shares of Series 6 Preferred Stock outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Agreement” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.

“Anti-Corruption Laws” shall mean the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, the Anti-Kickback Act of
1986 or any applicable Laws of similar effect, including the U.K. Bribery Act of 2010, and the related regulations and published
interpretations thereunder.

“Antitrust Law” shall mean any Law designed or intended to prohibit, restrict, or regulate actions having the purpose or
effect of monopolization or restraint of trade or lessening competition through merger or acquisition, including the HSR Act, the
Sherman Act, as amended, the Clayton Act, as amended, the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, and similar foreign
competition Laws.

“Base Purchase Price” shall mean $475,000,000.
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“Business Day” shall mean any day that is not a Saturday, a Sunday or other day on which banks are required or
authorized by Law to be closed in Santa Clara, California.

“California Code” shall mean the California Corporations Code.

“CARES Act” means the Coronavirus, Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (H.R. 748) (together with all amendments
thereto and the statutes, rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and any successor to such statutes, rules or regulations, as
in effect on the date hereof).

“Carve-Out Plan Amount” shall mean the aggregate amount of Bonus Amounts (as defined in the Company Carve-Out
Plan) owed to Carve-Out Plan Participants under the Company Carve-Out Plan in connection with Closing, subject to the terms
and conditions of the Company Carve-Out Plan.

“Carve-Out Plan Participant” means each Eligible Employee (as defined in the Company Carve-Out Plan) who has
complied with the terms and conditions of the Company Carve-Out Plan and is entitled to a Bonus Amount (as defined in the
Company Carve-Out Plan) at the times set forth in the Company Carve-Out Plan.

“Carve-Out Plan Pool” means the Bonus Pool established by the Board of Directors of the Company under the Company
Carve-Out Plan.

“Carve-Out Plan Transmittal Document” means a document with respect to each Carve-Out Plan Participant including
an acknowledgment of that participant’s relevant percentage of the Net Proceeds as defined in the Company Carve-Out Plan and
a release of claims, in a form to be mutually agreed by the Company and Parent prior to Closing.

“Cash” shall mean, the aggregate amount of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents held by the Company, as determined
in accordance with GAAP, consistently applied, less (a) the aggregate amount of outstanding checks or drafts of the Company
that have not posted, plus (b) the aggregate amount of checks received by the Company that have not been posted.

“Certificate of Merger” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.3 of this Agreement.

“Change of Control” means with respect to Parent or Surviving Corporation, (a) a merger or consolidation of such entity
with an unaffiliated third party that results in the voting securities of such entity outstanding immediately prior thereto, or any
securities into which such voting securities have been converted or exchanged, ceasing to represent more than 50% of the
combined voting power of the surviving entity or the parent of the surviving entity immediately after such merger or
consolidation, (b) a transaction or series of related transactions in which an unaffiliated third party, together with its Affiliates,
becomes the beneficial owner of more than 50% of the combined voting power of the outstanding securities of such entity or (c)
the sale or other transfer to an unaffiliated third party of all or substantially all of such entity’s business that pertain to this
Agreement.

“Closing” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.3 of this Agreement.
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“Closing Cash” shall mean the Cash immediately prior to the Closing on the Closing Date.

“Closing Consideration” shall mean an amount of cash equal to the Base Purchase Price, plus (a) the Estimated Closing
Cash, plus (b) the amount, if any, by which the Estimated Closing Working Capital is greater than the Target Working Capital
Ceiling, minus (c) the amount, if any, by which the Estimated Closing Working Capital is less than the Target Working Capital
Floor; minus (d) the Estimated Closing Date Indebtedness, minus (e) the Estimated Closing Date Transaction Expenses, minus (f)
the Carve-Out Plan Amount.

“Closing Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.3 of this Agreement.

“Closing Date Indebtedness” shall mean the unpaid Indebtedness of the Company immediately before the Closing;
provided, that (a) any item included in Closing Date Indebtedness shall not be included in “Current Liabilities” or “Closing Date
Transaction Expenses” and (b) any item included in “Current Liabilities” or “Closing Date Transaction Expenses” shall not be
included in “Closing Date Indebtedness.” For the avoidance of doubt, Closing Date Indebtedness shall not include the Carve-Out
Plan Pool.

“Closing Date Transaction Expenses” shall mean, except to the extent included in Closing Date Indebtedness, (a) all
unpaid fees, costs and expenses accrued, incurred or otherwise payable by the Company at or prior to the Closing in connection
with the Transactions, including any of the foregoing that are payable in connection with the negotiation, documentation and
execution of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents or the consummation of the Transactions, including the Tail
D&O Policy, and (b) any change of control payment, transaction bonus, special cash bonus, commission, severance (including
the Specified Severance), other bonus, or other similar payment or benefit of any kind payable by any member of the Company
contingent upon the consummation of the Merger; provided, that Closing Date Transaction Expenses shall not include the Carve-
Out Plan Pool, any Transaction Payroll Taxes or any severance payments made to employees who are terminated after the
Closing or any fees, costs and expenses payable by Parent or the Merger Sub or any of their respective Affiliates pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement (or any financing related to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement), any filing fees under the
HSR Act or any other Laws or regulations; provided, further, that (i) any item included in Closing Date Transaction Expenses
shall not be included in “Closing Date Indebtedness” or “Current Liabilities” and (ii) any item included in “Closing Date
Indebtedness” or “Current Liabilities” shall not be included in Closing Date Transaction Expenses.

“Closing Options Payout Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.6(a) of this Agreement.

“Closing Payment Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.7(a)(ii) of this Agreement.

“Closing Statement” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.12(a) of this Agreement.

“Closing Working Capital” shall mean (a) the Current Assets minus (b) the Current Liabilities, determined as of
immediately prior to the Closing on the Closing Date.

A-4



“Closing Working Capital Adjustment” shall mean (a) the amount (expressed as a negative number), if any, by which the
Closing Working Capital is less than the Target Working Capital Floor, (b) the amount (expressed as a positive number), if any,
by which the amount of Closing Working Capital is greater than the Target Working Capital Ceiling, and (c) zero dollars ($0) if
the Closing Working Capital is equal to the Target Working Capital Floor or Target Working Capital Ceiling or is an amount that
is greater than the Target Working Capital Floor but less than the Target Working Capital Ceiling.

“COBRA” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.17(f) of this Agreement.

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Company” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble to this Agreement.

“Company Board Recommendation” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1 of this Agreement.

“Company Capital Stock” shall mean, collectively, the Company Common Stock and the Company Preferred Stock.

“Company Carve-Out Plan” means the Third Amended and Restated Employee Retention Plan of the Company
established by the Board of Directors of the Company effective as of January 17, 2021.

“Company Charter” shall mean the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, as in effect as of the date of this Agreement
or immediately prior to the Effective Time, as the case may be.

“Company Common Stock” shall mean the Common Stock of the Company.

“Company Employees” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a) of this Agreement.

“Company Financial Statements” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.6 of this Agreement.

“Company Intellectual Property” shall mean all Intellectual Property and Intellectual Property Rights owned or purported
to be owned, in whole or in part, by the Company.

“Company Material Adverse Effect” shall mean any change, development, circumstance, effect, event or fact that, either
alone or in combination with any other changes, developments, circumstances, events or facts, has had, or could reasonably be
expected to have, a material adverse effect upon (i) the assets, liabilities, financial condition or existing operations, business
condition, prospects or the results of operations of the Company or (ii) the Company’s ability to perform its obligations
hereunder; provided, that none of the following (individually or in combination) shall be deemed to constitute, or shall be taken
into account in determining whether there has been, a Company Material Adverse Effect: (a) any adverse effect resulting from
general business or

A-5



economic conditions, except to the extent such general business or economic conditions have a disproportionate effect on the
Company as compared to any of the other companies in the Company’s industry, in which case only the incremental
disproportionate adverse impact may be taken into account in determining whether there has occurred a Company Material
Adverse Effect; (b) any adverse effect resulting from conditions generally affecting any industry or industry sector in which the
Company operates, except to the extent such adverse effect has a disproportionate effect on the Company as compared to any of
the other companies in the Company’s industry or industry sector, in which case only the incremental disproportionate adverse
impact may be taken into account in determining whether there has occurred a Company Material Adverse Effect; (c) any adverse
effect resulting from changes in regulatory, legislative or political conditions in the United States or any other country or region
in the world, except to the extent such change in regulatory, legislative or political condition has a disproportionate effect on the
Company as compared to any of the other companies in the Company’s industry, in which case only the incremental
disproportionate adverse impact may be taken into account in determining whether there has occurred a Company Material
Adverse Effect; (d) any geopolitical conditions, global pandemic, epidemic or disease outbreak (including the disease that is
causing the 2019 novel coronavirus outbreak (officially named “COVID-19”) and which was declared a pandemic on March 11,
2020 by the World Health Organization), outbreak of hostilities, acts of war, sabotage, cyber attacks, terrorism or military actions
(including any escalation or general worsening of any such hostilities, acts of war, sabotage, cyber attacks, terrorism or military
actions) or pandemic in the United States or any other country or region in the world, except to the extent such conditions or
actions has a disproportionate effect on the Company as compared to any of the other companies in the Company’s industry or
geographies in which the Company operates, in which case only the incremental disproportionate adverse impact may be taken
into account in determining whether there has occurred a Company Material Adverse Effect;; (e) any adverse effect resulting
from the announcement, execution or delivery of the Agreement or the pendency or consummation of the Transactions, including
any disruption in (or loss of) supplier, service provider, partner or similar relationships or any loss of employees; (f) any adverse
effect resulting from any change in accounting requirements or principles or any change in applicable Laws or the interpretation
thereof; (g) any adverse effect resulting from (i) any action taken by the Company at Parent’s direction, (ii) any action referred to
in Section 4.2 taken by the Company with Parent’s consent, (iii) the failure to take any action referred to in Section 4.2 that was
not taken by the Company because Parent withheld its consent; (h) the failure of the Company to meet internal expectations or
projections (provided, that the underlying cause of such failure may, to the extent applicable, be taken into account, to the extent
that any such underlying cause is not otherwise excluded from this definition of Company Material Adverse Effect); (i) any
adverse effect resulting from any breach by Parent of any provision of this Agreement or the taking of any other action by Parent;
or (j) the availability or cost of equity, debt or other financing to Parent.

“Company Option” shall mean an option to purchase a share of Company Common Stock.
“Company Option Plan” shall mean the Company’s Amended and Restated 2014 Equity Incentive Plan.
“Company Plan” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.17(a) of this Agreement.
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“Company Preferred Stock” shall mean the Series 3 Preferred Stock, the Series 4 Preferred Stock, the Series 5 Preferred
Stock and the Series 6 Preferred Stock.

“Company Product” means the products and services currently licensed, sold or distributed by the Company, or by any
predecessor of the Company (excluding any third-party products distributed along with the Company’s products or services).

“Company Returns” shall mean any return, statement, report, tax filing or form (including estimated Tax returns and
reports, withholding Tax returns and reports, any schedule or attachment, and information returns and reports) filed or required to
be filed by the Company with a Governmental Entity with respect to Taxes, including any amendments thereof.

“Company Series 3 Warrant” shall mean a Company Warrant to acquire shares of Series 3 Preferred Stock.

“Company Series 4 Warrant” shall mean a Company Warrant to acquire shares of Series 4 Preferred Stock.

“Company Series 5 Warrant” shall mean a Company Warrant to acquire shares of Series 5 Preferred Stock.

“Company Software” means any proprietary software of the Company that constitutes Company Intellectual Property or
which is used in any Company Product.

“Company Stock Certificate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.10 of this Agreement.

“Company Stockholders” shall mean the holders of Company Capital Stock.

“Company Warrant” shall mean any warrant to acquire shares of Company Capital Stock.

“Confidentiality Agreement” shall mean that certain Non-Disclosure Agreement, dated as of October 8, 2020, by and
between Parent and the Company.

“Consent(s)” shall mean any consent, approval, clearance or waiver.

“Contingent Consideration” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.16(b) of this Agreement.

“Contingent Consideration Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.16(a) of this Agreement.

“Contract” means any legally binding agreement, contract, subcontract, settlement agreement, lease, instrument, note,
option, warranty, license, sublicense, insurance policy or legally binding commitment, arrangement, obligation or undertaking of
any nature, including all amendments to any of the foregoing.

A-7



“Cooley” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.12 of this Agreement.

“COVID-19 pandemic” means the COVID-19 pandemic, and any evolutions or mutations thereof or related or associated
epidemics, pandemics or disease outbreaks.

“COVID-19 Response” shall mean any workforce reduction, social distancing measure, office closure or safety measure
adopted in response to any Law, directive, guideline or recommendation promulgated by any Governmental Entity, including the
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, in each case, arising out of or otherwise related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

“Current Assets” means the aggregate amount of current assets of the Company (as determined in accordance with
GAAP in accordance with the Company’s historical practices and methodologies and in a manner consistent with the Closing
Date Adjustment Illustration (including the line item current asset accounts set forth therein)).

“Current Liabilities” means all current liabilities of the Company (as determined in accordance with GAAP in
accordance with the Company’s historical practices and methodologies and in a manner consistent with the Closing Date
Adjustment Illustration, including the line item current liability accounts set forth therein); provided, that (a) any item included in
Current Liabilities shall not be included in “Closing Date Indebtedness” or “Closing Date Transaction Expenses” and (b) any
item included in “Closing Date Indebtedness” or “Closing Date Transaction Expenses” shall not be included in Current
Liabilities.

“D&O Indemnified Persons” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.4(a) of this Agreement.

“Damages” means any loss, damage, injury, liability, claim, settlement, judgment, award, fine, penalty, Tax, fee, charge,
cost or expense of any nature (including reasonable and documented out-of-pocket costs of investigation).

“Debt Commitment Letter” means that certain Commitment Letter, dated as of January 17, 2021 (as amended, restated,
amended and restated, supplemented and/or otherwise modified from time to time), by and among, Parent, Citibank, N.A.,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and U.S. Bank National Association.

“Debt Financing” shall mean any debt financing sought by Parent, Merger Sub or any of their Affiliates in connection
with the Transactions, including, without limitation, pursuant to the Debt Commitment Letter or a borrowing of revolving loans
under the Parent Credit Agreement.

“Debt Financing Source Parties” shall mean any Debt Financing Source or any of their respective directors, officers,
employees, equityholders, Representatives, counsels, advisors and Affiliates.

“Debt Financing Sources” shall mean the Persons (other than Parent and Merger Sub) that have committed to provide or
otherwise entered into agreements in connection with the Debt
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Financing, and any joinder agreements or credit agreements entered into pursuant thereto or relating thereto together with their
Affiliates, officers, directors, employees and representatives involved in the Debt Financing and their successors and assigns.

“Disclosure Schedule” shall mean the disclosure schedule that has been prepared by the Company and delivered to Parent
and Merger Sub on the date of the Agreement. The contents of each of the Contracts and other documents referred to in the
Disclosure Schedule shall be deemed to be incorporated and referred to in the Disclosure Schedule as though set forth in full
therein.

“Dispute Auditor” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.12(b) of this Agreement.

“Dispute Notice” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.12(b) of this Agreement.

“Dissenting Shares” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.14(a) of this Agreement.

“Dissenting Stockholder” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.14(a) of this Agreement.

“Effective Time” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.3 of this Agreement.

“Employee Option” shall mean each In-the-Money Option that was granted to the holder in the holder’s capacity as an
employee service provider of the Company for applicable employment Tax purposes.

“End Date” shall mean April 17, 2021.

“Entity” shall mean any corporation (including any nonprofit corporation), general partnership, limited partnership,
limited liability partnership, joint venture, estate, trust, company (including any limited liability company or joint stock
company), firm or other enterprise, association, organization or entity.

“Environmental Law” shall mean any Law relating to (a) the protection, preservation or restoration of the environment
(including, air, water vapor, surface water, groundwater, drinking water supply, surface land, subsurface land, plant and animal
life or any other natural resource); (b) the exposure to, or the use, storage, recycling, treatment, generation, transportation,
processing, handling, labeling, production, release or disposal of, any Hazardous Substances; or (c) safety issues (including
human and occupational safety and health), in each case as amended and as in effect on the date hereof.

“Environmental Permit” shall mean any Permit issued pursuant to any Environmental Laws.

“ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

“ERISA Affiliate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.17(f) of this Agreement.
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“Escrow Agent” shall mean PNC Bank, National Association, a national banking association.

“Escrow Agreement” shall mean an escrow agreement in substantially the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit D.

“Escrow Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.13(a) of this Agreement.

“Estimated Closing Date Indebtedness” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.7(c)(i) of this Agreement.

“Estimated Closing Date Transaction Expenses” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.7(c)(i) of this Agreement.

“Estimated Closing Statement” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.7(c) of this Agreement.

“Estimated Closing Working Capital” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.7(c)(i) of this Agreement.

“Estimated Closing Working Capital Adjustment” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.7(c)(ii) of this
Agreement.

“FDA” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.11(b)(ii) of this Agreement.

“Final Adjustment Amount Determination Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.12(c) of this Agreement.

“First Contingent Consideration Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.16(a) of this Agreement.

“Fraud” means actual common law fraud under the State of Delaware (and not constructive fraud, or negligent or
reckless misrepresentation) in the making of a representation or warranty contained in this Agreement, in each case made by such
party with intent to deceive the other party and on which the other party reasonably relied.

“Fully Diluted Share Number” shall mean the sum of (a) the aggregate number of shares of Company Common Stock
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, (b) the aggregate number of shares of Company Common Stock issuable
upon the conversion, in accordance with the terms of the Company Charter, of shares of the Company Preferred Stock
outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, (c) the aggregate number of shares of Company Common Stock
underlying In-the-Money Options outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, and (d) the aggregate number of
shares of Company Common Stock underlying the Company Warrants outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“GAAP” shall mean United States generally accepted accounting principles.
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“Government Official” shall mean (a) any officer or employee of any Governmental Entity, (b) any person acting in an
official capacity on behalf of a Governmental Entity, (c) any officer or employee of a Person that is majority or wholly owned by
a Governmental Entity, or (d) any officer or employee of a public international organization, such as the World Bank or the
United Nations.

“Governmental Entity” shall mean any national, federal, regional, state, provincial, local, or foreign or other
governmental authority or instrumentality, legislative body, court, administrative agency, regulatory body, commission or
instrumentality, including any multinational authority having governmental or quasi-governmental powers, or any other industry
self-regulatory authority.

“Government Healthcare Program” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.11(f) of this Agreement.
“Hazardous Substance” shall mean any substance listed, defined, designated or classified as hazardous, toxic,

radioactive, dangerous, or a “pollutant” or “contaminant” or otherwise regulated, under any Environmental Law. It shall include
any substance for which exposure is regulated by any Governmental Entity or any Environmental Law, including any toxic waste,
pollutant, contaminant, hazardous substance, toxic substance, hazardous waste, special waste, petroleum or any derivative or by-
product thereof, radon, radioactive material, asbestos, or asbestos containing material, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, lead,
mold, mold spores and mycotoxins or polychlorinated biphenyls or other similar substances.

“Healthcare Laws” means any federal, state, local or foreign Law, Permit or similar right granted under any of the
foregoing, relating in each of the foregoing cases to (a) the provision of healthcare items and services, including: Title XVIII of
the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1395-1395lll (the “Medicare Statute”); Title XIX of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. §§
1396-1396w-5 (the “Medicaid Statute”); the Federal Health Care Program Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b) (the
“Federal Anti-Kickback Statute”); the civil False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3733 (the “Federal False Claims Act”); the
criminal False Claims Act (18 U.S.C. § 287); the Civil Monetary Penalties Law, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1320a-7a and 1320a-7b (the “Civil
Monetary Penalties Law”); the Exclusions Law, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a 7; the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996, as amended; the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act
of 2010; the Federal Health Care Fraud Law, 18 U.S.C. § 1347; TRICARE, 10 U.S.C. § 1071; the Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C. § 301 et seq.); the Physician Payments Sunshine Act or any similar law governing the disclosure or
reporting of financial relationships with entities that provide healthcare items or services; any similar state and local Laws that
address the subject matter of any of the foregoing; (b) the design, development, testing, manufacture, packaging, storing,
handling, labeling, marketing, advertising, offering for sale and importing and exporting of medical products, including the
United States Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. ch. 9, et seq., the Federal Trade Commission Act and Laws and
regulations promulgated under the Medical Device Directive in the European Union, including those relating to establishment
registration, investigational use, premarket clearance, marketing approval, CE marking, international standards for quality
management systems as adopted by the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) (including ISO 13485) or other
authorization to market a product, quality systems
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regulations, ISO requirements, current Good Manufacturing Practice (cGMP) and Quality System Regulation (QSR) (21 C.F.R.
Part 820), good clinical practices, good laboratory practices, labeling, advertising, record keeping and filing of required reports
and security; and (c) any and all amendments or modifications made from time to time to the Healthcare Laws referenced in
subsection (a) above.

“Healthcare Permits” means all Permits or other similar authorizations to permit the Company to carry on its business as
currently conducted and market its products in accordance with Healthcare Laws.

“HIPAA” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.11(g) of this Agreement.

“HSR Act” shall mean the Hart-Scott-Rodino Anti-Trust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended.

“In-the-Money Option” means any Company Option that has an exercise price per share that is less than the Per Share
Common Closing Consideration.

“Inbound Licenses” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(f) of this Agreement.

“Income Tax” means any Tax that is imposed on or measured by net income, however determined.

“Indebtedness” means (a) any obligation of the Company for the payment of principal, interest, penalties, fees or other
liabilities of the Company for borrowed money and collection costs thereof, incurred or assumed, (b) any obligation of the
Company evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments, (c) any reimbursement obligation of the Company
with respect to letters of credit, surety bonds, performance bonds or other guarantees of contractual performance (in each case,
solely to the extent actually drawn upon or otherwise not contingent), bankers’ acceptances or similar facilities, (d) the Accrued
Pre-Closing Income Taxes, (e) any Indebtedness of third parties secured by a Lien on assets owned or acquired by the Company,
(f) any indebtedness and liabilities and related costs or obligations of the Company under any interest rate protection agreements,
foreign currency exchange agreements, forward contracts or other interest, exchange rate or commodity hedging or swap
agreements, (g) any capital or finance leases (other than operating leases) of the Company in the Company Financial Statements
or required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP, (h) [Reserved], (i) any deferred payroll Taxes, as permitted under the
CARES Act or any other law, intended to address the consequences of COVID-19, (j) all unpaid severance obligations (including
the employer portion of any applicable payroll Taxes), (k) the total redemption amount of all outstanding shareholder loans and
loan notes (if any) of any Company, and (l) any obligation of the type referred to in clauses (a) through (k) of another Person the
payment of which the Company has guaranteed or for which the Company is responsible or liable, directly or indirectly, jointly or
severally, as obligor or guarantor, but excluding any capital leases. For the avoidance of doubt, Indebtedness shall not include any
deferred revenue or any Taxes other than the Accrued Pre-Closing Income Taxes and the payroll Taxes in items (i) and (j).

A-12



“Information Statement” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(a) of this Agreement.

“Insurance Policies” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.22 of this Agreement.

“Intellectual Property” means any and all ideas, concepts, discoveries, inventions, improvements, developments,
technologies, works of authorship, trade secrets, software and firmware (such as, for example, computer programs, applications,
libraries, routines, utilities, functions and components), tools, algorithms, processes, techniques, know-how, data, databases,
plans, analyses, models, prototypes, specifications, designs, interfaces, circuits, layouts, mask works, domain names, trademarks,
documentation and records, whether or not it may be patented, copyrighted or otherwise protected.

“Intellectual Property Rights” means any and all intellectual and proprietary rights of any kind, including patent rights,
copyright rights, mask work rights, trademark rights, trade secret rights, domain names, rights in social media, sui generis
database rights and other rights in Intellectual Property (including any disclosure thereof and application therefor), throughout the
world, including all goodwill associated therewith and the right to sue for and collect damages for past, present and future
infringement, misappropriation or other violation thereof.

“IP Agreement” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(i) of this Agreement.

“IRS” shall mean the Internal Revenue Service.

“Knowledge” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.11 of this Agreement.

“Knowledge Individuals” shall mean the following Persons: John Russell, Lisa Garrett, and Justin Ballotta.

“Law” shall mean any federal, state, local, municipal, foreign or other law, statute, constitution, principle of common law,
rule, regulation, directive, ruling, writ, Order, decree, injunction, requirement, compliance agreement or settlement agreement
issued, enacted, adopted, promulgated, implemented or otherwise put into effect by or under the authority of any Governmental
Entity.

“Leased Real Property” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.9 of this Agreement.

“Legal Proceeding” shall mean any action, claim, charge, dispute, suit, litigation, arbitration, proceeding (including any
civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or appellate proceeding), hearing, inquiry, audit, examination or investigation
commenced, brought, conducted or heard by or before, or otherwise involving any court or other Governmental Entity or any
arbitrator or arbitration panel.

“Letter of Transmittal” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.11(a) of this Agreement.
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“Liability” means any liability, obligation or commitment of any nature whatsoever, asserted or unasserted, known or
unknown, absolute or contingent, accrued or unaccrued, matured or unmatured or otherwise.

“Lien” or “Liens” shall mean all mortgages, encumbrances, security interests, claims, charges or pledges.

“Material Contracts” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.12(a) of this Agreement.

“Merger” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals of this Agreement.

“Merger Consideration” shall mean (a) the Closing Consideration plus (b) the Post-Closing Consideration.

“Merger Sub” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.

“Necessary Permits” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.14(b) of this Agreement.

“Net Proceeds” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Company Carve-Out Plan.

“New Plans” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(b) of this Agreement.

“Non-Employee Option” shall mean each In-the-Money Option that was granted to the holder other than in the holder’s
capacity as an employee service provider to the Company for applicable employment Tax purposes.

“Open Source Code” means any software or program that is licensed or distributed pursuant to any open source,
community source, freeware, shareware or public license or distribution model, including without limitation any software or
program licensed or distributed under any of the following licenses or distribution models: GNU General Public License (GPL)
or Lesser/Library GPL (LGPL), BSD License, Apache License and other licenses listed at www.opensource.org.

“Order” means any decree, ruling, order, judgment, writ, award, injunction, stipulation or consent of or by, or settlement
agreement with, a Governmental Entity.

“ordinary course of business” means, with respect to the Company, the ordinary course of business consistent with the
Company’s past practice; provided, that, deviations from such ordinary course of business consistent with the Company’s past
practice shall not be deemed outside the “ordinary course of business” to the extent such deviations were reasonably necessary
with respect to actions taken prior to the date of this Agreement, or, are reasonably necessary with respect to actions taken after
the date of this Agreement, in each case, in connection with a COVID-19 Response.

“Outbound Licenses” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(g) of this Agreement.
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“Parent” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble of this Agreement.

“Parent Credit Agreement” means that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2018 (as amended, restated,
amended and restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time), by and among, inter alios, Parent, the lenders
from time to time party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent.

“Participating Securityholder Transmittal Document” means each Letter of Transmittal, each Carve-Out Plan
Transmittal Document, each Option Termination Agreement and each Warrant Termination Agreement.

“Participating Securityholders” shall mean the Carve-Out Plan Participants and the holders of shares of Company
Capital Stock, Company Warrants and/or In-the-Money Options outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Patents” shall mean all patents and patent applications (including provisional applications), including all divisionals,
continuations, substitutions, continuations-in-part, re-examinations, re-issues, additions, renewals, extensions, confirmations,
registrations, any confirmation patent or registration patent or patent of addition based on any such patent, patent term extensions,
and supplemental protection certificates or requests for continued examinations, foreign counterparts, and the like of any of the
foregoing.

“Payment Agent” means PNC Bank, National Association, a national banking association.

“PCI Requirements” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(o) of this Agreement.

“Per Share Common Closing Consideration” shall mean an amount in cash equal to the quotient of (a) the amount equal
to: (i) the Closing Consideration, plus (ii) the Aggregate Exercise Amount, minus (iii) the Aggregate Liquidation Amount,
divided by (b) the Fully Diluted Share Number.

“Per Share Series 3 Liquidation Amount” shall mean, with respect to each share of Series 3 Preferred Stock, an amount
equal to $1.875, plus the amount of Accrued Dividends accrued but unpaid with respect to such share of Series 3 Preferred Stock
pursuant to the Company Charter.

“Per Share Preferred Warrant Liquidation Amount” shall mean $1.875.

“Per Share Series 4 Liquidation Amount” shall mean, with respect to each share of Series 4 Preferred Stock, an amount
equal to $1.875, plus the amount of Accrued Dividends accrued but unpaid with respect to such share of Series 4 Preferred Stock
pursuant to the Company Charter.
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“Per Share Series 5 Liquidation Amount” shall mean, with respect to each share of Series 5 Preferred Stock, an amount
equal to $1.875, plus the amount of Accrued Dividends accrued but unpaid with respect to such share of Series 5 Preferred Stock
pursuant to the Company Charter.

“Per Share Series 6 Liquidation Amount” shall mean, with respect to each share of Series 6 Preferred Stock, an amount
equal to $2.5875, plus the amount of Accrued Dividends accrued but unpaid with respect to such share of Series 6 Preferred
Stock pursuant to the Company Charter.

“Permit” means any permit, license, premarket approval (PMA), franchise, clearance, approval, authorization,
registration, certificate, waiver, variance and similar right obtained, or required to be obtained, from a Governmental Entity.

“Permitted Encumbrances” shall mean: (a) liens for current Taxes not yet delinquent or that are being contested in good
faith by appropriate proceedings for which adequate reserves have been established in accordance with GAAP; (b) statutory or
common law liens to secure obligations to landlords, lessors or renters under leases or rental agreements arising in the ordinary
course of business securing amounts that are not delinquent or past due or being contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings; (c) deposits or pledges made in connection with, or to secure payment of, workers’ compensation, unemployment
insurance or similar programs mandated by applicable Law or governmental regulations; (d) statutory or common law liens in
favor of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics and materialmen arising in the ordinary course of business securing amounts that are
not delinquent or past due or being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings; (e) nonexclusive licenses of Intellectual
Property granted to customers in the ordinary course of business; (f) easements, reservations, rights-of-way, restrictions and other
similar liens affecting real property not interfering in any material respect with the ordinary conduct of the business of the
Company or the value or usefulness of such real property; and (g) nonexclusive licenses of Intellectual Property Rights granted in
the ordinary course of business.

“Person” shall mean any individual, Entity or Governmental Entity.
“Personal Data” means all data, in the Company’s possession or control, relating to one or more individual(s) that is

personally identifying or as that term is otherwise defined under governing Law.
“Post-Closing Consideration” means: (a) any amount that becomes payable by Parent for distribution to the Participating

Securityholders pursuant to Section 1.12; and (b) any Contingent Consideration that becomes payable for distribution pursuant to
Section 1.16.

“Post-Closing Tax Period” shall mean any taxable period beginning after the Closing Date, and the portion of any
Straddle Period beginning after the Closing Date.

“Pre-Closing Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.1 of this Agreement.
“Privacy Laws” means all applicable Laws governing the processing, privacy or security of Personal Data and all

applicable regulations issued by a Governmental Entity thereunder, such as, to the extent applicable, the EU General Data
Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 and all laws implementing it, HIPAA, Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, the
FTC Red Flag Rules, the CAN SPAM Act and associated regulations set forth in 16 C.F.R. Part 316, the Children’s Online
Privacy Protection Act, state social security number protection laws, state data breach notification laws, state data privacy laws
such as the California Consumer Privacy Act, as
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amended, state data security laws, state consumer protection Laws, and laws governing requirements for website and mobile
application privacy policies and practices, or outbound commercial communications (including email marketing, telemarketing
and text messaging), tracking and marketing.

“Privacy Policies” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(o) of this Agreement.

“Pro Rata Fraction” shall mean, with respect to each Participating Securityholder, the quotient (expressed as a
percentage and rounded to four decimal places) of: (a) the amount of Closing Consideration payable to such Participating
Securityholder in respect of shares of Company Capital Stock, Company Warrants and/or In-the-Money Options, in each case
outstanding as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, and to such Participating Securityholder under the Company Carve-
Out Plan (in each case, as if no amounts were withheld for the Escrow Fund, the Seller Representative Reserve or Taxes), divided
by (b) the aggregate amount of Closing Consideration payable to all Participating Securityholders in respect of shares of
Company Capital Stock, Company Warrants and/or In-the-Money Options, in each case outstanding as of immediately prior to
the Effective Time, and under the Company Carve-Out Plan (in each case, as if no amounts were withheld for the Escrow Fund,
the Seller Representative Reserve or Taxes).

“Product Recalls” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.29 of this Agreement.

“R&W Insurance Policy” means that certain Representations and Warranties Insurance Policy, dated as of the date
hereof, for the benefit of Parent and its Affiliates with respect to the representations and warranties set forth in Section 2 of this
Agreement and other customary matters in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

“Registered IP” shall mean all Intellectual Property that is registered, filed, or issued under the authority of any
Governmental Entity, including all patents, registered copyrights, registered mask works, registered trademarks, domain names,
social media accounts and all applications for any of the foregoing.

“Regulatory Authority” means any federal, national, or multinational governmental health regulatory agency or authority
within a regulatory jurisdiction, with the authority to grant approvals, licenses, registrations or authorizations necessary for the
development, manufacture, use, and sale of a medical device.

“Representatives” shall mean, with respect to any Person, such Person’s directors, officers or other employees,
consultants or other agents including its financial, legal or accounting advisors.

“Required Company Stockholder Votes” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.24 of this Agreement.

“Revenue Statement” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.16(a) of this Agreement.
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“Sanctioned Country” means any country or territory with which dealings are broadly restricted, prohibited, or made
sanctionable under any Sanctions Law (currently, Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Syria, and the Crimea Region).

“Sanctioned Person” means any Person with whom dealings are restricted or prohibited under the Sanctions Laws of the
United States, the United Kingdom, the European Union, any member state of the European Union, or the United Nations,
including (a) any Person identified in any list of sanctioned Persons maintained by (i) the United States Department of Treasury’s
Office of Foreign Assets Control (including the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List, Foreign Sanctions
Evaders List, or Sectoral Sanctions Identifications List), the United States Department of Commerce’s Bureau of Industry and
Security, or the United States Department of State; (ii) Her Majesty’s Treasury of the United Kingdom; (iii) any committee of the
United Nations Security Council; or (iv) the European Union; (b) any Person located, organized, or resident in, organized in, or a
Governmental Entity or government instrumentality of, any Sanctioned Country and (c) any Person directly or indirectly 50% or
more owned or otherwise controlled by, or acting for the benefit or on behalf of, a Person described in (a) or (b).

“Sanctions Law” means all applicable Laws concerning economic sanctions, including embargoes, export restrictions, the
ability to make or receive international payments, the freezing or blocking of assets of targeted Persons, the ability to engage in
transactions with specified persons or countries, or the ability to take an ownership interest in assets of specified Persons or
located in a specified country, including any Laws threatening to impose economic sanctions on any person for engaging in
proscribed behavior.

“Second Contingent Consideration Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.16(a) of this Agreement.

“Seller Representative” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.15(a) of this Agreement.

“Seller Representative Expenses” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.15(d) of this Agreement.

“Seller Representative Reserve” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.15(d) of this Agreement.

“Series 3 Preferred Stock” shall mean the Series 3 Preferred Stock of the Company.

“Series 4 Preferred Stock” shall mean the Series 4 Preferred Stock of the Company.

“Series 5 Preferred Stock” shall mean the Series 5 Preferred Stock of the Company.

“Series 6 Preferred Stock” shall mean the Series 6 Preferred Stock of the Company.

“Specified Representations” shall mean the representations and warranties set forth in Section 2.1 (Authority; Binding
Nature of Agreement), Section 2.2 (Due Incorporation; No
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Subsidiaries; Etc.), Section 2.3 (Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws), Section 2.4(a) (Capitalization, Etc.), Section 2.8 (Title
to Assets) and Section 2.26 (Financial Advisor).

“Straddle Period” shall mean a taxable period beginning on or prior to the Closing Date and ending after the Closing
Date.

“Subsidiary” shall mean, with respect to any Person, any partnership, limited liability company, corporation or other
business entity of which (a) if a corporation, a majority of the total voting power of shares of capital stock entitled (without
regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of directors, managers, or trustees thereof is at the time
owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by that Person or one or more of the other Subsidiaries of that Person or a combination
thereof, or (b) if a partnership, limited liability company or other business entity, a majority of the partnership or other similar
ownership interests thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by that Person or one or more Subsidiaries of
that Person or a combination thereof.

“Surviving Corporation” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.1 of this Agreement.

“Target Working Capital Ceiling” means an amount equal to $[***].

“Target Working Capital Floor” means an amount equal to $[***].

“Tax” or “Taxes” shall mean all federal, state, local, foreign and other income, gross receipts, sales, use, production, ad
valorem, transfer, franchise, registration, profits, license, lease, service, use, withholding, payroll, employment, unemployment,
estimated, excise, severance, environmental, stamp, occupation, premium, property (real or personal), real property gains,
windfall profits, custom duties or other taxes of any kind whatsoever, together with any interest or any penalty, addition to tax or
additional amount imposed by any Governmental Entity responsible for the imposition of any such tax (domestic or foreign).

“Theory of Liability” shall mean any claims, obligations, liabilities, causes of action, or proceedings (in each case,
whether in contract or in tort, at Law or in equity, or pursuant to Law) that may be based upon, in respect of, arise under, out or
by reason of, be connected with, or relate in any manner to, this Agreement or any other Transaction Documents, or the
negotiation, execution, performance, termination or breach (whether intentional, willful, negligent or otherwise) of this
Agreement or any other Transaction Document, including any representation or warranty made in, in connection with, or as an
inducement to enter into, this Agreement and including theories of equity, agency, control, instrumentality, alter ego, domination,
sham, single business enterprise, piercing the veil, unfairness, undercapitalization or otherwise.

“Top Customers” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.21(a) of this Agreement.

“Top Suppliers” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.21(a) of this Agreement.

“Transaction Documents” shall mean this Agreement, the Certificate of Merger, the Escrow Agreement and all other
agreements, instruments and certificates expressly contemplated
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by this Agreement to be executed and delivered by any party in connection with the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.

“Transaction Payroll Taxes” shall mean the employer portion of any payroll or employment Taxes incurred or accrued
with respect to any bonuses, Company Option exercises, payments in respect of Employee Options or other compensatory
payments made in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

“Transactions” shall mean the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other
Transaction Documents.

“Unaudited Balance Sheet” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.6 of this Agreement.

“Waived 280G Benefits” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(b) of this Agreement.

“Willful Breach” means a material breach that is a consequence of an act taken by the breaching party, or the failure by
the breaching party to take an act it is required to take under this Agreement, in each case with actual knowledge that the taking
of, or the failure to take, such act would, or would be reasonably expected to, cause a breach of this Agreement.

“Withholding Agent” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.11(e) of this Agreement.

“Working Capital Escrow Expiration Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.13(a) of this Agreement.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Christopher A. Simon, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Haemonetics Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

February 2, 2021

 /s/ Christopher A. Simon  
 Christopher A. Simon, President and Chief Executive Officer  
 (Principal Executive Officer)  



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, William Burke, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Haemonetics Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

February 2, 2021

 /s/ William Burke  
 William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer  
 (Principal Financial Officer)  



EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant To
18 USC. Section 1350,

As Adopted Pursuant To
Section 906 of the Sarbanes/Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Haemonetics Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 26, 2020 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Christopher A. Simon, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code, that this Report fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

February 2, 2021

 /s/ Christopher A. Simon  
 Christopher A. Simon,  
 President and Chief Executive Officer  

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature
that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Haemonetics and will be
retained by Haemonetics and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant To
18 USC. Section 1350,

As Adopted Pursuant To
Section 906 of the Sarbanes/Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Haemonetics Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 26, 2020 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code, that this Report fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

February 2, 2021

 /s/ William Burke  
 William Burke,  
 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer  

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature
that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Haemonetics and will be
retained by Haemonetics and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


